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\vis Budget Group operates two of the most rec-
gnized brands in the global vehicle rental industry-
\vis and Budget. Avis is a leading supplier to the
remium commercial and leisure segments of the
ravel industry, and Budget is a leading supplier to
rice-conscious car rental segments, We believe we
re the largest general-use vehicle rental operator
n each of North America, Australia, New Zealand
nd certain other regions we serve, based on pub-
shed airport statistics. We also operate one of

he largest consumer truck rental businesses in the
Jnited States, Budget Truck.

We generate significant benefits from oper-
ting two distinctive car rental brands that target
ifferent market segments but share the same
leet, maintenance facilities, technology and admin-
strative infrastructure.

Our operations have an extended global reach
hat includes approximately 6,900 car and truck
rcations in North America, Australia, New Zealand,
atin America, the Caribbean and parts of the Pacific
2gion. On average, our rental fleet totaled more than
25,000 vehicles, and we completed more than 28
nillion vehicle rental transactions worldwide in 2007,

For the year ended December 31, 2007, our
ehicle rental operations generated revenues of
pproximately $6 bitlion. We derive approximately
0 percent of our car rental revenue from on-airport
cations; we derive approximately 20 percent of
ur car rental revenue from non-airport locations,
hich we refer to as the local segment, in which
e continue to significantly expand our presence.
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Our fleet of approximately 28,700 Budget
trucks is available for rentat from approximately

Headquartered in Parsippany, New Jersey,
Avis Budget Group has approximately 30,000
employees dedicated to operational excellence
and outstanding customer service. Qur industry
leadership and proud heritage have as a foundation
our firm commitment to our Company Mission
and Vision, and our strong dedication to our Core
Values: Commitment. Integrity and Re<oonsibility

2,500 dealer-operated, 230 company-operated
and 85 franchisee-operated locations throughout
the continental United States.

We also license the use of the Avis and Budget
trademarks in areas in which Avis Budget Group
does not operate, including Europe and parts of Asia.
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To our shareholders:

Last year there was no stopping Avis Budget Group. In our
first full year as a stand-alone public company, we reported
record revenue while improving the way we function.

Ronald L. Nelson

F. Robert Salerno

2007 was a year of transition and positive change, a year
in which we not only met the many challenges faced

by our industry as a whole, but also took bold steps to
drive strong revenue growth, and lower our operating
costs through our new Performance Excellence initiative.

We posted record revenue of $6 billion, achieving
year-over-year growth of five percent. We continue
to hotd the leading share of the intensely cormnpetitive
on-airport segment of the U.S. car rental industry, while
further expanding both our geographic footprint and
service offerings within the growing off-airport segment.
And we succeeded in lowering the non-fleet operating
costs of our car rental operations in 2007, measured on
a per-rental-day basis.

We attribute our accomplishments to a relentless
focus across our entire business on our core strategies:
P Enhancing our strong brands
> Driving revenue growth
> Capturing incremental profit opportunities

Enhancing Our Brands

Avis continues to be a leading brand within the premium
segment of the vehicle rental industry, recognized as the
best rental car brand by travel agents and by consumers,
who have established Avis as a leader in brand loyalty.'
Avis customers enjoyed the benefit of many new prod-
ucts and services that we launched over the course of
the year, including an exclusive portable wireless Inter-

net access system called Avis Connect; expansion of
eToll electronic toll collection services to more cities
and more vehicles; and the international roll-out of
Avis's trend-setting where2 GPS navigation system.

Our new products and services help Avis renters
avoid time-wasting delays while traveling so as to be
able to make the most of their time away from home.
At the same time, we are highlighting a unique brand
benefit that demonstrates how Avis continues to
deliver against its “We Try Harder” service promise
in the digital age.

In our Budget brand, we allow customers to benefit
from great deals and everyday low prices that continue
to make Budget a leading brand among price-conscious
consumers for both car and truck rental. In fact, Budget
was recognized as “Leading Provider of Outstanding Car
Rental Deals” in 2007 by a major online travel portal.
With half of all rental car consumer purchase decisions
based on price, being the acknowledged leader in pro-
viding great deals has proven to be a compelling and
successful brand positioning.

To better serve our custorners’ needs, Avis Budget
Group in 2007 acquired a 48 percent interest in Carey
International Inc., the largest global provider of chauf-
feured transportation services. The Carey brand is an
outstanding complement to Avis and Budget, represent-
ing quality and service excellence in local transportation
solutions. By marketing Carey's services with those of
Avis and Budget, we will be able to offer business clients
the most comprehensive suite of local transportation
services available anywhere,

Driving Revenue Growth

In addition to maintaining our leading airport presence,
we continue to expand our penetration in the non-
airport, or local segment of the vehicle rental industry.




‘seaLAWY Y] Jo)
SPIEMY |2ARIL PLOM, JBUDIBRI 341 T8 301 Jed) uipeay s edudwy yUOoN,
S& P)JOM 3U] PUnOIE SjEuoIssajold 1anely Ag pAzIuBodas sem sivy

8002 1udy

132130 Buiesado JeIyD
pue Juapisald
oul3ies 12qoy 4

IO SAINIXT J3IYD
pue uewieyd

uos|aN ] pleucy

I W ") Y

YSEIERN

"Buinoxa 310w uaA3 3q o3 sasiwold gooz 18yl
wsiuido 1o a1eys 03 pue Z00Z Ul SN 03 JUSUIHLLILOD
1133 JO§ 510153aAUI PUE 5J3WI01SND ‘saaAodwa Jno juey)
03 Ayunpoddo syl g3 03 a1 PINOM I USKEUIPUN
aney am Lauinol ay3 jo FuiuuiBaq ayy Ajuo paysew jey)
Jeahk Sunnxs uve jo ped asam sadueyd asayy jo iy
'SpJepuElS LOOYL OS| YHM
3DUEPIOIDE L} LUFISAS JUBUISFRURY |RIUSLULONAUT UE JO
uol1ea.s ayy ysnoiyl 1peduul |PIUSLUUCIIAUS INO 3DNpal
01 1adxa apy, satuedwiod uonepodsuel] Jo %' €6 pue
saluedwod QOF 4’85 4O %6°98 UBL] J9139q 20UBLIRA0E
ae10d.102 s, dnoan) Ja8png siay 53181 SDIAISS JapjoyRIeYS
JeuonnIsY| ‘8O0z 'L Auenuel Jo sy 'S19p|cy3IeYS INO
10 Jjeyaq uo Aunuoddo Asass 1e seq aul Buisies—1ysis
-19A0 33uetIaA0g ayes0diol Jno uayiduauls pue 1edu
|BIUSLILONAUS N0 AJRFINW pue ainsealu ‘A1jeko) pue
uolyoeysies 99A0|dWa IdUBYUS ‘LOIIBLLIOJI 31qRIIIUDP!
Ajleuosiad siawoisnd Pajosd 03 saaneul jeuoliez
-wedio solew paypune) aaey ap, ‘Auedwos ongnd e se
uonisod Ino aao:du] 03 INUIIUCI 3M ‘3N SLUEBS Y] 1Y
1eq ay3 Suisiey

“SJaWI01SND INC 0 3JusLadX3 jeIual
a]yaa Buipuelsine ue apiacad o} anuuod 03 Aj|Ige
1no Aq uaaup s1 yoym ‘Auedwo) ays o Yaduans uuay
-Bu0j] 3y} UG SUIELLIBI 1BABMOY 'SND0Y NG INJ20 Aew
1ey3 Buua1yBin upain Jo Suiuaeam J1Woucdd Aue
J0 51238 3y 21e3w 03 BuppoM PUe SNSSI AsoYl
Buuoyuow ase apa “Ansnpur 21u3 1no Funpedu
SLI3DUOD JPAId pUe Jlwoundaonew Ag umop paysiam
uaaq sey go0Z AHED pue /007 218) Ul 311d ¥2035 4no
‘apia0ad M 3A1IBI1UL 3DUI)J30XT ADUBLLLOHI JNO JBL}
syjauaq Juedyudls ayy pue suoya no audsag
-ao1:d 3481 ayy 1e pue ‘aw W3 a3
1e sadejd B 9yl vl 3)ge|ieAr sRILRA JYSL 31 3ABY
am Jey] ansud 03 Juswadeurw pjaIA pue 139} panroid
-W) pue saiyaa yum sn Ajddns oym sisunioeynuew
ayy ul Ausiaalp sajeasd 'syuswaasde aseydundal Jainy
-3ejnueiu 03 133lqns 10u ale LaiyM ‘sied wei3old-uou
a1ow plemol Pys uoduo ayy y3noayy saseanu; dud
33124 193]} 91e313ILL OF INUIILOD IM ‘UDIIPPE U
*51eak 93143 03 OMI IX3U Y] JIAO
uol|iw 0SL% 031 00L$ Aq s1so2 Bunesado jenuue Jno
22NPaJ 0 SN MO]JE M AIIRILUL SIY3 1BY] 102dX%3 apn,
‘a)qssod se mo) se s 3seq
1502 JNO 1BY] INSUI puR
sassazoud jeuorielado no
aaoidun o3 saiqiunped
-do 4nusp! 01 2aneniul
92UI)|30X] SUBLLLIONI
1NO PaYIUNE] M SIS0
jauuossad pue 123y ui
S35E3I0U| PUB JUILLUOY
-1aua Sunud saiadwos Ajasualu) ue Aq paduajjeyd
sui8sew uaas sey AJIsNpu) 2J13UB JNo Sy sease Auew ul
sanunuoddo Bupueyus-1101d Bunsind aue s
"$$aUISNQ N0 0} pajejal saniunpoddo yj0:d euawaIsUl
gunided jo aaipalqo Jno spoddns yoym 'aq asimuslo

pInom Aay3 ueyl 3)qellyo.d 3I0W SUCHIBSUEBL] |BILRI
3313 PUB IBD 3yBW UPD S3JIAIIS PUE s1onpoud Asepjoue
18Y3 JUBPLUCI AJSUISEAIOU 38 M 'JNSal € Sy "1eak
Joud ayy uonjiw 1§ Aja3ewyxoidde 01 pasedwod /002
u1 awodu; xejaud o3 uoiiw §E$ Ueyl 10w pIINQLY
-u0D ‘ajdwiexa 10§ ‘S|eIUR §4D) Zaaym SBUlLIES N0 0}
UOIINGUIUCD [EIILLISQNS B 33eLU OS] ued A3y} isyjnsal
aur)-do} 1no pue a3usuadXa |EIURL YA SIDWOISND
Ino azueyua Auo Jou spnposd 2nuaaal Aejdue ang
34044 Buanide)

"SPIAU SIAWOISND INO 1323w diay 183 53215 pue
spnpoud Aejjdue jeuonippe 1340 0) pue Spuads} 2|qe
-10AB} 35313 JO I8 3NUIUOD 03 511203 INQ "S3AS GIM,
Jauped 1aAes) pue sjepiod aae)) aunuo W0y sBunjooq
paseanu; ySnoayl pue ‘SUoIeCSSe Pue sJaulied aaen
Y3taa spusWRaIde uonenye mau jo duludis ay3 ysnoiy)
JAYUIN YImo.B anuaAal pajany aaey a, ‘sianlem adewep
$s0] pue auljosed se yons spnpotd Aejnue jeuciipes)
10 S2125 PASEAIDU| JABY IM ‘UOIHIPPE U] SUCISa) m3u

01 papuedxa Uaaq JABY SIDIAISS UCIIIFN|0D |03 JUOI]
-283]3 INo puk A)|eUOIELLIBIU] PUE A]JEUCIIEU J]QEJIEAR
MOU SI WIRYSAS uoeIARL S4D)

*$3502 3u13e19d0o 1IN0 padNpal  zaseymino sPNpoid Kwejpue
Aj3ea18 1ey) Sunjiom Jo sAem
M3u pajeatd pue sassadoud
Jeuoijelado Jno pamaiAal Weal
9DUD))9DXJ DUBWLIONDd JNQ  arospuan uawaueidud Aq pa

LUOL) HRIIUIR 3M INUIADL 343
paseanu) Apuedjudis ap

“Juawigas siy} ul sduasaud

N0 3SL3IOUI 0 ANURUOD 0

pU3IUI M puiE ‘DpEdap I5e] AR

-pedu 5391 pue Buimold-iaisey

U3 SABY S3WIN|OA LOdIIB-LOU 3AJIB] M, 002 Yl
u0.9d 57 uey} 210w £Q anNUAI JU3LWRDE|das adUBRINSLI
3SEAIDUI 01 5N PIYQRUA YIIYM ‘s3iuedwiod asueInsul 10}
£Bojouypal Aeandosd payoune) aney am pue ‘s1eak omy
158] 33 JIA0 SUOIIEIO0) Mau g0 Ajeau pauado aney ap




e
o

Our customer value proposition
extends beyond the vehicles we rent,
to make the overall travel experience
more enjoyable and productive.

At Avis Budget Group, we're always pursuing ways
to be more efficient in the operation of our brands
and businesses. But our commitment to productivity
doesn't stop with making sure our sites function in
the best possible way. We also value the time our
customers spend in our vehicles and are dedicated
to providing them with the best rental experience.
In 2007, we offered renters cutting-edge tech-
nology including electronic toll collection programs,
Global Positioning System navigation devices, port-
able wireless Internet access and new online travel
planning tools, all of which combine to help travel-
ers avoid delays while on the road. Research shows
that up to three hours or more per typical business
trip can be saved through the use of these products.
And these new services not only enhance our value
to customers, they also benefit our financial results.
At the same time, our new customer benefits
were matched by internal improvements. We created
a new full-time team of Avis Budget Group employ-
ees, drawn from across the spectrum of Company
regions, functions and departments, and trained
these people in the use of sophisticated process
imorovernent tools such as lean and Six Siema

This initiative, which we call Performance Excellence
(PEx), represents a new approach to change man-
agement and continuous improvement, and it witl

become a permanent part of how we do business.

It is now being deployed on a system-wide basis,
with significant positive results.

Since it began in August 2007, our PEx team
has initiated dozens of new procedures, touching
operations from insurance claim processing to
vehicle shuttling to customer check-in at the end
of the rental transaction. This approach not only
improves our customer service, but also provides
significant cost savings. We anticipate generating
annual savings of $100-150 millton through these
efforts over time, which will help us expand our
operating margins while never compromising on
our promise of service excellence to our customers,

In 2007, our dedicated employees led the way
to increasing our productivity, and our unwavering
attention to customer service led to the discovery
of profitable ways to help our customers make
the most of their travel time. We're proud of our
results, and our innovative outlook puts us on track

o arhieve aven oreatar <luccace in 2008



UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF 'I;HE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 200
OR :
[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
' " SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 ’

For the transition period from to
COMMISSION FILE NO. 1-10308

AVIS BUDGET GROUP, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

DELAWARE 06-0918165
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (L.R.S. Employer ldentification Number)
6 SYLVAN WAY
PARSIPPANY,NJ ) 07054 .
(Address of principal executive offices} {Zip Code)
973-496-4700

{Registrant’s telephone number, including area code}

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OF THE ACT:

NAME OF EACH EXCHANGE
TITLE OF EACH CLASS ON WHICH REGISTERED
Common Stock, Par Value $.01 New York Stock Exchange
Preferred Stock Purchase Rights New York Stock Exchange °
SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(g) OF THE ACT:

None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.  Yes No []
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.  Yes [] No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.  Yes No []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to ltem 405 of Regutation S-K (§229.405 of this chapter) is not contained
herzin, and will not be contained, to the best of Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by
reference in Part 1T of this Form 10-K or any amendment 1o this Form 10-K. []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer [ Non-accelerated filer []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes [ No

The aggregate market value of the Registrant’s common stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant on June 29, 2007 was $2,942,661.819.
All executive officers and directors of the registrant have been deemed, solely for the purpose of the foregoing calculation, to be “affiliates” of
the regisirant.

The number of shares outstanding of the Registrant’s common stock was 103,586,476 as of January 31, 2008,
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy statement to be mailed to stockholders in connection with our annual stockholders’ meeting
scheduled to be held on June 5, 2008 (the “Annval Proxy Statement™) are incorporated by reference into Part III hereof.




Item

w o

o ) R e e e

10
11
12

13
14

15

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description

PARTI

Business

Risk Factors

Unresolved Staff Comments

Properties

Legal Proceedings

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

PART II

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

Selected Financial Data

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Controls and Procedures

Other Information

PART Il

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Executive Compensation

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters ‘

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

PARTIV
Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
Signatures

Pape

17
26
26
27
30

31
35
37
54
55
55
55
57

57
57

57
7
57

57
58




FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The forward-looking statements contained herein are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and
other factors which may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from
any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements, These
forward-looking statements are based on various facts and were derived utilizing numerous important
assumptions and other important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the
forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include the information concerning our future financial
performance, business strategy, projected plans and objectives. Statements preceded by, followed by or that

Mo LUt LTINS CLITY LAINTY LLEN

otherwise include the words “believes”, “expects”, “anticipates”, “intends”, “projects”, “estimates”, “plans”,

LIRS

“may increase”, “may fluctuate” and similar expressions or future or conditional verbs such as “will”, “should”,
“would”, “may” and “could” are generally forward-looking in nature and not historical facts. You should
understand that the following important factors and assumptions could affect our future results and could cause
actual results to differ materially from those expressed in such forward-looking statements:

» the high level of competition in the vehicle rental industry and the impact such competition may have on
pricing and rental volume;

= an increase in the cost of new vehicles;

e adecrease in our ability to acquire or dispose of cars generally through repurchase or guaranteed
depreciation programs or manufacturers’ changes to such programs;

* adecline in the results of operations or financial condition of the manufacturers of our cars;

+ an increase in costs associated with our fleet based on our number of “‘risk” vehicles, including as a
result of changes in the prices at which we dispose of risk vehicles in the used car market;

+ adownturn in airline passenger traffic in the United States or in the other international locations in
which we operate;

* an occurrence or threat of terrorism, pandemic disease, natural disasters or military conflict in the
locations in which we operate;

= adecline in general economic conditions, or a decline in the housing market;
* our dependence on third-party distribution channels;
+ adisruption or decline in rental activity, particularly during our peak season or in key market segments;

= asignificant increase in interest rates or in borrowing costs or a fluctuation in interest rates, which can
impact the valuation of our derivatives;

« our ability to successfully implement our business strategy for growth;

* our ability to accurately estimate our future results;

* our ability to successfully integrate operations upon the acquisition of other businesses, potentially
including exercise of our option to purchase a majority interest in Carey Holdings, Inc., the parent
company of Carey International, Inc.;

+ amajor disruption in our communication or centralized information networks;

* our exposure to uninsured claims in excess of historic levels;

* our failure or inability to comply with regulations or any changes in regulations;




= any impact on us from the actions of our licensees, dealers and independent contractors;
+ substantial increases in fuel costs or decreases in fuel supply;

= adisruption in our ability to obtain financing for our operations, including the funding of our vehicle
fleet via the asset-backed securities and lending market;

« other business, economic, competitive, governmental, regulatory, political or technological factors
affecting our operations, pricing or services;,

* risks related to our indebtedness, including our substantial amount of debt, our ability to incur
substantially more debt, the restrictive covenants in agreements and instruments governing our debt and
the amount of cash required to service all of our indebtedness; and

» the terms of agreements among us and the former real estate, hospitality and travel distribution
businesses following the separation of those businesses from us during third quarter 2006, when we
were known as Cendant Corporation, particularly with respect to the allocation of assets and liabilities,
including contingent liabilities and guarantees, commercial arrangements, the performance of each of
the separated companies’ obligations under these agreements, and the former real estate business’ right
to control the process for resolving disputes related to contingent liabilities and assets.

Other factors and assumptions not identified above, including those described under “Risk Factors™ set forth in
Iiem 1A herein, were also involved in the derivation of these forward-looking statements, and the failure of such
other assumptions to be realized, as well as other factors, may also cause actual results to differ materially from
those projected. Most of these factors are difficult to predict accurately and are generally beyond our control.

You should consider the areas of risk described above, as well as those described under “Risk Factors” set forth
in Item 1A herein, in connection with any forward-looking statements that may be made by us and our businesses
generally. Except for our ongoing obligations to disclose material information under the federal securities laws,
we undertake no obligation to release any revisions to any forward-looking statements, to report events or to
report the occurrence of unanticipated events unless required by law. For any forward-looking statements
contained in any document, we claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking siatements contained
in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.




PART1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

LIt

Except as éxpressly indicated or unless the context otherwise requires, the “Company”, “Avis Budget”, “we”,
“our” or “us” means Avis Budget Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries and "“Avis Budget
Car Rental” or “ABCR" means Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and its
subsidiaries, the companies that comprise our vehicle rental operations. “Avis” and “Budget” refer to our Avis
and Budget operations, respectively, and do not include the operations of Avis Europe and its affiliates, as
furiher discussed below. ' '

We operdte two of the most recognized brands in the global vehicle rental industry through Avis and Budget.
Avis is a leading rental car supplier to the premium commercial and leisure segments of the travel industry and
Budget is a leading rental car supplier to the price-conscious segments of the industry. We believe we are the
largest general-use vehicle rental operator in each of North America, Australia, New Zealand and certain other
regions we serve, based on published airport statistics. We maintain the leading share of airport car rental
revenue and operate one of the leading consumer truck rental businesses in the United States.

Our car rental operations generate significant benefits from operating two distinctive brands that target different
industry segments but share the same fleet, maintenance facilities, systems, technology and administrative
infrastructure. We believe that Avis and Budget both enjoy complementary demand patterns with mid-week
commercial demand balanced by weekend leisure demand. For 2007, our vehicle rental operations generated
revenues of $5,968 million. The Avis, Budget and Budget Truck brands accounted for approximately 63%, 30%
and 7% of our vehicle rental revenue, respectively, in 2007.

Our operations have an extended global reach that includes approximately 6,900 car and truck rental locations in
the United States, Canada, Australia, New Zealand, Latin America, the Caribbean and parts of the Pacific region.
On average, our rental fleet totaled more than 425,000 vehicles, and we completed more than 28 million vehicle
rental transactions worldwide in 2007. Domestically, in 2007 we derived approximately 81% of our nearly $4.0
billion in car rental revenue from on-airport locations and approximately 19% of our domestic car rental revenue
from off-airport lolcations, which we refer to as our local business. We expanded our local business in 2007,
which included an increase in our insurance replacement revenue by approximately 25%, and plan to continue
this expansion further in 2008. We rent our fleet of approximately 28,700 Budget trucks through a network of
approximately 2,500 dealer-operated, 230 company-operéted and 83 franchisec-operated locations throughout the
continental United States. We also license the use of the Avis and Budget trademarks to multiple licensees in
areas in which we do not operate. The Avis and/or Budget vehicle rental systems in Europe, Africa, the Middle
East and parts of Asia are operated at approximately 3,600 locations by subsidiaries and sub-licensees of an
independent third party primarily under royalty-free trademark license agreements.

We categorize our operations in three operating segments: domestic car rental, consisting of our Avis and Budget
U.S. car rental operations; international car rental, consisting of our international Avis and Budget car rental
operaticns; and truck rental, consisting of our Budget truck rental operations. In 2007:

+ our domestic car rental business generated approximately 92 million rental days and time and mileage
revenue per day of $40.06 with an average rental fleet of approximately 340,889 vehicles;

* our international car rental business generated approximately 14 million rental days and time and
mileage revenue per day of $43.54 with an average rental fleet of approximately 55,703 vehicles; and

* - our truck rental business generated approximately 4.2 million rental days and time and mileage revenue
per day of $79.17 with an average rental fleet of approximately 28,700 trucks.
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For 2008, our objective is to enhance growth, profitability and our position as a leader in the vehicle rental
industry. We expect to achieve our goals by focusing our efforts on the following core strategic initiatives:

»  Optimizing Our Two-Brand Strategy. We plan to continue to position our two distinct and well-
recognized brands to capture different segments of customer demand. With Avis as a premium brand
preferred by corporate and upscale leisure travelers, and Budget as a value brand preferred by cost-
conscious travelers, we believe we are able to target a broad range of demand, particularly since the two
brands share the same operational and administrative infrastructure while providing differentiated
though consistently high levels of customer service. We aim to provide products, service and pricing,
and to maintain marketing affiliations and corporate account contracts, which complement each brand’s
positioning. In addition, we use various marketing channels as appropriate for each of our brands and
seek to continue to increase the volume of reservations that we generate through our avis.com and
budget.com websites, which are among our least-expensive sources of advance bookings.

»  Expanding Our Revenue Sources. We plan to expand the revenues we generate from sources beyond
on-airport time and mileage rental fees. We seek to grow off-airport revenue for Avis and Budget by
opening new locations and continuing our effort to identify and attract local demand. In particular, we
plan to increase our revenues in the insurance replacement sector, in which we have historically had a
more limited presence, and we employ a dedicated local sales team to expand our insurance
replacement, local truck rental and off-airport general-use rental volumes. Separately, we look to expand
our revenue sources by offering additional products and services to existing on- and off-airport
customers, including additional insurance coverages and insurance-related and other ancillary products
and services, such as electronic tol] collection services and our Where2 GPS navigation product (which
was launched in the United States in 2006 and in Canada in 2007). In October 2007 we acquired a
minority interest in Carey Holdings, Inc., the leading provider of chauffeured ground transportation
services worldwide, as well as a one-year option to increase our holdings to a majority interest. If we
exercise our option, we expect to expand revenue by offering our customers a full range of ground
transportation products.

«  Capiuring Incremental Profit Opportunities. We plan to continue our focus on yield management and
pricing optimization, rigorous cost controls, fleet diversification and process improvement. We are
developing technology that wilt allow us to strengthen our yield management and we have implemented
technology that enables us to tailor our product/pricé offerings to specific customer segments, including
technology that allows Avis and Budget to target customers with rates and prices based on past shopping
and rental behavior. We also plan to acquire and develop technology that will help us optimize our fleet
acquisition and disposal decisions. With respect to fleet diversification, in an effort to mitigate expected
increases in fleet costs, we are seeking to adjust our relationships with vehicle manufacturers by
continuing to move to a more balanced multi-supplier model, increasing the risk-vehicle portion of our
fleet and lengthening the average hold period. In addition, we believe the expansion of our revenue
sources {discussed above) will permit us to generate incremental profits from our customer base, while
at the same time enhancing their vehicle rental experience. In 2007, we launched our Performance
Excellence process improvement initiative to identify methods to increase efficiency throughout our
operations and generate sustainable cost savings, which we believe will have a significant impact on our
financial performance.

In 2007, we made continued progress toward our strategic objectives. We retained approximately 98% of our
commercial contracts. Avis and Budget maintained their marketing alliances with USAA and AARP, which are
long-time Avis marketing partners, and Budget grew its award-winning small business program. We opened
approximately 195 new off-airport locations in 2007, and off-airport revenues represented 19% of our domestic
car rental revenues. We are an “approved” or “preferred” provider for customers of a majority of the largest auto
insurance companies in the United States, In 2007, we continued to increase revenue related to rentals of Where2
GPS navigation system units, loss damage waivers and insurance products, and other ancillary services. In the
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area of cost management, we have continued to reduce our reliance on individual fleet suppliers and to diversify
our fleet purchases, and we established our Performance Excellence program to identify and effect potential
process-improvement and cost saving opportunities. We are utilizing sophisticated yield-management technology
to optimize our pricing and fleet planning, and we continue to analyze and streamline our operations to gain
efficiencies. And, most importantly, our more than 30,000 employees continue to provide reliable, high-quality
vehicle rental services that foster customer satisfaction and customer loyalty.

* *k k




Company Information,

Our principal executive office is located at 6 Sylvan Way, Parsippany, New Jersey 07054 (telephone number:
(973) 496-4700). We are subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and in accordance therewith, we file reports, proxy and information statements and other information
with the Commission and certain of our officers and directors file statements of changes in beneficial ownership
on Form 4 with the Commission. Such reports (including our annual reports on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to such reports), proxy statements and
other information and such Form 4s can be accessed on our website at www.avisbudget.com as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the Commission. A copy of
our Codes of Conduct and Ethics, as defined under Item 406 of Regulation $-K, including any amendments
thereto or waivers thereof, Corporate Governance Guidelines, Director Independence Criteria and Board
Committee Charters can also be accessed on our website. We will provide, free of charge, a copy of our annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, Codes of Conduct and
Ethics, Corporate Governance Guidelines and Board Committee Charters upon request by phone or in writing at
the above phone number or address, attention: Investor Relations. In accordance with New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE) Rules, on June 14, 2007, we filed the annual certification by our Chief Executive Officer certifying that
he was unaware of any violation by us of the NYSE’s corporate governance listing standards at the time of the
certification. ¢

Company History

We were created through a merger with HFS Incorperated in December 1997 with the resultant corporation being
renamed Cendant Corporation. On August 23, 2006, Cendant completed a separation into four separate
companies (the “Cendant Separation™), one for each of its former Real Estate Services businesses (Realogy
Corporation), its former Hospitality Services businesses (Wyndham Worldwide Corporation), its former Travel
Distribution Services businesses (Travelport) and its Vehicle Rental businesses (Cendant, now Avis Budget
Group). Following completion of the Cendant Separation, Cendant changed its name to Avis Budget Group, Inc.
and our common stock began to trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CAR.” Avis Budget
Group's operations consist of two of the most recognized brands in the global vehicle rental industry through
Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC, the parent of Avis Rent A Car System, LLC, Budget Rent A Car System, Inc. and
Budget Truck Rental, LLC.

Founded in 1946, Avis is believed to be the first company to rent cars from airport locations. Avis expanded its
geographic reach throughout the United States in the 1950s and 1960s. In 1963, Avis introduced its award
winning “We try harder” advertising campaign, which is considered one of the top ten advertising campaigns of
all time by Advertising Age magazine. Budget was founded in 1958. The company name was chosen to appeal to
the “budget-minded” or “value-conscious” vehicle rental customer. Avis possesses a long history of using
proprictary information technology systems in its business, and its established, but continually updated, Wizard
System remains the backbone of our operations. We acquired the Avis brand in 1996, Avis’ capital stock in 2001,
and the Budget brand and substantially all of the domestic and certain international assets of Budget’s
predecessor in 2002,

In addition to our vehicle rental operations, we continue to manage the administration of certain legacy items
which remain following the completion of the Cendant Separation. In connection with the Cendant Separation,
we entered into certain agreements, including the Separation and Distribution Agreement dated as of July 27,
2006 (the “Separation Agreement”), with Realogy, Wyndham and Travelport governing our relationships
following the separation, including the assumption by Realogy and Wyndham of 62.5% and 37.5%, respectively,
of certain contingent and other liabilities of Cendant.




Car rental business
Operations—Avis

We operate or franchise approximately 2,200 of the approximately 5,100 rental locations that comprise the Avis
car rental system (the “Avis System”), which represents one of the largest car rental systems in the world, based
on total revenue and number of locations, and encompasses locations at most of the largest airports and cities in
the United States and internationally. The Avis System in Europe, Africa, the Middle East and parts of Asia is
primarily operated under royalty-free license agreements with Avis Europe Holdings, Limited (“*Avis Europe™),
an independent third party, and is comprised of approximately 2,900 locations operated by Avis Europe and its
sub-licensees, ' '

We own and operate approximately 1,300 Avis car rental locations in both the on-airport and local rental
segments in North America, Australia, New Zealand, Latin America and the Caribbean. In 2007, Avis generated
total revenue of approximately $3.7 billion, of which approximately 83% (or $3.1 billion) was derived from U.S.
operations. In addition, we franchise the Avis System to independent business owners in approximately 850
locations throughout the United States, Canada, Latin America, Australia, New Zealand and parts of the Pacific
region. In 2007, approximately 95% of the Avis System total domestic revenue was generated by our locations
and the remainder was generated by tocations operated by franchisees. Franchisees generally pay royalty fees to
us based either on total time and mileage charges or total revenue.

In 2007, Avis derived approximately 62% and 38% of its domestic time and mileage revenue from commercial
and leisure customers, respectively, and 81% and 19% of its domestic revenue from customers renting at airports
and locally, respectively. We have continued to focus efforts in 2007 on increasing the amount of revenue we
generate locally from customers who rent in order to temporarily replace their own cars when they are being
repaired or are otherwise unavailable.

The Avis brand provides high-quality car rental services at price points generally above non-branded and value-
branded national car rental companies. We offer Avis customers a variety of premium services, including:

*  Avis Preferred, a counter bypass program, which is available at major airport locations;

* Where2, a navigation systemn with real-time traffic alents, including weather delays, construction tie-ups
and traffic snarls, which suggests alternative routes and features Bluetooth hands-free calling and MP3
playback capability as well as directions in multiple languages;

»  Avis Cool Cars, a line of fun-to-drive vehicles such as the Cadillac CTS, Chevrolet Corveue, Chrysler
Crossfire and Hummer H3, as well as eco-friendly Nissan Altima and Toyota Prius “hybrid” vehicles;

* Roving Rapid Return, wireless technology, which permits customers who are returning vehicles 1o
obtain a printed charge record from service agents at the vehicle as it is being returned;

* Avis Cares, a program which provides customers with area-specific driver safety information, the latest
child safety seats (available for rent), local information and driving maps;

* Avis Access, a full range of special products and services for drivers and passengers with disabilities;

*  Avis Interactive, a proprietary management tool that allows select corporate clients (o easily view and
analyze their rental activity via the Internet through account analysis and activity reports, allowing these
clients to befter manage their travel budgets and monitor employee compliance with applicable travel
policies;




« The Avis First Program, a new customer loyalty program that rewards customers with additional
benefits for frequent rentals; and

+ Chauffeur Drive, a premium service which allows customers to hire a professional driver to drive their
Avis rental car through an arrangement with a third party provider.

Operations—Budget

The Budget vehicle rental system (the *“Budget System”) is one of the largest car rental systems in the world,
based on total revenue and number of locations, We operate or franchise approximately 1,900 of the
approximately 2,600 car rental locations in the Budget System, including locations at most of the largest airports
and cities in the United States and certain other regions. The Budget System in Europe, Africa and the Middle
East is operated under a royalty-free trademark license agreement with an independent third party, which is an
affiliate of Avis Europe and is comprised of approximately 700 additional company-operated and sub-licensee
locations.

We own and operate approximately 800 Budget car rental locations in the United States, Canada, Puerto Rico,
Australia and New Zealand. In 2007, our Budget car rental operations generated total revenue of approximately
$1.8 billion, of which 86% (or $1.5 billion) was derived from U.S. operations. We also franchise the Budget
System to independent business owners who operate approximately 1,100 locations throughout the United States,
Canada, Latin America, the Caribbean and parts of the Asia Pacific region. In 2007, approximately 84% of the
Budget System domestic total revenue was generated by our locations with the remainder generated by locations
operated by independent franchisces. Independent franchisees generally pay royalty fees to us based on gross
rental revenue. In 2007, Budget derived 24% and 76% of its domestic time and mileage car rental revenue from
commercial and leisure customers, respectively, and 80% and 20% of its domestic car rental revenue from
customers renting at airports and locally, respectively.

Budget is a leading rental car supplier to the price-conscious segments of the industry, and Budget was named
“Leading Provider of Qutstanding Car Rental Deals” in April 2007 by Travelzoo, a global Internet media
company. Budget offers its customers Fastbreak, an expedited rental service for frequent travelers, which
operates much like Avis Preferred. Budget also offers the Budget Small Business Program, a program for small
businesses that offers discounted rates and central billing options, and Unlimited Budget, a loyalty program for
travel professionals established by Budget over ten years ago. Budget also offers Where2 and Roving Rapid
Return, as described above.

Reservations

Customers can make Avis and Budget reservations through our Avis and Budget websites at avis.com and
budget.com, through our reservation centers (also referred to as contact centers) toll-free at 1-888-777-AVIS and
1-800-BUDGET?, respectively, through online travel portals, through selected partners, including many major
airlines utilizing direct connect technology, through their travel agent or by calling a location directly. Travel
agents can access our reservation systems through all major global distribution systems and can obtain
information with respect to rental locations, vehicle availability and applicable rate structures through these
systems.

Marketing

Avis and Budget support their premium and value brand positions through a range of marketing channels and
campaigns, including traditional media, such as television, radio and print advertising, as well as Internet and
direct marketing. Avis focuses its marketing around its industry-leading customer loyalty and its award-winning
“We try harder” campaign. Budget builds its marketing around retail advertising, key partnerships and online
marketing campaigns.




We maintain strong links to the travel industry. Avis and Budget offer customers the ability to earn frequent
traveler points with most major airlines’ frequent traveler programs. Avis and Budget are also affiliated with the
tfrequency programs of major hotel companies, including Hilton Hotels Corporation, Hyatt Corporation, '
Starwood Hotels and Resorts Worldwide, Inc. and Wyndham Worldwide. These arrangements provide incentives
to program participants and cooperative marketing opportunities, including call transfer programs and online
links with various partners’ websites. Avis has an agreement with Wyndham Worldwide’s lodging brands
whereby lodging customers making reservations by telephone may be transferred to Avis if they desire to rent a
vehicle.

In 2007, approximately 79% of domestic vehicle rental transactions from our owned and operated Avis locations
in the United States were generated by travelers who rented from Avis under contracts between Avis and the
travelers’ employers or through membership in-an organization with whom Avis has a contractual affiliation
(such as AARP). Avis also has marketing relationships with American Express Company and Sears, Roebuck &
Co., through which we are able to provide customers of these companies with Incentives 1o rent from Avis. Avis
franchisees also have the option to participate in these affiliations. For commercial and leisure travelers who are
vnaffiliated with any of the employers or organizations that we contract with, Avis solicits business through
media, direct mail, e-mail and Internet advertising. Avis conducts various loyalty programs through direct
marketing campaigns, including Avis Preferred, which allows customers to bypass the counter, and Avis First,
which offers our customers certain benefits for frequent rentals, As a result of these programs, Avis has been
ranked as the top rental car brand for customer loyalty for nine consecutive years by a leading third party
research firm. Travel agents are also able to participate in the Avis travel agent reward program, Club Red.

Similarly, Budget offers “Unlimited Budget”, a-loyalty incentive program for travel agents which had
approximately 18,600 travel agents actively enrolled as of December 31, 2007, and the Budget Small Business
Program, a program for small businesses that offers discounted rates and central billing options. Budget also has
contractual arrangements with American Express Company and other organizations which offer members of
these groups incentives to rent from Budget. In connection with its focus on price-conscious customers, Budget
primarily relies on retail advertising, including Internet advertising, and on value pricing to drive customers to
our Budget website, our cal! centers and other distribution channels. Budget also offers proprletary marketmg
programs such as Fastbreak, an expedited rental service for frequent renters.

Our international Avis and Budget operations maintain close relationships with the travel industry through
participation in several non-U.S, based frequent traveler programs with airlines such as Air Canada and Qantas
Airways Limited, as well as participation in Avis Europe’s’programs with British Airways Ple, Deutsche
Lufthansa AG and other carriers.

Franchising . -

' . N i
Of the approximately 2,200 Avis and approximately 1,900 Budget car rental locations we operated and/or
franchised at December 31, 2007, approximately 39% and 57%, respectively, were owned and operated by
franchisees. Revenue derived from our car rental franchisees in 2007 totaled approximately $35 million.
Franchised locations range from large operations at major airport locations to franchise territories encompassing
an entire country to relatively small operations in suburban locations. Fleets of our franchisees range from fleets
in excess of 3,000 vehicles to fleets of fewer than 50 vehicles. Franchising provides us with a source of high
margin revenue as there are relatively limited additional fixed costs associated with fees paid by franchisees to
us. Although franchised locations represent approximately half of the locations that we own or franchise, they
represent only approximately 9% of total domestic revenue generated by the Avis and Budget Systems, as the
average franchised operation is significantly smaller than the average owned location. Generally, we do not
actively seek new franchisees in the United States or Canada.

We enjoy good relationships with our franchisees and meet regularly with them at regional, national and
international meetings. Our relationships with Avis and/or Budget franchisees are governed by franchise
agreements that grant the franchisees the right to operate Avis and/or Budget vehicle rental -businesses in certain
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exclusive territories. These franchise agreements impose obligations on the franchisee regarding the operations of
each franchise and most restrict the franchisee’s ability to transfer its franchise agreement and the franchisee’s
capital stock. Each franchisee is required to adhere to our system standards for each brand as updated and
supplemented by our policy bulletins, brand manuals and service programs. We maintain the right to monitor the
operations of franchisecs and, when applicable, can declare a franchise 1o be in default under its franchise
agreements, which may or may not be curable. We can terminate these franchise agreements for certain defaults,.
including failure to pay franchise fees and failure to adhere to our operational standards.

Our franchise agreements grant the franchisees the exclusive right to operate an Avis andfor Budget car and/or
truck rental business in a particular geographic area. Under agreements that predate our ownership of Avis or
Budget, a limited number of franchisees in the United States are also separately franchised exclusively to sell
used cars under the Avis and/or Budget brand. Qur current franchise agreements provide for a 20-year term.
Certain existing franchise agreements provide for renewal terms for no additional fee so long as the franchisee is
not in default. Upon renewal, the terms and conditions of the franchise agreement may generally be amended
from those contained in the expiring franchise agreements, while language in certain older franchise agreements
may limit our ability to do so. The car rental royalty fee payable to us under franchise agreements is generally |
5% to 7.5% of gross rental revenue but certain franchisees of each brand, both internationally and domestically,
have franchise agreements with different royalty fee structures.

Pursuant to their franchise agreements, some franchisees must meet certain requirements relating to the number
of rental locations in their franchised territory, the number of vehicles available for rental and the amount of their
advertising and promotional expenditures. In general, each franchise agreement provides that the franchisee must
not engage in any other vehicle rental business within the franchised territory during the term of such agreement
and, in the Budget franchise agreement, for 12 months thereafter. Upon termination of a franchise, the franchisee
is also prohibited from using the Avis or Budget name and related marks in any business.

Other revenue

In addition to revenue from vehicle rentals and franchisee royalties, we generate revenue from Avis and Budget
customers through the sale and/or rental of optional products and services such as supplemental equipment (for
example, child seats and ski racks), loss damage waivers, additional/supplemental liability insurance, personal
accident/effects insurance, fuel service options, fuel service charges, electronic toll collection and other ancillary
products and services as described above, such as rentals of Where2 GPS navigation units which in 2007
contributed more than $35 million to pretax income. In 2007, approximately 4% of our vehicle rental operations
revenue was generated by the sale of loss damage waivers under which we agree 1o relieve a customer from
financial responsibility arising from vehicle damage incurred during the rental period if the customer has not
breached the rental agreement. In addition, we receive reimbursement from our customers for certain operating
expenses we incur, including gasoline and vehicle licensing fees, as well as airport concession fees, which we
pay in exchange for the right to operate at airports and other locations.

Websites

Avis and Budget have strong brand presence on the Internet through their websites, avis.com and budget.com, as
well as third party websites. In 2007, the number of Avis and Budget vehicle rental customers who obtained rate,
location and fleet information and then reserved their rentals directly on these websites increased. Direct
bookings via our websites incur less cost per transaction than bookings made through our voice reservation
agents or through third party distribution systems. Therefore, an increase in Internet bookings generates cost
savings for us. In addition, both Avis and Budget have agreements to promote their car rental services with major
Internet portals and have a strong advertising presence on various search engines. Bookings over the Internet
accounted for 52% of Budget’s 2007 domestic reservations, with 32% of reservations derived from bookings on
budget.com. Bookings over the Internet accounted for 32% of Avis’ domestic reservations, with 25% derived
from bookings on avis.com. In 2007, avis.com reservations grew by 16% and budget.com reservations grew by
10% over the prior year.




The Wizard System

We own the Wizard System, our worldwide reservation, rental, data processing and information management
system. The Wizard System enables us to process over one million incoming customer inquiries each day,
providing our customers with accurate and timely information about our locations, rental rates and vehicle
availability, as well as the ability to place or modify reservations. Additionally, the Wizard System is linked to all
major travel distribution networks worldwide and provides real-time processing for travel agents, travel industry
partners (such as airlines), corporate travel departments and individual consumers through our websites or calls
to our contact centers. The Wizard System also provides personal profile information to our reservation and
rental agents to better service our customers. Among the principal features of the Wizard System are:

* “Roving Rapid Return”, wireless technology which permits customers who are returning vehicles to
obtain a printed charge record from service agents at the vehicle as it is being returned;

*  “Preferred Service”, Avis’ expedited rental service that provides enrolled customers with a printed
Preferred Service rental record in their pre-assigned vehicle and a fast, convenient check-out;

* “Fastbreak”, Budget’s expedited rental service which allows for a faster processing of rentals and
service for enrolled customers;

* “Wizard on Wheels”, which enables us to assign vehicles and complete rental agreements while
- customers are being transported to the rental vehicle;

* “Flight Arrival Notification”, a system that alerts rental locations when flights have arrived so that
vehicles can be assigned and paperwork prepared avtomatically;

* “Avis Link”, which automatically identifies when a customer with a profile on record is entitled to
special rental rates and conditions, and therefore sharply reduces the number of instances in which we
inadvertently fail to give Avis renters the benefits of negotiated rate arrangements to which they are
entitled; :

* “Credit Card Link”, which allows both brands to verify all major credit cards through a real-time
connection during the rental processing;

* interactive interfaces through third party computerized reservation systems such as Galileo and Sabre;

* “Avis Interactive”, which allows select corporate clients to easily view and analyze their rental activity
via the Internet through account analysis and activity reports, allowing these ctients to better manage
their travel budgets and monitor employee compliance with applicable travel policies;

*  “Direct Connect”, a service offered to business to business partners that allows them to easily connect
their electronic systems to the Wizard System, for either brand, and to obtain rate, location and fleet
information as well as book reservations for their customers; and

* operations management programs that, among other things, enable field personnel to manage which
vehicles will be rented next.

We also use data supplied from the Wizard System and airline reservation systems in certain proprietary
information management systems to maintain centralized control of major business processes such as fleet
acquisition and logistics, sales to corporate accounts and determination of rental rates. The principal components
of the systems we employ include:

* Fleer planning model. We have created a comprehensive decision tool to develop fleet plans and
schedules for the acquisition and disposition of our fleet, along with fleet age, mix, mileage and cost
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reports based upon these plans and schedules, This tool allows management to monitor and change fleet
volume and composition on a daily basis and to optimize our fleet plan based on estimated business
levels and available repurchase and guaranteed depreciation programs.

Yield management. We have created a yield management system which is designed to enhance profits
by providing greater control of vehicle availability and rate avatlability changes at our rental locations.
The system monitors and forecasts supply and demand to support our efforts to optimize volume and
rate at each location. Integrated into this yield management system is a fleet distribution module that
takes into consideration the costs as well as the potential benefits associated with distributing vehicles to
various rental locations within a geographic area to accommodate rental demand at these locations. The
fleet distribution module makes specific recommendations for movement of vehicles between locations.

Pricing decision support system. Pricing in the vehicle rental industry is highly competitive and
complex. To improve our ability to respond to rental rate changes in the marketplace, we have
developed sophisticated systems to gather and report competitive industry rental rate changes every day.
The system, using data from third party reservation systems as its source of information, automatically
scans rate movements and reports significant changes to a staff of pricing analysts for evaluation. The
system greatly enhances our ability to gather and respond to rate changes in the marketplace.

Business mix model. We have developed a strategic planning model to evaluate discrete components of
our business relative to each other. The model considers revenue and costs to determine the potential
margin contribution of each discrete segment. The model develops business mix and fleet optimization
recommendations by using data from our financial systems, the Wizard System and the fleet and
revenue management systems along with management’s objectives and targets.

Customer profitability model. We have developed a sophisticated model which analyzes a corporate
customer’s rental pattern to estimate the flect costs, operations costs and division overhead expenses
associated with that customer’s vehicle rentals. We use this profitability mode! to determine the
financial merit of individual corporate contracts.

Enterprise data warehouse. We have developed a sophisticated and comprehensive electronic data
storage and retrieval system which retains information related to.various aspects of our business. This
data warehouse allows us to take advantage of comprehensive management reports, query capability and
easy access to data for strategic decision making for both brands.

Sales and marketing systems. We have developed a sophisticated system of online data screens which
enables our sales force to analyze key account information of our corporate customers including
historical and current rental activity, revenue and booking sources, top renting locations, rate usage
categories and customer satisfaction data. We use this information, which is updated weekly and
captured on a country-by-country basis, to determine opportunities for revenue growth, profitability and
improvement.

Interactive adjustments. We have developed a multi-linked customer data system which allows us to
easily retrieve pertinent customer information and make needed adjustments online for superior
customer service. This data system links with other accounting systems to handle any charge card
transactions automatically.

General. We maintain a single fleet of vehicles for Avis and Budget. We rent a wide variety of vehicles,
inctuding luxury and specialty vehicles, Qur fleet consists primarily of vehicles from the current and immediately
preceding model year. Rentals are generally made on a daily, weekly or monthly basis. Rental charges are

10



computed on the basis of the length of the rental or, in some cases, on the length of the rental plus a mileage
charge. Rates vary at different locations depending on the type of vehicle rented, the tocal marketplace and
competitive and cost factors. Rentals are made utilizing rate plans under which the customer is responsible for
gasoline used during the rental. We also generally offer our customers the convenience of leaving a rented
vehicle at a location in a city other than the one in which it was rented, although, consistent with industry
practices, a drop-off charge or special intercity rate may be imposed. We facilitate one-way car rentals between
corporate-owned and franchised locations in the United States that enable us to operate as an integrated network
of locations.

Vehicle purchasing. We participate in a variety of vehicle purchase programs with major domestic and foreign
vehicle manufacturers. General Motors is the featured supplier for Avis, and Ford is the featured supplier for
Budget. During 2007, approximately 44%, 26% and 15% of the cars acquired for our U.S. car rental fleet were
manufactured by General Motors, Ford and Chrysler, respectively, compared to 42%, 32% and 12%,
respectively, in 2006. During 2007, we also purchased Hyundai, Kia, Nissan, Subaru, Suzuki, Toyota and -
Volkswagen vehicles. The decrease in the portion of our fleet sourced from Ford in 2007 is reflective of our
overall effonts to diversify our fleet, which we expect to continue in 2008, The substantial majority of vehicles
used in our rental car business are purchased through our principal U.S. vehicle financing program, which is an
asset-backed facility.

Vehicle disposition. We generally hold a vehicle in our domestic fleet for a term of four to fourteen months. For
2007 and 2006, approximately 75% and 88%, respectively, of the rental cars purchased for our domestic car fleet
were subject to agreements requiring antomobile manufacturers 1o repurchase them or guarantee our rate of
depreciation during a specified period of time. Cars subject to these agreements are sometimes referred to as
“program vehicles” or “program cars” and cars not subject to these agreements are sometimes referred to as “risk
cars” or “risk vehicles”. The programs in which we participate currently require that the program vehicles be
maintained in our fleet for a minimum number of months {typically four to twelve months) and impose return
conditions, including those related to mileage and condition. At the time of return 10 the manufacturer, we
receive the price guaranteed at the time of purchase and are thus protected from fluctuations in the prices of
previously-owned vehicles in the wholesale market at the time of disposition, The future percentages of program
vehicles in our fleet will be dependent on the availability and attractiveness of manufacturers’ repurchase and
guaranteed depreciation programs, and we expect percentages for 2008 to be lower than 2007 as we acquire more
risk vehicles in order to mitigate the anticipated increased cost of program vehicles. We dispose of our risk
vehicles largely through automobile auctions, including auctions that enable deaiers to purchase vehicles online
more guickly than traditional auctions.

Of the approximately 407,000 cars from our rental car fleet that we sold in 2007 (compared to 445,000 that we
sold in 2006), we sold approximately 88% back to the manufacturers pursuant to repurchase or guaranteed
depreciation programs and the rest through third party channels such as wholesale auctions. In 2008, we expect
the percentage of cars sold back to the manufacturers to decrease as we acquire more risk vehicles.

Utilization and seasonality. Our car rental business is subject to seasonal variations in customer demand, with
the summer vacation period representing the peak season. The general seasonal variation in demand, along with
more localized changes in demand at each of our locations, causes us to vary our fleet size over the course of the
year. For 2007, our average monthly fleet size in the U.S. ranged from a low of approximately 300,000 vehicles
in December to a high of approximately 388,000 vehicles in July. Our average fleet size increased 4.2% in 2007,
1o 340,899 vehicles. Domestic fleet utilization for 2007, which is based on the number of rental days (or portion
thereof) that vehicles are rented compared to the total amount of time that vehicles are available for rent, ranged
from 68% in December to 79% in August and averaged 75% for 2007. Our calculation of utilization may not be
comparable to other companies’ calculation of similarly titled statistics.

Maintenance. We place a strong emphasis on vehicle maintenance since quick and proper repairs are critical io
fleet utilization. To accomplish this task we employ a fully-certified National Institute for Automotive Service
Excellence (“ASE") technician instructor at our headquarters. This instructor has developed a specialized training
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program for our 418 technicians who operate in approximately 100 maintenance and damage repair centers for
both Avis and Budget. We use advanced diagnostic equipment, incleding General Motors’ “Techline” and “Tech
2" diagnostic computers and Ford's PDS diagnostic system. Qur technician training department also prepares its
own technical service bulletins that can be retrieved electronically at all of our repair locations. Approximately
89% of our technicians are ASE-certified.

Customer service

Our commitment to delivering a consistently high level of customer service is a critical element of our success
and strategy. Each year, our internal quality auditors conduct approximately 1,000 unannounced reviews of
locations to measure service levels by location. We identify specific areas of achievement and opportunity from
these assessments. We address areas of improvement on a system-wide level and develop standard methods and
measures, The major focus areas of these assessments include (i) vehicle condition and availability; (i1) customer
interaction, including helpfulness and courtesy; and (iii) location image. In addition, we utilize a toll-free “80{”
number and a dedicated customer service e-mail address to allow customers of both Avis and Budget to report
problems directly to our customer relations department. Location associales and managers also receive training
and are empowered to resolve virtually all customer issues at the location level. We prepare weekly and monthly
reports on the types and number of complaints received for use in conjunction with the customer satisfaction
reports by location management as feedback of customer service delivery. Finally, we conduct daily location-
specific customer satisfaction tracking by sending web-based surveys to recent customers of our top volume
locations.

Airport concession fees

In general, concession fees for on-airport locations are based on a percentage of total commissionable revenue
(as defined by each airport authority), subiect to minimum annual guaranteed amounts, Concessions are typically
awarded by airport authorities every three to five years based upon competitive bids. Our concession agreements
with the various airport authorities generally impose certain minimum operating requirements, provide for
relocation in the event of future construction and provide for abatement of the minimum annual guarantee in the
event of extended low passenger volume.

Competition

The car rental industry is characterized by intense price and service competition. Competition in the U.S. vehicle
rental operations business is based primarily upon price, reliability, vehicle availability, national distribution,
usability of booking systems, ease of rentu! and return and other elements of customer service. In addition,
competition is influenced strongly by adventising, marketing and brand reputation. We compete primarily with
the following car rental companies: Hertz Global Holdings, Inc., Dollar Thrifty Automotive Group, and
Enterprise Rent-A-Car Company, which also operates the National Car Rental and Alamo brands.

2007 Acquisitions

On October 23, 2007 we acquired a minority interest in Carey Holdings, Inc., the parent company of Carey
International, Inc., a worldwide provider of chauffeured ground transportation services. In connection with this
transaction, we invested approximately $60 million in cash and acquired approximately 48% percent of Carey’s
common stock. We also acquired a one-year option to increase our ownership stake to 80% of Carey’s common
stock, subject to certain conditions, which would likely include the assumption or repayment of Carey’s existing
indebtedness. If we exercise of our option, we expect to expand revenue by offering our customers a fuil range of
ground transportation products.

In 2007, we also purchased the car and truck rental operating rights and/or assets from approximately 13 of our

former Avis and Budget domestic franchisees for approximately $10 million in cash. Such acquisitions were not
significant individually or in the aggregate to our business.
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Truck rental business
Operations

Budget’s truck rental business is one of the largest local and one-way truck rental businesses in the United States.
The Budget truck rental business has a combined fleet of approximately 28,000 trucks, with a median truck age
of less than three years, which are rented through a network of approximately 2,500 dealers, 230 company-
operated and 85 franchisee-operated locations throughout the continental United States, The Budget truck rental
business serves both the consumer and light commercial sectors. The consumer sector consists primarily of
individuals who rent trucks to move household goods on either a one-way or local basis. The light commercial
sector consists of a wide range of businesses that rent light- to medium-duty trucks, which we define as trucks
having a gross vehicle weight of less than 26,000 pounds, for a variety of commercial applications. In 2007, the
Budget truck rental business generated total revenue of approximately $416 million.

We primarily advertise in “yellow pages” telephone directories to promote our truck rental business to potential
customers. Budget truck rental customers can make reservations through the Budget truck rental reservation
center toll-free at 1-800-GO-BUDGET, through our Budget truck rental website at budgettruck.com or by calling
a location directly. In addition, we have established online affiliations with websites like moving.com to reach
our targeted audience. Budget truck rental reservations may also be made through the budget.com website.

In 2007, we completed the integration of our Denver-based corporate truck operations into our Parsippany
headquarters and existing car-rental facilities, eliminated certain positions and significantly reduced separate
senior management for our truck rental operations.

Distribution

Budget"s truck rental business is offered through a national network, which included approximately 2,500 dealers
as of December 31, 2007. These independently owned dealers primarily operate self-storage facilities, rental
centers, hardware stores, service stations and other similar retail service businesses. In addition to the dealers’
principal businesses, the dealers rent our light- and medium-duty trucks to consumers and to our commercial
accounts and are responsible for collecting payments on our behalf. The dealers receive a commission on all
truck rentals and ancillary equipment rentals, Generally, dealership agreements may be terminated by either party
upon 30 to 90 days’ prior written notice,

Strategic Partnerships and Agreements

In September 2007, Budget entered into a co-branding agreement with Public Storage, the largest owner and
operator of self-storage facilities worldwide, as an exclusive third-party provider of rental trucks to Public
Storage customers. As part of this agreement, approximately 200 Public Storage locations in the U.S. will offer
on-site Budget truck rentals, and the parties will engage in cross-promotional efforts, including co-branding of
websites and “yellow pages™ advertising. Budget has also entered into a strategic partnership with Sears,
Roebuck & Co., whereby Budget will have the opportunity to open Budget truck rental locations at certain Sears
appliance outlet stores nationwide. In September 2007, Budget was accepted as an “approved vendor” of truck
rental services by the U.S. Government Services Administration (“GSA™). The GSA agreement allows Budget to
bid and/or receive contracts from any federal agency for temporary fleet replacement, special events, naturat
disasters and other general use,

Competition
The truck rental industry is characterized by intense price and service competition. We compete with a large
number of truck rental companies throughout the country, including U-Haul International, Inc., Penske Truck

Leasing Corporation, Ryder System, Inc., Enterprise Rent-A-Car Company and many others.
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Seasonality

Our truck rental operations are subject to seasonal demand patterns, with generally higher levels of demand
occurring during the late spring and summer months when most self moves occur, with the third quarter typically
being our busiest quarter. Generally, December is also a strong month due to increased retail sates activity and
package deliveries.

Ancillary products and insurance coverages

We supplement our daily truck rental revenue by offering customers a range of ancillary optional products. We
rent automobile towing equipment and other moving accessories such as hand trucks, furniture pads and moving
supplies, as well as Where2 GPS navigation units. We also make available to customers a range of optional
liability-limiting products and coverages such as physical damage waivers, automobile towing protection,
personal accident and cargo insurance, and supplemental liability insurance. These ancillary products enhance
our appeal to consumers by offering customers “one-stop” moving services.

Insurance

We generally assume the risk of liability to third parties arising from vehicle rental services in the United States,
Canada, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands, for up to $1 million per occurrence, through a combination of
self-insurance, insurance coverage provided by one of our domestic subsidiaries and insurance coverage secured
from one or more unaffiliated domestic insurance carriers. We retain the exposure for up to $9 million per
occurrence, in excess of the previously described $1 million level, through an unaffiliated fronting carrier who is
reinsured by our offshore captive insurance company, Constellation Reinsurance Co., Lid. We also purchase
additional excess insurance coverage from a combination of unaffiliated excess carriers.

We insure the risk of liability to third parties in Argentina, Australia and New Zealand through a combination of
unaffiliated carriers and our affiliates. These carriers provide coverage supplemental to minimum local
requirements.

Trademarks and intellectual property

The service marks “Avis” and “Budget”, related marks incorporating the words “Avis” or “Budget”, and related
logos and marks such as “We try harder” are material to our vehicle rental business. Our subsidiaries, licensees
and franchisees actively use these marks. All of the material marks used by the Avis and Budget Systems are
registered (or have applications pending for registration) with the United States Patent and Trademark Office as
well as all countries worldwide where Avis and Budget have operations. Our subsidiaries own the marks, patents
and other intellectual property, including the Wizard System, used in our business.

FINANCIAL DATA OF SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

Financial data for our segments and geographic areas are reported in Note 23—Segment Information to our
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K,

REGULATION

We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations, including those relating to taxing and licensing of
vehicles, franchising, consumer credit, consumer protection, environmental protection, insurance, privacy and
labor matters,

Envirenmental

The principal environmental regulatory requirements applicable to our vehicle rental operations relate to the
ownership or use of tanks for the storage of petroleum products, such as gasoline, diesel fuel and waste oils; the
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treatment or discharge of waste waters; and the generation, storage, transportation and off-site treatment or
disposal of solid or liquid wastes. We operate approximately 440 Avis and Budget locations at which petroleum
products are stored in underground or above ground tanks. We have instituted an environmental compliance
program designed to ensure that these tanks are in compliance with applicable technical and operational
requirements, including the replacement and upgrade of underground tanks to comply with the December 1998
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency bpgrade mandate and periodic testing and leak monitoring of
underground storage'tanks. We believe that the locations where we currently operate are in compliance, in all
material respects, with such regulatory requirements.

We may also be subject to requirements related to the remediation of, or the liability for remediation of,
substances that have been released into the environment at properties owned or operated by us or at properties to
which we send substances for treatment or disposal, Such remediation requirements may be imposed without
regard to fault and liability for environmental remediation can be substantial.

We may be eligible for reimbursement or payment of remediation costs ussociated with future releases from
regulated underground storage tanks and have established funds to assist in the payment of remediation costs for
releases from certain registered underground tanks. Subject to certain deductibles, the availability of funds,
compliance status of the tanks and the nature of the release, these tank funds may be available to us for use in
remediating future releases from our tank systems. - ‘

Loss damage waivers

A traditional revenue source for the vehicle rental industry has been the sale of loss damage waivers, by which
rental companies agree to relieve a customer from financial responsibility arising from vehicle damage incurred
during the rental period if there has been no breach of the rental agreement. Approximately 4% of our revenue
during 2007 was generated by the sale of loss damage waivers. To date, 24 states have enacted legislation which
requires disclosure to each customer at the time of rental that damage to the rented vehicle may be covered by the
customer’s personal automobile insurance and that loss damage waivers may not be necessary. In addition, New
York permits the sale of loss damage waivers at a capped rate per day based on the vehicle manufacturer’s
suggested retail price. Hlinois, Nevada and California have similar statutes, which establish the daily rate that can
be charged for loss damage waivers,

Insurance

As a result of our reinsurance of the optional insurance coverages that we offer through unaffiliated third party
insurance companies as well as other insurance obligations, we are subject to regulation under the insurance
statutes, including insurance holding company statutes, of the jurisdictions in which our insurance company
subsidiaries are domiciled. These regulations vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction, but generally require
insurance holding companies and insurers that are subsidiaries of insurance holding companies to register and
file certain reports, including information concerning their capital structure, ownership, financial condition and
general business operations with the regulatory authority of the applicable jurisdiction, and require prior
regulatory agency approval of changes in control of an insurer and intra-corporate transfers of assets within the
holding company structure. Such insurance statutes may also require that we obtain limited licenses to sell
optional insurance coverage to our customers at the time of rental.

Franchise regulation

The sale of franchises is regulated by various state laws, as well as by the Federal Trade Commission (the
“FTC”). The FTC requires that franchisors make extensive disclosure to prospective franchisees but does not
require registration. A number of states require registration or disclosure in connection with franchise offers and
sales. In addition, several states have “franchise relationship laws™ or “business opportunity laws” that limit the
ability of the franchisor to terminate franchise agreements or to withhold consent to the renewal or transfer of

I5




these agreements. Although our franchising operations have not been materially adversely affected by such
existing regulations, we cannot predict the effect of any future federal, state or local legislation or regulation.

Privacy

Laws in some countries and jurisdictions limit the types of information we may collect about individuals with
whom we deal or propose to deal, as well as how we collect, retain and use the information that we are permitted
to collect, some of which is non-public personally identifiable information. The centralized nature of our
information systems requires the routine flow of information about customers and potential customers across
national borders, particularly into the United States. If this flow of information were to become illegal, or subject
to onerous restrictions, our ability to serve our customers could be seriously impaired for an extended peried of
time. In addition, our failure to maintain the security of the data we hold, whether as a result of our own error or
the actions of others, could harm our reputation or give rise to legal liabilities leading to lower revenue, increased
costs and otherwise adversely impact our results of operations.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2007, we employed approximately 30,000 employees, of which approximately 10,800
people were employed on a part-time basis. Approximately 27% of our employees are covered by collective
bargaining agreements. We believe our employee relations are satisfactory. We have never experienced a large-
scale work stoppage.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider each of the following risks and all of the other information set forth in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. Based on the information currently known 1o us, we believe that the following information
identifies the most significant risk fuctors affecting our company in each of these categories of risk. However, the
risks and uncertainties our company fuces are not limited to those described below. Additional risks and
uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial may also adversely affect
our business. Past financial performance may not be a reliable indicator of future performance and historical
trends should not be used to anticipate results or trends in future periods.

Risks related to our business

The high level of competition in the vehicle rental industry may lead to reduced rental volumes, downward
pricing or an inability to increase our prices, which could have an adverse impact on our results of operations.

The vehicle rental industry in which we operate is highly competitive. We believe that price is one of the primary
competitive factors in the vehicle rental industry. Our competitors. some of whom may have access to substantial
capital, may seek to compete aggressively on the basis of pricing. To the extent that we match competitors’
downward pricing, it could have an adverse impact on our resuits of operations. To the extent that we do not
match or remain within a reasonable competitive margin of our competitors’ pricing, it could also have an
adverse impact on our resulis of operations, as we may lose rental volume. The Internet has increased pricing
transparency ameng vehicle rental companies by enabling cost-conscious customers to more easily obtain and
compare the rates available from various vehicle rental companies for any given rental. This transparency may
increase the prevalence and intensity of price competition in the future.

We face risks of increased fleet casts, both generally and the possibility that manufacturers could change or
cease their repurchase or guaranteed depreciation programs.

Fleet costs represented approximately 29% of our aggregate expenses for 2007 and can vary from year to year
based on the prices at which we are able to purchase and dispose of rental vehicles. For 2007 and 2006,
approximately 75% and 88%, respectively, of the rental cars purchased for our domestic car {lect were the
subject of agreements requiring automobile manufacturers to repurchase them or guarantee the depreciation rate
for a specified period of time. We refer to cars subject to such agreements as “program cars.” Under these
repurchase and guaranteed depreciation programs, automobile manufacturers agree to repurchase cars at a
specified price during a specified time period or guarantee the rate of depreciation for a specified period of time,
typically subject to certain car condition and mileage requirements. Repurchase and guaranteed depreciation
programs, therefore, enable us to determine, in advance, our depreciation expense, which is a significant cost
factor in our car rental operations. Repurchase and goaranteed deprectation programs also limit the risk to us that
the market value of a car, at the time of its disposition, will be less than its estimated residual (or depreciated)
value.

Automobile manufacturers may not continue to sell cars to us subject to repurchase or guaranteed depreciation
programs at all or on terms consistent with past practice. The overall cost of cars subject to repurchase or
guaranteed depreciation programs could also increase if the manufacturers were to make changes to these
programs, particularly if such changes were to result in a decrease in the repurchase price or guaranteed
depreciation without a corresponding decrease to the original purchase price. Repurchase or guaranieed
depreciation programs also generally provide us with flexibility to reduce the size of our fleet rapidly in response
to an economic downturn or changes in demand by returning cars sooner than originally expected. This flexibility
may be reduced in the future to the extent the percentage of program cars in our car rental fleet decreases or this
feature of repurchase or guaranteed depreciation programs is altered.
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We face risks due to a possible decline in the financial condition of automobile manufacturers.

During 2007, approximately 69% of the cars acquired for our U.S. car rental fleet were manufactured by either
General Motors Corporation or Ford Motor Company. A default on any repurchase or guaranteed depreciation
agreement, particularly with respect to GM or Ford, might feave us with a substantial unpaid claim against the
manufacturer with respect to program cars that were either (i) sold for an amount less than the amount guaranteed
under the applicable agreement or (ii) sold and returned to the car manufacturer but for which we were not paid,
as well as potential additional expenses if the prices at which we were able to dispose of program cars were less
than the specified prices under the repurchase or guaranteed depreciation program. Any increased risk with
respect to the likelihood of these defaults or a decline in the results of operations or financial condition of the
manufacturers of the cars we purchase could also impact our ability to finance the purchase of cars to maintain
our car rental fleet.

We face risks of increased fleet costs as a result of the increase in our number of “risk” vehicles.

We have no control over the terms of manufacturers’ repurchase and guaranteed depreciation programs, and we
anticipate that the cost of program vehicles will increase in 2008. We intend to reduce the number of program
cars we purchase in 2008 as we acquire more vehicles not covered by repurchase or guaranteed depreciation
programs (“risk vehicles”) in order o mitigate such increased costs. We currently sell risk vehicles through
auctions, third party resellers and other channels, which channels may not produce stable used vehicle pricing in
the future. The costs of our risk vehicles may be materially impacted by the relative strength of the used vehicle
marketplace, particularly the marketplace for roughly one-year-old used cars. A decline in the prices at which we
sell risk vehicles could have an adverse impact on our fleet holding costs and profitability.

Our car rental business is dependent on airline passenger traffic, and disruptions in travel patterns could
harm our business.

In 2007, we generated approximately 81% of our domestic car rental revenue from our corporate-owned
on-airport locations. As a result, a decline in airline passenger traffic could have an adverse impact on our results
of operations. Events that affect air travel could include economic downturns, work stoppages, military conflicts,
terrorist incidents or threats, pandemic diseases, natural disasters or the response of governments to any of these
events. We also face increased costs of maintaining our positions on-airport through increased competitive
bidding and minimum airport guarantees.

A decline in general economic conditions, including a decline in the residential housing market, could result
in a decline in business and leisure travel, and a decline in truck rentals, which could harm our business.

Our results of operations are affected by downturns in economic activity in the United States and abroad. An
economic downturn could result in a decline in both business and leisure travel and cause a decline in the volume
of car rental transactions, and a decline in home sales may result in a decline in truck remtal transactions, both of
which could have an adverse impact on our business. In the case of a decline in car rental or truck rental activity,
we may reduce rental rates t0 meet competitive pressures, which could have an adverse impact on our results of
operations. A general decline in economic conditions also may have an adverse impact on residual values
realized on the disposition of our risk vehicles in the wholesale market.

We are dependent on third party distribution channels, and the success of our business depends in significant
part on these relationships.

The operators of third party distribution channels, through which we generate approximately 45% of our
domestic reservations, generally can cancel or modify their agreements with us upon relatively short notice.
Changes in our pricing agreements. commission schedules or arrangements with third party distribution channels.
the termination of any of our relationships or a reduction in the transaction volume of such channels could have
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an adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Most of these reservations are
made in connection with global distribution systems or GDS (Amadeus, Galileo, Sabre and Worldspan), which
aggregate reservations from various sources. Our largest third party source of reservations (other than from GDS)
in 2007 was responsible for less than 3% of our domestic reservations.

Our business is seasonal, and a disruption in rental acnvtty during our peak season could matenally adversely
affect our results of operations.

In our business, the third quarter of the year has historically been our strongest quarter due to the increased level
of leisure travel and household moving activity. In 2007, the third quarter accounted for approximately 28% of
our vehicle rental revenue and more than 39% of EBITDA for each of our Domestic Car Rental, International
Car Rental and Truck Rental segments. Any occurrence that disrupts rental activity during the third quarter could
have a disproportionately adverse impact on our liquidity and/or our results of operations.

An increase in interest rates would increase the cost of servicing our debt and could reduce our profitability.

A significant amount of our borrowings, primarily our vehicle-backed borrowings, bear interest at variable rates
and expose us to interest rate risk. If interest rates increase, whether because of an increase in market interest
rates or an increase in our own cost of borrowing, our debt service obligations for our variable rate indebtedness
would increase even though the amount of borrowings remained the same, and our net income could be adversely
affected. As of December 31, 2007, our total outstanding debt of approximately $7.4 billion included interest rate
sensttive debt of approximately $500 million {either by its original terms or through the use of interest rate
derivatives), which had a weighted average interest rate of approximately 6% per annum. During our seasonal
borrowing peak in 2007, outstanding interest rate sensitive debt totaled approximately $1.9 billion, with a
weighted average interest rate of approximately 6% per annum.

Our derivative instruments may impact our results of operations.

We utilize derivative instruments to manage a portion of our risk related to interest rate fluctuations, The
derivative instruments we use are typically in the form of interest rate swaps. Periodically, we are required to
determine the change in fair vatue, called the “mark to market,” of these derivative instruments, which can result
in a non-cash charge or gain being recognized in our financial results for a period preceding the period or periods
in which settlement occurs under the derivative instruments and interest payments are made. Changes or shifts in
interest rates can significantly impact the valuation of our derivatives and therefore could expose us to substantial
mark-to-market losses or gains if interest rates fluctuate materially from the time when the derivatives were
entered into, Accordingly, a fluctuation in interest rates may impact our financial position, results of operations,
and cash flows.

We may not be successful in implementing our business strategies and growth initiatives.

'
)

We plan to increase revenues from sources beyond time and mileage rental fees generated by our on-airport
locations. In addition to expanding revenue generated by additional products and services offered to our on- and
off-airport customers, we plan to expand our presence in the domestic off-airport segment of the car rental
market and expand our insurance replacement and local sales at new and existing off-airport locations through a
dedicated local sales team. Our ability to generate significant revenue at new or existing off-airport locations may
depend on many factors, including our ability to successfully market to off-airport renters, including local
customers needing cars while their vehicles are temporarily unavailable due to repairs or other reasons, and our
ability to acquir¢ and maintain our status as an approved car rental company by insurance companies. As a resuli,
revenues generated at off-airport locations may not increase substantially in the short-term. We also anticipate
generating sustainable cost savings through implementation of our Performance Excellence process improvement
initiative and other efforts. If we are unable to successfully implement these strategies, our financial condition
and results of operations could be adversely impacted.
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The exercise of our option to purchase a majority interest in Carey Holdings, Inc., or future acquisitions of
existing Avis or Budget franchisees or other businesses, could have an adverse impact on our results of
operations.

We have an option to purchase additional interests which would increase our total ownership to approximately
80% of the common stock of Carey Holdings, Inc., which option expires October 23, 2008. Our decision to
exercise this option may involve numerous risks, including those associated with integrating Carey’s operations,
technology and personnel into cur business, potential disruption of our ongoing business and distraction of
management, and exposure to existing as well as unknown liabilities, including litigation involving Carey.
Exercise of the option is subject to certain conditions, which would likely include assumption or repayment of .
Carey’s existing debt facility. Our acquisition of Carey may not be accretive to our earnings and may negatively
impact our balance sheet or results of operations. In the future, we may also decide to acquire or invest in other
businesses (including the acquisition of existing franchisees), some of which may be significant,.and which
acquisitions or investments may involve the same or similar risks.

We face risks arising from our heavy reliance on communications networks and centralized information
systems.

We rely heavily on information systems, including our reservation system, to accept reservations, process rental
and sales transactions, manage our fleet of vehicles, account for our activities and otherwise conduct our
business. We have centralized our information systems, and we rely on communications service providers to link
our systems with the business locations these systems serve. A failure of a major system, or a major disruption of
communications between the system and the locations it serves, could cause a loss of reservations, interfere with
our ability to manage our fleet, slow rental and sales processes, and otherwise materially adversely affect our
ability to manage our business effectively. Our systems’ business continuity plans and insurance programs are
designed to mitigate such a risk, not eliminate it.

In addition, because our systems contain personally identifiable non-public information about millions of
individuals and businesses, our failure to maintain the security of the data we hold, whether as a result of our own
error or the actions of others, could harm our reputation, give rise to legal liabilities leading to lower revenue and
increased costs or otherwise adversely impact our results of operations.

We face risks related to liability and insurance.

Our businesses expose us to claims for personal injury, death and property damage related to the use of our
vehicles and for workers’ compensation claims and other employment-related claims by our employees. We may
become exposed to uninsured liability at levels in excess of our historical levels resulting from unusually high
losses or otherwise. In addition, liabilities in respect of existing or future claims may exceed the level of our
reserves and/or our insurance, and we may not have sufficient capital available to pay any uninsured claims.
Furthermore, insurance with unaffiliated carriers may not continue to be available to us on economically
reasonable terms or at all.

Environmental regulations could subject us to liability for fines or damages.

We are subject to federal, state, local and foreign environmental laws and regulations in connection with our
operations, including, among other things, with respect to the ownership and operation of tanks for the storage of
petroleum products, such as gasoline, diesel fuel and motor and waste oils. We have established a compliance
program for our tank systems that is intended té'ensure that the tanks are properly registered with the state or
other jurisdiction in which the tanks are located and have been either replaced or upgraded to meet applicable
leak detection and spill, overfill, corrosion protection and vapor recovery requirements. These tank systems may
not at all times remain free from undetected leaks; and the use of these tanks may result in significant spills.
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We have made, and will continue to make, expenditures to comply with environmental laws and regulations,
including, among others, expenditures for the cleanup of contamination at our. owned and leased properties, as
well as contamination at other locations at which our wastes have reportedly been identified. Qur compliance -
with existing or future environmental laws and regulations may, however, require material expenditures by us or
otherwise have-an adverse impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows,

Changes in the U.S. and foreign legal and regulatory environment that affect our operations, including laws
and regulations relating to the insurance products we sell, consumer privacy, data security, automobile-related
liability and insurance rates, could disrupt our business, increase our expenses or otherwise have an adverse
impact on our results of operations.

We are subject to a wide variety of laws and regulations in the United States and the other countries and
jurisdictions in which we operate, and changes in the level of government regulation of cur business have the
potential to materially alter our business practices or our profitability. Depending on the jurisdiction, those
changes may come about through new legislation, the issuance of new laws and regulations or changes in the
interpretation of existing laws and regulations by a court, regulatory body or governmental official.

Optional insurance products, including, but not limited to, supplemental liability insurance, personal accident
insurance and personal effects protection, we offer to renters providing various insurance coverages in our
domestic vehicle rental operations are regulated under state laws governing the licenéing of such products. In our
international car rental operations, our offering of optional products providing insurance coverages historically
has not been regulated.

Any changes in U.S. or foreign law that change our operating requirements with respect to optional insurance
products could increase our costs of compliance or make it uneconomical to offer such products, which would
lead to a reduction in revenue. If customers decline to purchase supplemental liability insurance products through
us as a result of any changes in these laws or otherwise, our results of operations could be materially adversely
affected.

In almost every state, we recover various costs associated with the title and registration of our vehicles. In
addition, where permitted, we also recover cerfain costs, including concession costs imposed by an airport
authority or the owner and/or operator of the premises from which our vehicle is rented. Our long-standing
business practice has been to separately state the existence of these additional costs in our rental agreements and
invoices, and disclose to consumers additional surcharges used to recover such costs together with an estimated
total price, inclusive of these surcharges, in all distribution channels. This standard practice comports with the
Federal Trade Commission Act and has been upheld by several courts. We may in the future be subject to
potential legislative changes or administrative action which could limit, restrict or prohibit our ability to
separately state, charge and recover such costs, which would result in a cost reallocation. If any such changes
were to be enacted there may be an adverse impact or limitation on our ability to recover all of the surcharges we
currently charge, which could adversely impact our profitability and results of operations.

We may be held responsible by third parties, regulators or courts for the actions of, or failures to act by,
our licensees, dealers or independent operators, which exposes us to possible fines, other liabilities and bad
publicity.

Our car and truck rental franchisee and dealer locations are independently owned and operated, We also operate
many of our corporate locations through agreements with “agency operators,” which are third party independent
contractors who receive commissions to operate such locations. Our agreements with our franchisees, dealers and
agency operators require that they comply with all laws and regulations applicable to their businesses, including
our internal policies and standards. Under these agreements, our franchisees, dealers and agency operators retain
control over the employment and management of all personnel. Third parties, regulators or courts may seek to
hold us responsible for the actions of, or failures to act by, our franchisees, dealers or agency operators. Although
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we maintain the right to monitor the operations of these franchisees, dealers and agency operators, and under
certain circumstances have the ability to terminate their agreements for failure to adhere to contracted operational
standards, we are unlikely to detect all problems. Moreover, there are occasions when the actions and activities of
our franchisees; dealers or agency operators may not be clearly distinguishable from our own. It is our policy to
vigorously seek to be dismissed from any such claims and to pursue indemnity for any adverse decisions. Failure
of our franchisees, dealers or agency operators to comply with laws and regulations may expose us to liability,
damages and publicity that may adversely affect our business.

Significant or sustained increases in fuel costs or limitations in fuel supplies could harm our business.

We could be adversely affected by limitations in fuel supplies or significant or sustained increases in fuel prices.
A severe or protracted disruption in fuel supplies or significant increases in fuel prices could have an adverse
impact on our financial condition and results of operations, either by directly discouraging consumers from
renting cars and trucks or by causing a decline in airline passenger traffic.

Our business requires substantial capital, and a disruption in our ability to obtain financing for our
operations, whether or not beyond our control, could have an adverse impact on our profitability and financial
condition.

We rely on asset-backed financing for our operations, particularly with respect to our vehicle fleet, which we
fund largely through the asset-backed securities and lending market. There has been significant turbulence,
reduced liquidity and a significant increase in borrowing spreads in the asset-backed debt markets since third
quarter 2007. We may be unable to obtain financing for our operations or refinance our existing financing on
similar terms, as a result of negative credit events specific to us, the current asset-backed market environment or
a further deterioration in the markets for asset-backed securities, such as:

» adeterioration in the terms, availability and credit market acceptance of the financial guarantee
insurance policies that insure our asset-backed indebtedness at the time of the incurrence of additional,
or refinancing of existing, asset-backed indebtedness;

« rating agencies that provide credit ratings for our asset-backed indebtedness, financial guarantee insurers
that insure our asset-backed indebtedness or other third parties requiring changes in the terms and
structure of our asset-backed financings, including increased credit enhancement (i} in connection with
the incurrence of additional or refinancing of existing asset-backed debt, (i} upon the occurrence of
external events, such as changes in general economic and market conditions or further deterioration in
the credit ratings of our principal car manufacturers, including Ford and General Motors, or (ii1) any
other reasons;

 the occurrence of certain events, including but not limited to, an insolvency of, or a payment default by,
a financial guarantee insurer of our asset-backed indebtedness, that, under the agreements governing our
asset-backed indebtedness, could result, among other things, in (i) an amortization event pursuant to
which payments of principal and interest on the affected series of asset-backed notes may be accelerated,
or (ii) a liquidation event of default pursuant to which the trustee or holders of asset-backed notes would
be permitted to require the sale of fleet vehicles or equipment that collateralizes the asset-backed
financing; or

« adeterioration in the acceptance by credit markets of the structures and structural risks associated with
asset-backed financing programs such as ours, particularly in light of recent developments in the
markets for mortgage-backed securities.

Any disruption in our ability to obtain asset-backed financing for our operations, or maintain our current funding
capacity, financing costs and interest rates, could have an adverse impact on our profitability and financial
condition,
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The terms of ABCR’s senior credit facility and our senior unsecured notes permit us to finance or refinance new
car acquisitions through other means, including secured financing that is not limited to the assets of special
purpose entity subsidiaries. We may seek in the future to finance or refinance new car acquisitions through such
other means. No assurances can be given, however, as to whether such financing will be available, or as to
whether the terms of such financing will be comparable to the terms of the senior credit facility or sentor
unsecured notes.

Risks related to our indebtedness

We have a substantial amount of debt which could impair our financial condition and adversely affect our
ability to react to changes in our business.

As of December 31, 2007, our total debt was approximately $7.4 billion and ABCR had approximately $1.2
billion of available borrowing capacity under ABCR's senior secured credit facility.

Our substantial indebtedness could have important consequences, including:

* limiting our ability to borrow additional amounts to fund working capital, capital expenditures, debt
service requirements, execation of our business strategy, acquisitions and other purposes;

* requiring us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to pay principal and
interest on our debt, which would reduce the funds available to us for other purposes;

» making us more vulnerable 1o adverse changes in general economic, industry and competitive
conditions, in government regulation and in our business by limiting our flexibility in planning for, and
making it more difficult for us to react quickly to, changing conditions; and

» exposing us to risks inherent in interest rate fluctuations because some of our borrowings are at variable
rates of interest, which could result in higher interest expenses in the event of increases in interest rates.

Despite our current indebtedness levels, we may still be able to incur substantially more debt, This could
further exacerbate the risks associated with our substantial indebtedness.

Subject to specified limitations, the indenture governing our senior unsecured notes limits, but does not prohibit,
us from incurring additional indebtedness in the future. As of December 31, 2007, ABCR’s senior secured credit
facility provided us commitments for additional borrowings of up to $1.2 billion, in the aggregate. All of those
borrowings would be secured and the lenders under ABCR’s senior secured credit facility would kave a prior
claim to the assets that secure such indebtedness. If new debt is added to our current debt levels, the risks
described above in the previous risk factor could intensify.

Restrictive covenants in agreements and instruments governing our debt may adversely affect our ability to
operate our business.

The indenture governing our senior unsecured notes and the agreement governing ABCR’s senior secured credit
facility contain, and our future debt instruments may contain, various provisions that limit our ability to, among
other things:

* incur additional deht;

« provide guarantees in respect of obligations of other persens;

* issue redeemable stock and preferred stock;

* pay dividends or distributions or redeem or repurchase capital stock;
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« prepay, redeem or repurchase debt;

» make loans, investments and capital expenditures;

* incur liens;

« make distributions freom our subsidiaries;

= sell assets and capital stock of our subsidiaries; and

s consolidate or merge with or into, or sell substantially all of our assets to, another person.

We require a significant amount of cash to service all of our indebtedness and our ability to generate
sufficient cash depends on many factors, some of which are beyond our control.

Our ability to make payments on and refinance our debt depends on our ability to generate cash flow. To some
extent, this is subject to prevailing economic and competitive conditions and to certain financial, business and
other factors, some of which are beyond our control. Qur business may not gencrate cash (low from operations at
levels sufficient to permit us to pay principal, premium, if any, and interest on our indebtedness, and our cash
needs may increase. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow from operations to service our debt and
meet our other cash needs, we may be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures, sell assets or operations,
seck additional capital or restructure or refinance our indebtedness. If we must sell our assets, it may negatively
affect our ability to generate revenue.

Risks related to the Cendant Separation
We have limited operating history as a stand-alone vehicle rental company.

The financial information included in this annual report on Form 10-K does not reflect the financial condition,
results of operations o cash flows we would have achieved as a stand-alone vehicle rental company during 2005
or 2006, Prior to the completion of the Cendant Separation, the vehicle rental business was operated by Cendant
as part of its broader corporate organization, rather than as an independent company. Cendant or one of its
affiliates performed various corporate functions for our vehicle rental business, including, but not limited to, tax
administration, certain governance functions (including compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and
internal audit) and external reporting. Our financial results for all periods other than fourth quarter 2006 and full
year 2007 for our operating segments reflect allocations of corporate expenses from Cendant for these and
similar functions. These allocations may be more or less than the comparable expenses we would have incurred
had we operated as a stand-alone vehicle rental company during those periods.

We are relying on Realogy, Wyndham Worldwide and Travelport to fulfill their obligations under the
Separation Agreement and other agreements.

Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, Realogy and Wyndham Worldwide are responsible for 62.5% and 37.5%,
respectively of certain contingent and other of our corporate liabilities including those relating to unresolved tax
and legal matters (the “Assumed Obligations™). More specifically, Realogy and Wyndham Worldwide have
generally assumed and are responsible for the payment of their allocated percentage of (i) all taxes imposed on us
and certain of our subsidiaries and (ii) certain of our contingent and other corporate liabilities and/or our
subsidiaries to the extent incurred prior to August 23, 2006. These contingent and other corporate liabilities
include liabilities relating to (i) Cendant’s terminated or divested businesses, including among others, the former
PHH and Marketing Services (Affinion) businesses, (ii) liabilities relating to the sale of Travelport, (iii) the
Securities Action and related litigation {for a further description of these litigation matters, see “Legal
Proceedings™) and (iv) generally any actions with respect to the Cendant Separation or the distributions brought
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by any third party. If either Realogy or Wyndham were to default in.its payment, when due, of any such Assumed
Obligations, each non-defaulting party, including us, would be required to pay an equal portion of the amounts in
default.

On April 10, 2007, Realogy was acquired by an affiliate of Apollo Management VI, L.P. and is no longer listed
as an independent public company. The acquisition does not affect Relaogy’s obligation to satisfy 62.5% of the
Assumed Obligations. However, as a result of the acquisition, Realogy has greater debt obligations and its ability
to satisfy its portion of such Assumed Obligations may be adversely impacted. In accordance with the terms of
the Separation Agreement, Realogy posted a letter of credit in April 2007 for the benefit of the Company to cover
its estimated share of the Assumed Obligations, which is subject to adjustment from time to time, although there
can be no assurance that such letter of credit will be sufficient or effective to cover Realogy’s actual obligations
if and when they arise. In addition, the Separation Agreement effectively provides Realogy with the right to
control the process for resolving disputes related to many of the Assumed Obligations.

Moreover, the Separation Agreement provides for cross-indemnities designed to place financial responsibility of
certain liabilities and other obligations with the proper company. For example, Realogy, Wyndham Worldwide
and/or Travelport are required to indemnify us in respect of certain effective guarantees that result from either us
or one of our subsidiaries remaining a named lessee on real estate leases pertaining to properties occupied by
Realogy, Wyndham and/or Travelport. Any failure by Realogy, Wyndham Worldwide or Travelport to pay any
of their assumed liabilities when due or to indemnify us when required may adversely impact our results of
operations. '

Risks related to our common stock

The market price of our shares may fluctuate widely.

We cannot predict the prices at which our common stock will trade. The market price of our common stock may
fluctuate widely, depending upon many factors, some of which may be beyond our control, including:

* our quarterly or annual earnings, or those of other companies in our industry;

* actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;

* changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations or principles;

* anpouncements by us or our competitors of significant acquisitions or dispositions;

» changes in earnings estimates by securities analysts or our ability 10 meet those estimates;

* the operating and stock price performance of other comparable companies;

+ overall market fluctuations; and

* general economic conditions,
Stock markets in general have experienced volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance
of a particular company. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the trading price of our common
stock.

Your percentage ownership may be diluted in the future.

Your percentage ownership may be diluted in the future because of equity awards that we granted to our
directors, officers and employees and the accelerated vesting of other equity awards. As disclosed in the notes to
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our financial statements included herein, in 2007, we granted approximately 1.1 million restricted stock units.
We also expect to grant restricted stock units and/or other types of equity awards in the future.

Our stockholder rights plan and provisions in our certificate of incorporation and by-laws, and of Delaware
law may prevent or delay an acquisition of our company, which could decrease the trading price of our
common stock.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated by-laws and Delaware law contain
provisions that are intended to deter coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids by making such
practices or bids unacceptably expensive to the raider and to encourage prospective acquirors to negotiate with
our Board of Directors rather than to attempt a hostile takeover, These provisions include, among others:

» elimination of the right of our stockholders to act by written consent;

*» rules regarding how stockholders may present proposals or nominate directors for election at
stockholder meetings;

+ the right of our Board to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval; and
+ limitations on the right of stockholders to remove directors.

Delaware law also imposes some restrictions on mergers and other business combinations between us and any
holder of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock.

In 2006, prior to the Cendant Separation, our Board adopted a stockholder rights plan (the “Rights Plan”) which
provides, among other things, that when specified events occur, our stockholders will be entitled to purchase
from us a newly created series of junior preferred stock. The preferred stock purchase rights are triggered by the
earlier to occur of {i) ten business days (or a later date determined by our Board of Directors before the rights are
separated from our common stock) after the public announcement that a person or group has become an
“acquiring person” by acquiring beneficial ownership of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock or

(i) ten business days (or a later date determined by our Board before the rights are separated from our common
stock) after a person or group begins a tender or exchange offer that, if completed, would result in that person or
group becoming an acquiring person. The issuance of preferred stock pursuant to the stockholder rights plan
would cause substantial dilution to a person or group that attempts to acquire us on terms not approved by our
Board of Directors. The existing Rights Ptan will expire in accordance with its current terms unless stockholders
approve its continuation at our 2008 annual meeting of stockholders.

We believe these provisions protect our stockholders from coercive or otherwise unfair takeover tactics by
requiring potential acquirors to negotiate with our Board and by providing our Board with more time to assess
any acquisition proposal. These provisions are not intended to make our company immune from takeovers.
However, these provisions apply even if the offer may be considered beneficial by some stockholders and could
delay or prevent an acquisition that our Board determines is not in the best interests of our company and our
stockholders.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located at leased offices at 6 Sylvan Way, Parsippany, New Jersey 07054
pursuant 1o a lease expiring in 2023. Additional corporate functions are also conducted at leased offices at 10
Sylvan Way and Three Century Drive in Parsippany, New Jersey pursuant to leases expiring in 2011 and 2018,
respectively. We also own a facility in Virginia Beach, Virginia, which serves as a satellite administrative facility
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for our car and truck rental operations, Qffice space is also leased in Orlando, Florida; Englewood, Colorado;
Wichita Falls, Texas; Tulsa, Oklahoma; and Fredericton, Canada pursuant to leases expiring in 2010, except for
the Englewood and Fredericton leases which expire in 201 1. These locations primarily provide operational
services for both brands, including call center operations. The Budget office at Redding, California was closed in
2005 and is currently vacant and is subject to a lease expiring in 2011, In addition, there are approximately 15
other leased office locations in the United States for administrative activities, regional sales and operations
activities,

We lease or have vehicle rental concessions for both the Avis and Budget brands at locations throughout the
world. Avis operates approximately 1,000 locations in the United States and approximately 315 locations outside
the United States. Of those locations, approximately 240 in the United States and approximately 120 outside the
United States are at airports. Budget operates at approximately 620 locations in the United States of which
approximately 160 are at airports. Budget also operates at approximately 180 locations outside the United States
of which approximately 60 are at airports. Typically, an airport receives a percentage of vehicle rental revenue,
with a guaranteed minimum. Because there is a limit to the number of vehicle rental locations in an airport,
vehicle rental companies frequently bid for the available locations, usually on the basis of the size of the
guaranteed minimums. We believe that our properties are sufficient to meet our present needs and we do not
anticipate any difficulty in securing additional space, as needed, on acceptable terms,

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Vehicle Rental Litigation

We, along with our subsidiaries, are involved from time to time in legal proceedings in the ordinary course of
business, including the cases described below.

On August 8, 2000, Ludwig v. Avis Remt A Car System, Inc. and Farrell v. Budget Rent A Car System, Inc. were
commenced in the Superior Court of California in and for Los Angeles on behalf of plaintiffs and all others
similarly sitnated claiming violations of California Civil Code Section 1936 and unlawful, unfair or fraudulent
business practices under California Business and Professions Code Section 17203, In both cases, plaintiffs seek
class certification, general and compensatory damages, attorneys’ fees and seek that Avis and Budget,
respectively, be enjoined from future conduct constituting violations of Civil Code Section 1936. Section 1936 of
the California Civil Code establishes the additional daily rates which a rental car company may charge for the
optional loss damage waiver product based on the manufacturer suggested retail price (MSRP) of the vehicle in
2002 with Consumer Price Index increases to the MSRP commencing January 1, 2003. Plaintiffs contend that the
amount of the daily charge imposed for certain classes of vehicles exceeds the amount set forth in the statute
based on the vehicle cost. No class certification hearing has been scheduled or heard by the court. On January 8,
2008, the court determined that no further briefing on any motions, including class certification motions, could
occur until after a decision is reached on our motion for summary judgment.

Avis has been named as a defendant in two putative class actions (Esquivel v. Avis, commenced January 24, 2004
in the 214th Judicial District of Nueces County, Texas, and Stafford v. Avis, commenced February 16, 2005 in the
District Court in and for Creek County, State of Oklahoma). Each case alleges that the Company’s use and
collection of the fuel service charge (“FSC™), pursuant to its rental agreements, constitutes an illegal penalty and
is therefore a breach of the rental agreements between the Company and the putative class members and is
unconscionable under the relevant state Uniform Commercial Code. The cases assert other causes of action such
as fraudulent misrepresentation, unjust enrichment and unfair trade practice under the Oklahoma Consumer
Protection Act. The putative class in Esquivel comprises all Texas residents who were charged an FSC by Avis or
its licensee in Texas after February 6, 2000; and in Stafford, the class comprises all persons who were charged an
FSC by Avis, or alternatively, all Oklahoma residents who were charged an FSC by Avis. In each case, the
plaintiff seeks an unspecified amount of compensatory damages, with the return of all FSC paid or the difference
between the FSC and the Company’s actual costs, disgorgement of unearned profits, attorneys’ fees and costs. In
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the Esquivel matter, a hearing on the plaintiff’s motion for class certification was adjourned and has not been
rescheduled. No class certification hearing has been scheduled in the Stafford case, where discovery is ongoing.

On October 27, 2006, plaintiffs Giuseppe Demarte and Mona Self filed a complaint against Budget Truck Rental,
LLC (“BTR") in the Superior Court of the State of California, County of Los Angeles. The complaint alleges
causes of action for unlawful business practices in violation of California Business & Professions Code

Section 17200, et seq., and conversion, relating to BTRs refueling practices and procedures. The complaint is
asserted as a putative class action on behalf of “all persons who, within the four years preceding the filing of the
Complaint, have entered into a truck rental agreement with BTR in California that provided for a refueling fee
and who paid that fee, or have paid for fuel in connection with that rental agreement based on the amount of fuel
measured by the rented truck’s fuel gauge, or have returned the rented truck to Budget with more fuel in the tank
than at the initiation of the rental.” The parties have settled this action and court approval of settlement terms is
pending.

On November 14, 2007, two California residents filed a putative class action lawsuit, captioned Michael Shames
et al. v. The Hertz Corp. et al., No. 07 CV 2174H (S8.D. Cal.), against Avis Budget, six other rental car
companies, the California Travel and Tourism Commission (the “CTTC”) and the CTTC's Executive Director,
alleging that the defendants violated federal antitrust law and California’s Unfair Competition Law and False
Adbvertising Law by allegedly agreeing to pass on airport concession fees and a state tourism commission
assessment to passenger car renters in California. One plaintiff has raised an additional claim against the CTTC
and its Executive Director of alleged violations of California’s Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act. The plaintifts
are seeking treble damages, injunctive relief and attorneys’ fees and costs. We have filed a motion to dismiss the
Shames suit, which has not yet been decided. We intend to vigorously defend this suit as we believe it is without
merit.

In December 2007, two individuals filed separate but virtually identical putative class action lawsuits, captioned
Thomas J. Comiskey et al. v. Avis Budget Group, Inc. et al., No. CV(07-08118 (C.D. Cal.) and Isabel S. Cohen et
al. v. Avis Budget Group, Inc. et al, No. CV07-08164 (C.D. Cal.), against Avis Budget, 12 other rental car
companies, the CTTC and California’s Secretary of Business, Transportation and Housing. These suits challenge
the tourism commission assessment fees imposed on certain renters in California as of January 1, 2007. Both the
Comiskey and Cohen suits allege that California’s tourism assessment program with respect to the rental car
industry (i) infringes on renters’ speech and associational rights in violation of both the U. S. and California
Constitutions, (ii) violates the Commerce Clause of the U.S. Constitution, (iii) violates 42 U.5.C. § 1983 insofar
as the assessment program violates the federal Constitution’s Commerce Clause and First and Fourteenth
Amendments, and (iv) violates the Motor Vehicle Revenues section of the California Constitution. Both
complaints seek declaratory and injunctive relief, a refund of all California tourism commission assessment fees
collected by the rental car defendants, attorneys’ fees and costs, and unspecified damages. On February 5, 2008,
the district court consolidated the Comiskey and Cohen suits, and defendants’ responses have been postponed
until after the plaintiffs have filed a consolidated complaint. We intend to vigorously defend this consolidated
action as we believe it is without merit,

Corporate Litigation

Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, Realogy has assumed 62.5% and Wyndham Worldwide has assumed
37.5% of certain contingent and other corporate liabilities (and related costs and expenses). including legal
matters and related disputes, of the Company or its subsidiaries which are not primarily related to any of the
respective businesses of Realogy, Wyndham Worldwide, Travelport and/or the Company’s vehicle rental
operations, in each case incurred or allegedly incurred on or prior to the date of the separation of Travelport from
the Company. Such litigation includes the litigation described below.

After the April 15, 1998 announcement of the discovery of accounting irregularities in the former CUC
International, Inc. (“CUC™) business units approximately 70 lawsuits claiming to be class actions and other
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proceedings were commenced against the Company and other defendants, virtually all of which have been settled
other than as discussed below.

In Re Cendant Corporation Litigation, Master File No, 98-1664 (WHW)(D.N 1) (the “Securitics Action™), was
a consolidated class action brought on behalf of all persons who acquired securities of Cendant and CUC, except
PRIDES securities, between May 31, 1995 and August 28, 1998, Named as defendants are the Company; 28
current and former officers and directors of Cendant, CUC and HFS Incorporated; and Ernst & Young LLP,
CUC’s former independent accounting firm. .

The Amended and Consolidated Class Action Complaint in the Securities Action alleges that, among other
things, the lead plaintiffs and members of the class were damaged when they acquired securities of Cendant and
CUC because, as a result of accounting irregularities, Cendant’s and CUC’s previously issued financial
statements were materially false and misleading, and the allegedly false and misleading financial statements
caused the prices of Cendant’s and CUC’$ securities to be inflated artificially.

On December 7, 1999, we announced that we had reached an agreement to settle claims made by class members
in the Securities Action for approximately $2,850 million in cash plus 50 percent of any net recovery we receive
from Ernst & Young as a result of our cross-claims against Ernst & Young as described below. This settlement
received all necessary court approvals and was fully funded on May 24, 2002.

On Janvary 25, 1999, we asserted cross-claims against Ernst & Young that alleged that Ernst & Young failed to
follow professional standards to discover and recklessly disregarded the accounting irregularities and is therefore
liable to us for damages in unspecified amounts. The cross-claims assert claims for breaches of Emst & Young’s
audit agreements with us, negligence, breaches of fiduciary duty, fraud and contribution. On July 18, 2000, we
filed amended cross-claims against Ernst & Young asserting the same claims.

On March 26, 1999, Erst & Young filed cross-claims against us and certain of our present and former officers
and directors that alleged that any failure by Emst & Young to discover the accounting irregularities was caused
by misrepresentations and omissions made to Ernst & Young in the course of its audits and other reviews of our
financial statements. Ernst & Young's cross-claims assert ¢claims for breach of contract, fraud, fraudulent
inducement, negligent misrepresentation and contribution. Damages in unspecified amounts were sought for the
costs to Emst & Young associated with defending the various sharcholder lawsuits, lost business it claims is
attributable to Ernst & Young’s association with us, and for harm to Ernst & Young's reputation. On June 4,
2001, Ernst & Young filed amended cross-claims against us asserting the same claims.

On December 21, 2007, the Company and certain other parties entered into a settlement agreement with Ernst &
Young to settle all claims between the parties arising out of the Securities Action. Pursuant to the terms of the
settlement, Ernst & Young has agreed to pay into escrow an aggregate of $298.5 million (the “Settlement
Amount™) to settle all claims arising from the Securities Action.

The Settlement Amount will be distributed from escrow to certain parties involved in the Securities Action,
including the plaintiff class members in the Securities Action, persons who purchased or otherwise acquired
shares of Cendant’s PRIDES securities between April 16, 1998 and August 28, 1998, certain officers and
directors of HFS Incorporated and 1o Realogy and Wyndham. Pursuant to the terms of the Separation Agreement,
Realogy and Wyndham are entitled to 62.5% and 37.5%, respectively, of our portion of the Settlement Amount.
Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, Realogy and Wyndham have approved the terms of, and authorized us to
execute, the settlement agreement. The receipt and distribution of the Settlement Amount will have no net impact
on our financial statements or cash balances.

CS1 Investment et. al. vs. Cendant et. al., (Case No. 1:00-CV-01422 (DAB-DFE} (§.D.N.Y.) (“Credentials
Litigation™} is an action for breach of contract and fraud arising out of Cendant’s acquisition of the Credentials
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business in 1998, The Credentials Litigation commenced in February 2000 and was filed against Cendant and its
senior management. The Stock Purchase Agreement provided for the sale of Credentials Services International to
Cendant for a set price of $125 million plus an additional amount which was contingent on Credentials’ future
performance. The closing occurred just prior to Cendant’s April 15, 1998 announcement of the discovery of
accounting irregularities in the former CUC business units. Plaintiffs seek payment of certain “hold back” monies
in the total amount of $5.7 million, as well as a contingent payment based upon future performance that plaintiffs
contend should have been approximately $50 million. In early 2007, the parties moved for summary judgment on
various aspects of the case. In a written opinion issued on September 7, 2007, the Court granted Cendant’s
motion for summary judgment on the fraud claims and plaintiffs’ motion for summary judgment with respect to
the plaintiffs’ claims for hold back monies and for breach of contract for failing to perform in good faith and pay
the contingent fee. Including pre-judgment interest, the Court entered judgment in favor of plaintiffs in the
amount of approximately $94.3 million plus attorneys fees. On September 21, 2007, we filed a motion for
reconsideration. On Qctober 22, 2007, plaintiffs opposed the motion and cross moved for reconsideration of the
Court’s dismissal of plaintiffs’ fraud claims. We opposed the cross motion on November 5, 2007, and filed a
reply on its motion on November 12, 2007. Both motions are still pending. Pursuant to the Separation
Agreement, Realogy and Wyndham are responsible for 62.5% and 37.5%, respectively, of any liability related to
the Credentials Litigation; therefore, we expect that any judgment or payment related to the Credentials
Litigation will have no net impact on our financial statements or cash balances.

Realogy, Wyndham Worldwide and Travelport have also assumed under the Separation Agreement certain
contingent and other corporate liabilities {(and related costs and expenses), which include legal proceedings where
we are named as a defendant but are primarily related to each of their respective businesses.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Price of Common Stock

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange,(“NYSE"”) under the symbol “CAR”. At

January 31, 2008, the number of stockholders of record was approximately 3,528. The following table sets forth .
the quarterly high and low sales prices per share of CAR common stock as reported by the NYSE for 2007 and
2006. . :

2007 . High Low

First Quarter $ 2210 § 21.80
Second Quarter 3147 26.02
Third Quarter 3024 19.08
Fourth Quarter 23.86 12.51
2006 High Low

First Quarter $ 2395 $.20.47
Second Quarter 24.02 2033
Third Quarter 25.50 17.30
Fourth Quarter 24.50 18.40

*  Stock prices reflect the impact of the Cendant Separation and have been adjusted for the 1-for-10 reverse stock split
which became effective September 5, 2006.

Dividend Policy

We paid no cash dividends on our common stock in 2007 and we do not anticipate paying dividends on our
common stock for the foreseeable future. Our ability to pay dividends to holders of our common stock is limited
as a practical matter by ABCR’s senior credit facilities, the indenture governing our senior notes and our vehicle
financing programs, insofar as we may seek to pay dividends out of funds made available to Avis Budget Group
by ABCR and/or its subsidiaries, because these debt financings directly or indirectly restrict ABCR's ability to
pay dividends or make loans. The declaration and payment of future dividends to holders of our common' stock
will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upon many factors, including our financial
condition, earnings, capital requirements of our businesses, covenants associated with certain debt obligations,
legal requirements, regulatory constraints, industry practice and other factors that the Board of Directors deems
relevant.

In 2006, we paid cash dividends of $1.10 per common share in the first quarter. These dividend amounts have
been adjusted to reflect a one-for-ten reverse stock split completed in September 2006.

On July 31, 2006, we distributed 100% of our ownership interest in Realogy and Wyndham, comprising
Cendant’s former Real Estate Services and Hospitality Services businesses, respectively, 1o our stockholders. We
distributed one share of Realogy common stock for every four shares of our common stock and one share of
Wyndham stock for every five shares of our common stock, in each case outstanding on the record date for the
distribution. On January 31, 2005, we distributed 100% of our ownership interest in PHH Corporation,
comprising our former mortgage, appraisal and fleet management businesses, to our stockholders. We distributed
one share of PHH common stock for every 20 shares of our common stock outstanding on the record date for the
distribution.
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Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information about shares of our common stock that may be issued upon the exercise
of options and restricted stock units under all of our existing equity compensation plans as of December 31,

2007. The table excludes 850,000 shares of our common stock approved by stockholders issued or avallable for
issuance pursuant to the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Of the 8.9 million shares of our common stock to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, stock settled
stock appreciation rights and restricted stock units, approximately 6.0 million shares are related to stock option
grants that were made by Cendant Corporation to employees of Cendant Corporation prior to the spin-offs of
Realogy and Wyndham, virtually all of which have strike prices in excess of our closing stock price of $13.00 on
December 31, 2007.

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Available
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average for Future Issuance
Exercise of Exercise Price of Under Equity

Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Compensation Plans
Warrants, Rights Warrants and Rights  (Excluding Securities
and Restricted (Excludes Restricted Reflected in First

Plan Category Stock Units (d) Stock Units) ($) (d) Column)

Equity compensation plans approved

by Company stockholders ® 4,264,416 $26.19 7,966,924
Equity compensation plans not

approved by Company

stockholders e : 4,568,450 $24.03 0
Equity compensation plans assumed

in mergers, acquisitions and

corporate transactions () 41,340 $23.04 0
Total 8,874,206 $25.08 7,966,924

(a)

(b)

©

{d)

(e)

The number of securities to be issued includes options and other awards granted under the following plans: 2007 Equity
and Incentive Plan; 1997 Stock Incentive Plan; 1997 Stock Option Plan; 1987 Stock Option Pian and the Directors
Deferred Compensation Plan. Each plan other than the 2007 Equity and Incentive Plan was approved by stockholders
with respect to an initial allocation of shares. The number of securities remaining available for future issuance under
equity compensation plans represents solely shares available for issuance under the 2007 Equity and Incentive Plan.
Includes options and other awards granted under the following plans: 1999 Broad-Based Employee Stock Option Plan;
1997 Employee Stock Plan; 1992 Employee Steck Option Plan; 1992 Bonus and Salary Replacement Stock Option Plan;
and stand-alone option grants to former officers. The material terms of these plans are set forth under footnote {(¢) below.
Notwithstanding the terms of these plans to the contrary, o option granted under any of these plans provides for a term
in excess of 10 years or an exercise price below fair market value as of the date of grant (other than options assumed or
replaced in connection with acquisitions). All options granted under these plans have been approved by the Board of
Directors or the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.

Includes options granted under the following plans: Galileo International. Inc. 1999 Equity and Performance Incentive
Plan; Galileo International Inc. 1997 Stock Incentive Plan, Trendwest Resorts, Inc. 1997 Employee Stock Option Plan,
Fairfield Communities Inc. 2000 Incentive Stock Plan, CT 1999 Stock Incentive Plan, Avis Group Holdings Inc. 1997
Stock Option Plan, and the Avis Group Holdings Inc. 2000 Compensation Plan.

Reflects an equitable adjustment of stock options and restricted stock units in connection with the spin-off of PHH
Corporation to our stockholders during 2005 and the distributions of Realogy and Wyndham in 2006. Also reflects the
one-for-ten reverse stock split completed in September 2006,

Following are the material terms of plans not submitted for stockholder approval:

1999 Broad-Bused Employee Stock Option Plan. This plan provides for the grant of stock options, shares of Common
Stock and other awards valued by reference to Common Stock to our employees who are not executive officers. Shares
issued pursuant to the exercise of options granted under this plan may be authorized and unissued shares or treasury
shares. In the event of any change in corporate capitalization, any reorganization of our company or a similar event,
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shares subject to outstanding options, the exercise price of outstanding options and the number and type of shares
remaining to be made subject to options under this plan may be adjusted or substituted for, as the Compensation
Comnmittee or Board may determine. The terms and conditions of options granted under this plan are to be determined by
the Compensation Committee, provided that the exercise price of an option may not be less than the fair market value of
the shares covered thereby on the date of grant. Each option granted under this plan will become immediately exercisable
upon a “change-of-control transaction” (as defined in the plan). Unless otherwise determined by the Compensation
Committee, following termination of employment, options granted under this plan generally will remain exercisable, to
the extent exercisable at the time of termination, for one year (two years, in the case of retirement, death or disability).
1997 Employee Stock Plan. This plan provides for the grant of awards of stock options, stock appreciation rights
(payable in cash or shares or a combination thereof) and restricted stock to our employees and affiliates. Shares issued
pursuant to awards granted under this plan may be authorized and unissued shares or treasury shares. In the event of any
change in corporate capitalization, any reorganization of our company or a similar event, shares subject to outstanding
awards, the exercise price of outstanding options and thie number and type'of shares remaining to be made subject to
awards under this plan may be adjusted or substituted for, as the Compensation Committee or Board may determine. The
terms and conditions of awards granted under this plan are to be determined by the Compensation Committee, provided
that the exercise price of an option may not be less than the fair market value of the shares covered thereby on the date of
grant. Under this plan. stock appreciation rights may be granted only in tandem with an option, and will be cancelled to
the extent the related option is exercised or cancelled. The vesting of restricted stock awards granted under this plan may
be subject to the attainment of predetermined performance goals. Unless otherwise determined by the Compensation
Committee, following termination of employment, options and stock appreciation rights granted under this plan generally
will remain exercisable, to the extent exercisable at the time of termination, for one year (two years, in the case of
retirement, death or disability). Unless otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee, following termination of
employment for any reason, shares that are subject 1o restrictions under a restricied stock award will be immediately
forfeited.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.
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Performance Graph

The following graph assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2002 and compares (a) the yearly percentage
change in our cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock (as measured by dividing (i) the sum of
{A) the cumulative amount of dividends (including the Realogy, Wyndham and PHH distributions (described
above under “Dividend Policy”), assuming dividend reinvestment, during the five years commencing on the last
trading day before January 1, 2003 and ending on December 31, 2007, and (B) the difference between our stock
price at the end and the beginning of the periods presented by (ii) the share price at the beginning of the periods
presented) with (b) (i) the Standard & Poor’s MidCap 400 Index and (ii) the Standard & Poor’s Diversified
Commercial and Professional Services Index.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Avis Budget Group, Inc., the S&P MidCap 400 Index
and the S&P Diversified Commercial & Professional Services Index
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Results of Operations
Net revenues

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax

Net income (loss)

Per Share Data

Income (loss) from continuing operations;
Basic
Diluted

Income (loss) from discontinued operations:
Basic
Diluted

Cumulative effect of accounting changes:
Basic
Diluted

Net income (loss);
Basic
Diluted

Cash dividends declared @

Financial Position

Total assets

Assets of discontinued operations

Assets under vehicle programs
Long-term debt, including current portion
Debt under vehicle programs
Stockholders’ equity

At or For the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006

2003 2004

2003

{In millions, except per share data)

$ 598 §$ 5689 § 5400 §$ 4820 $ 4,682
$ 941 % @5H% (S 71§ (149)
31 (1,479 1637 2020 1,558

. (64) (8) - (329)

$ (916) $(1,994) § 1,618 § 2,091 $ 1,080
$ (9.18) § (448) $ (0.10) $ 069 $ (1.46)
(9.18)  (448) (0.10) 067  (1.46)
$ 030 $(1471) $ 1574 $ 1960 $ 1532
030  (1471) 1574 1899 1532

$ - $ (063) $ (0.08) $ - $ (3.29)
- {0.63) (0.08) - (329)

$ (8.88) $(19.82) $ 1556 $ 2029 $ 10.62
(8.88) (19.82) 1556  19.66  10.62
$ - % 110 $ 400 $ 320 $ -
$12,474 $13,271 $34,493 $42,698 $39,551
- - 20512 29452 27232

7981 7,700 8500 7,072 6,485
1,797 1,842 3508 4,234 5900
5596 5270 7909 6727 6,295
1,465 2,443 11342 12464 9,946

@  Cash dividends declared have been adjusted to reflect the 1-for-10 reverse stock split of our common stock which
became effective in September 2006. See Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.
®  Includes related-panty debt due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP), LLC. See Note 17 to our Consolidated

Financial Statements.

In presenting the financial data above in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, we are
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported. See “Critical Accounting Policies”
under [tem 7 included elsewhere herein for a detailed discussion of the accounting policies that we believe
require subjective and comptex judgments that could potentially affect reported results.

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax, includes the after tax results of the following disposed
businesses for all periods presented (through their dates of disposition): (i) Travelport, which we sold in August
2006, (ii) Realogy and Wyndham, which were spun-off on July 31, 2006, (iii} our former Marketing Services
division, which we sold in October 2003, (iv) Wright Express Corporation, which we sold in February 2005,

(v) our former mortgage, fleet leasing and appraisal businesses, which were included in the spin-off of PHH
Corporation on January 31, 2005, and (vi) Jackson Hewitt Tax Service Inc., which we sold in June 2004. Income
(loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax, also includes a tax benefit realized as a result of certain elections




made in connection with the disposition of Travelport on income tax returns filed during 2007, the after tax
losses on the sale of Travelport and the spin-offs of Realogy and Wyndham in 2006, the after tax gains on the
sale of our Marketing Services division and Wright Express in 2005, the after tax loss on the spin-off of PHH in
2005, and the after tax gain on the sale of Jackson Hewitt in 2004. See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements for more detailed information regarding these discontinued operations.

During 2007, a $1,195 million (31,073 million after tax) charge was recorded for the impairment of goodwill at
each of our reporting units to reflect the decline in their fair value as evidenced by a decline in the market value
of our common stock. See Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements,

In 2006 and 2005, we incurred costs of $574 million and $15 million, respectively, in connection with the
disposition of Realogy and Wyndham and the sale of Travelport. These costs consisted primarily of legal,
accounting, other professional and consulting fees and various employee costs, and for 2000 include costs
associated with the retirement of corporate debt., During 2007, these separation-related costs were insignificant.

I 2006, we recorded $10 million of restructuring charges related to restructuring inttiatives within our Truck
Rental and Domestic Car Rental segments. In 2005, we recorded $26 million of restructuring and transaction-
retated charges as a result of restructuring activities undertaken following the spin-off of PHH Corporation and
the initial public offering of Wright Express Corporation. See Note 5 to our Consolidated Financial Statements
for a detailed description of such charges.

In 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003, we incurred $40 million, $35 million, $(28) million and $11 million, respectively,
for litigation and related costs (credits) primarily in connection with the 1998 discovery of accounting
irregularities in the former business units of CUC International, Inc. The amount in 2004 includes a $55 million
credit recorded in connection with previously established liabilities for severance and other termination benefits
for which we no longer believe we are liable. In 2007, these costs were immaterial.

In 2003, we consolidated a number of entities pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation
No. 46, “Consoclidation of Variable Interest Entities,” and/or as a result of amendments to the underlying
structures of certain of the facilities we used to securitize assets. See Notes 2 and 17 1o the Consolidated
Financial Statements,
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in confunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and
accompanying Notes thereto included elsewhere herein. Unless otherwise noted, all doflar amounts are in
millions and those relating to our results of operations are presented before taxes.

We operate two of the most recognized brands in the global vehicle rental industry through Avis Rent A Car
System, LLC and Budget Rent A Car System, Inc, We provide car and truck rentals and ancillary services to
businesses and consumers in the United States and internationally.

We operate in the following business segments:
* Domestic Car Rental—provides car rentals and ancillary products and services in the United States.

+ International Car Rental—provides car rentals and ancillary products and services primarily in
Argentina, Australia, Canada, New Zealand, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands.

* Truck Rental—provides truck rentals and related services to consumers and light commercial users in
the United States.

Our revenues are derived principally from car and truck rentals in our Company-owned operations and include
(i) time and mileage (“T&M?") fees charged to our customers for vehicle rentals, (ii) reimbursement from our
customers for certain operating expenses we incur, including gasoline and vehicle licensing fees, as well as
airport concession fees, which we pay in exchange for the right 1o operate at airports and other locations, and
(iii) sales of loss damage waivers and insurance and rentals of GPS navigation units and other items in
conjunction with vehicle rentals. We also earn royalty revenue from our franchisees in conjunction with their
vehicle rental transactions,

Car rental volumes are closely associated with the trave! industry, particularly airline passenger volumes, or
enplanements. Because we operate primarily in the United States and generate a significant portion of our
revenue from our on-airport operations, we expect that our ability to generate revenue growth will be somewhat
dependent on increases in domestic enplanements. We have also experienced significant per-unit fleet cost
increases on model-year 2006 and 2007 vehicles, which have negatively impacted our margins. Accordingly, our
ability to achieve profit margins consistent with prior periods remains dependent on our ability to successfully
reflect corresponding changes in our pricing programs,

Our vehicle rentat operations are seasonal. Historically, the third quarter of the year has been our strongest
quarter due to the increased level of leisure travel and household moving activity. Any occurrence that disrupts
rental activity during the third quarter could have a disproportionately adverse impact on our results of
operations. We have a predominantly variable cost structure and routinely adjust the size and, therefore, the cost
of our renta fleet in response to fluctuations in demand. However, certain expenses, such as rent, are fixed and
cannot be reduced in response to seasonal fluctuations in our operations,

We believe that the following trends, among others, may affect and/or have impacted our financial condition and
results of operations;

* Domestic enptanements, which increased compared to 2006 and are expected to increase modestly in
2008, assuming there are no major disruptions in travel,

* Rising per-unit car fleet costs, which we began to experience in 2005 and anticipate will continue with
model-year 2008 vehicles;
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» Pricing increases, which we instituted throughout 2006 in response to rising fleet costs and intend to
continue to pursue, where appropriate;

«  Our continued expansion in off-airport, or local markets, including insurance replacement rentals;

+ Legislative changes in certain states that enable us to recover a greater percentage of airport concession
and vehicle licensing fees, which favorably impacted our year-over-year results throughout 2007, and

* Decreased demand for truck rentals, which has been impacted by household moving activity.

In 2005, we undertook a strategic realignment to simplify our business model through exiting non-core
businesses or businesses that produced volatility to our earnings inconsistent with our business model and the
remainder of our core businesses. In October 2005, the strategic realignment was completed and our management
team and Board of Directors, with the aid of financial and legal advisors, performed a comprehensive review of
the growth opportunities and estimated market valuations for each of our core businesses. As a result of this
review, from QOctober 2005 to July 2006, our Board of Dlrectorq approved a plan to separate Cendant into four
independent companies:

+ Realogy Corporation—encompasses our former Realogy segment, which is now presented as a
discontinued operation.

+  Wyndham Worldwide Corporation—encompasses our former Hospitality Services and Timeshare
Resorts segments, which are now presented as discontinued operations.

» Travelport, Inc.—encompasses our former Travel Distribution Services segment, which is now
presented as a discontinued operation.

= Avis Budget Group, Inc,—encompasses our vehicle rental operations.

On July 31, 2006, we completed the spin-offs of Realogy Corporation (“Realogy™) and Wyndham Worldwide
Corporation (“Wyndham™) in tax-free distributions of one share each of Realogy and Wyndham common stock
for every four and five shares, respectively, of then outstanding Cendant common stock held on July 21, 2006.
On August 1, 2006, Realogy and Wyndham stock began regular-way trading on the New York Stock Exchange
under the symbols “H™ and “WYN,” respectively. Prior to the completion of the spin-offs, we received special
cash dividends of $2,225 miltion and $1,360 million from Realogy and Wyndham, respectively, and utilized such
proceeds to fund a portion of the repayment of our outstanding debt, as discussed below. On August 23, 2006, we
completed the sale of Travelport for proceeds of approximately $4.1 billion, net of closing adjustments, of which
approximately $1.8 billion was used to repay indebtedness of Travelport. The spin-offs of Rezlogy and
Wyndham and the sale of Travelport are referred to as the “Cendant Separation.” Pursuant to the Sdel‘ﬂ[lOﬂ
Agreement, during third quarter 2006, we distributed $1,423 million and $760 million of the proceeds of the
Travelport sale to Realogy and Wyndham, respectively. In connection with executing our plan, we incurred costs
of $574 million and $15 million during 2006 and 2005, respectively. These costs consist primarily of legal,
accounting, other professional and consulting fees and various employee costs, and for 2006 include costs
associated with the retirement of corporate debt. In connection with the Cendant Separation, we entered into the
Separation Agreement, a tax sharing agreement and a transition services agreement with Realogy, Wyndham and
Travelport.

On August 29, 2006, our stockholders approved certain amendments to our Certificate of Incorporation,
including a change in our name from Cendant Corporation to Avis Budget Group, Inc. and a [-for-10 reverse
stock split of our common stock, each of which became effective on the New York Stock Exchange at the
opening of the market on September 5, 2006 and, at that time, our ticker symbol changed to “CAR™.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS .

Discussed below are our consolidated results of operations and the results of operations for each of our reportable
segments. Generaily accepted accounting principles require us to segregate and report as discontinued operations,
for all periods presented, the account balances and activities of PHH, Wright Express, our former Marketing
Services division, Realogy, Wyndham and Travelport. Prior to completion of the Realogy spin-off, we could not
classify our former mortgage business as a discontinued operation due to Realogy’s participation in a mortgage
origination venture that was established with PHH in connection with our January 2005 spin-off of PHH.
However, due to the spin-off of Realogy on July 31, 2006, this business is classified as a discontinued operation,

‘We measure performance using the following key operating statistics: (i) rental days, which represents the total
number of days (or portion thereof) a vehicle was rented, and {ii) T&M revenue per rental day, which represents
the average daily revenue we earned from rental and mileage fees charged to our customers. Qur car rental
operating statistics (rental days and T&M revenue per rental day) are all calculated based on the actual usage of
the vehicle during a 24-hour period. We believe that this methodology, while conservative, provides our
management with the most relevant statistics in order to manage the business. Our calculation may not be
comparable to other companies’ calculation of similarly-titled statistics.

The reportable segments presented below represent our operating segments for which separate financial
information is available and is utilized on a regular basis by our chief operating decision maker to assess
performance and to allocate resources. In identifying our reportable segments, we also consider the nature of
services provided by our operating segments. Management evaluates the operating results of each of our
reportable segments based upon revenue and “EBITDA,” which we define as income from continving operations
before non-vehicle related depreciation and amortization, any goodwill impairment charge, non-vehicle related
interest and income taxes. Qur presentation of EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly-titled measures used
by other companies. :

Year Ended December 31, 2007 vs. Year Ended December 31, 2006

Our consolidated results of operations comprised the following:

2007 2006 Change

Net revenues $ 5986 % 5689 § 297
Total expenses 6.978 6,366 612
Loss before income taxes {992) 677 (315)
Benefit from income taxes (45) (226) 181
Loss from continuing operations (947) {451 (496)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax (2) 478 (480)
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax 33 (1,957 1,990
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax - (64) 64
Net loss $ (916) $ (1,994 $ 1,078

During 2067, our total revenues increased $297 million (5%} driven by our car rental operations, which
experienced a 5% increase in T&M revenue, reflecting a 4% increase in rental days and a 1% increase in T&M
revenue per day, and a 13% increase in ancillary revenue. The growth in our car rental operations was partially
offset by a 7% reduction in truck rental days and an 8% reduction in truck T&M revenue per day. Ancillary
revenue growth was primarily driven by increases in airport concession and vehicle licensing revenues, rentals of
GPS navigation units, and sales of loss damage waivers and insurance products. In addition, the total revenue
increase includes $67 miilion related to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations on the translation of our
international operations results into U.S. dollars.
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Total expenses increased $612 million (10%) due to (i) 2 $1,195 million charge recorded for the impairment of
goodwill at each of our reporting units to reflect the dectine in their fair value as evidenced by a decline in the
market value of our common stock, (ii) a $146 million (5%) increase in operating expense largely due to the 4%
increase in car rental days, (iii) an increase in vehicle depreciation and lease charges of $155 miliion

(11%) resulting from higher per unit vehicle costs and 4% growth in our average car rental fleet and (iv) the
adverse impact from foreign exchange currency rates of $56 million. The increase in expenses was offset by
decreases principally due to the $313 million charge for early extinguishment of debt incurred during 2006 and a
$266 million decrease in separation-related costs. The separation costs related primarily to severance, retention
and legal, accounting and other professional fees incurred in connection with the Cendant Separation. We also
experienced (i) a $160 million reduction in selling, general and administrative expenses resulting mainly from
unallocated corporate expense in 2006 related to the discontinued operations treatment of our former subsidiaries
and (ii) $109 million lower interest expense refated to corporate debt, resulting from the repayment of
approximately $3.5 billion of such debt in third quarter 2006. As a result of these items and a $181 million
reduction in our benefit from income taxes, our loss from continuing operations increased $496 million. Our
effective tax rate for continuing operations were benefits of 4.5% and 33.4% for 2007 and 2006, respectively.
The decrease in our effective tax rate for 2007 was primarily due to the non-deductible portion of the goodwill
impairment charge.

income (loss) from discontinued operations decreased $480 million, which principally reflects the absence of net
income generated by Realogy. Wyndham and Travelport prior to the Cendant Separation, which was completed
in 2006. The $2 billion increase in gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax primarily
represents the loss on disposal of discontinued operations in 2006, partially offset by a tax benefit realized as a
result of certain elections made in connection with the Travelport disposition on the income tax returns filed
during 2007.

Absent in 2007 were the non-cash charges recorded in 2006 of $103 million ($64 million, after tax) to reflect the
cumulative effect of accounting changes as a result of our adoption of (i) Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS™) No. 152, “Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing Transactions,” and American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants’ Statement of Position No. 04-2, “Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing
Transactions™ on January 1, 2006, which resulted in a non-cash charge of $65 million after tax, and (ii) SFAS

No. 123R. “Share-Based Payment,” on January |, 2006, which resulted in a non-cash credit of $1 miliion after tax.

As a result of the above-mentioned items, net loss decreased approximately $1.1 billion.

Following is a more detailed discussion of the results of each of our reportable segments:

Revenues EBITDA®
% %
2007 2006  Change 2007 2006 Change
Domestic Car Rental $ 4679 § 4,395 6% $ 265 § 214 24%
International Car Rental 873 761 15 131 111 18
Truck Rental 416 472 (12) 17 45 (62)
Corporate and Other ® 18 61 * 1 (393) *
Total Company $ 5986 § 5,689 414 (23)
Less: Non-vehicle related depreciation and amortization 84 105
Interest expense related to corporate debt, net ) 127 549
Goodwill impairment 1,195 -
Loss before income taxes $ (992 § (677

™ Not meaningful.

@  fn 2007, EBITDA reflects separation-related costs (credits) of $5 million in Domestic Car Rental and (310} million in
Corporate and Other. In 2006. EBITDA reflects separation-related costs of $19 million in Domestic Car Rental, $1
million in [nternational Car Rental, $3 million in Truck Rental and $238 million in Corporate and Other.
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) Includes unallocated corporate overhead, the elimination of transactions between segments and the results of operations
of certain non-strategic businesses. In addition, EBITDA for 2006 reflects unallocated corporate expenses related to
discontinued operations. Following the completion of the Cendant Separation, we do not incur the majority of such costs.

©  The amount in 2006 includes a $313 million charge related to the early extinguishment of corporate debt.

@ We recorded a charge of $1,195 million for the impairment of goodwill during the three months ended December 31,
2007. Domestic Car Rental recorded $786 million of the goodwill impairment, International Car Rental recorded $268
million and Truck Rental recorded $141 million.

Domestic Car Rental

Revenues and EBITDA increased $284 million (69%) and $51 million (249), respectively, in 2007 compared
with 2006. We experienced increased demand for car rentals and significantly increased our ancillary revenues.

The revenue increase of $284 million was comprised of a $132 million (4%} increase in T&M revenue and a
$152 million (19%) increase in ancillary revenues. The increase in T&M revenue was principally driven by a 4%
increase in rental days. The $152 million increase in ancillary revenues was due primarily to (i) a $72 million
increase in arrport concession and vehicle licensing revenues, $20 million of which was offset in EBITDA by
higher airport concession and vehicle licensing expenses remitted o airport and other regulatory authorities, (ii) a
$69 million increase in rentals of GPS navigation units, sales of toss damage waivers and insurance products and
other items, and (iii) an $11 million increase in gasoline sales.

The favorable effect of incremental revenues was offset in EBITDA by $125 million (11%) of increased fleet
depreciation and lease charges primarily resulting from increased per-unit fleet costs in 2007 and a 4% increase
in average fleet size. EBITDA also reflected a $92 million increase in operating expenses including (i) $64
million of additional expenses associated with increased car rental volume and fleet size, primarily related to
credit card fees and agency operator commissions and (i) $29 million of incremental expenses, primarily
representing inflationary increases in salaries and wages and off-airport rentat expense. We incurred $8 million
more vehicle-related interest expense during 2007 compared to 2006, primarily due to the loss of intercompany
interest income recorded in 2006 prior to the Cendant Separation. EBITDA also benefited from a $17 miltion
decrease in separation-related costs, primarity related to accelerated vesting of stock-based compensation awards
incurred in 2006. '

International Car Rental

Revenues and EBITDA increased $112 mitlion (15%) and $20 million (18%), respectively, in 2007 compared
with 2006, primarily due to the impact of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, increased car rental pricing
and higher demand for car rentals.

The revenue increase of $112 million was comprised of a $73 million (13%) increase in car rental T&M revenue
and a $39 million (18%) increase in ancillary revenues, The increase in T&M revenue was principally driven by
a 10% increase in T&M revenue per day and a 3% increase in the number of days a car was rented. The total
growth in revenue includes a $67 million increase related to the translation of foreign currency exchange rates,
which increased T&M revenue per day by 8% and was largely offset in EBITDA by the opposite impact on
expenses and provided a net benefit of $8 million year-over-year. The $39 million increase in ancillary revenues
was due primarily to (i) a $23 million increase in counter sales of insurance and other items, and (i) 2 $13
million increase in airport concession and vehicle licensing revenues, which was more than offset in EBITDA by
higher airport concession and vehicle licensing expenses remitted to airport and other regulatory authorities.

The favorable effect of incremental T&M revenues was partially offset in EBITDA by $27 million (15%) of
increased fleet depreciation and lease charges principally resulting from an increase of 4% in the average size of
our international rental fleet and increased per-unit fleet costs including the effects of foreign exchange
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movements. EBITDA also reflects $37 million of incremental operating expenses including (i) $22 million in
inflationary increases in salaries and wages, rents and other costs, (ii) $11 million in additional expenses
associated with increased car rental volume, primarily related to license and registration fees and other vehicle
costs, and (iii) $4 million in increased gasoline expenses. We incurred $7 million more interest expense during
2007 than in 2006 due to increased borrowings for international operations and higher interest rates.

Truck Rental

Revenues and EBITDA declined $56 million (12%) and $28 million (62%), respectively, in 2007 compared with
2006, primarily reflecting decreases in rental day volume and T&M revenue per day. EBITDA was also impacted
by increased fleet costs.

Substantially all of the revenue decrease was due to a decline in T&M revenue, which reflected a 7% reduction in
rental days and an 8% decrease in T&M revenue per day. The 7% reduction in rental days resulted primarily
from declines in one-way consumer and commercial volumes, and a 6% reduction in the average size or our
rental fleet. We believe these decreases reflect a soft housing market and heightened competition for commercial
rentals. Despite the reduction in the average size of our truck rental fleet, we incurred $4 million (4%) of
incremental fleet depreciation, interest and lease charges primarily due to higher per-unit fleet costs, including a
reduction in expense of $5 million due to a change in projected vehicle hold periods. These items were offset by
$22 million in reduced operating expenses, including (i) a decrease of $11 million in operating commission
expense primarily reflecting the decrease in T&M revenue, (i) a $10 million decrease in maintenance and
damage costs, and (iii} an $8 miilion reduction in insurance expense as a result of favorable claims experience
and the reduction in rental days. EBITDA also reflected a $5 million reduction in restructuring charges compared
to 2006 and a year-over-year reduction of $3 million in costs related to the Cendant Separation.

Corporate and Other

Revenues decreased $43 million and EBITDA increased from a loss of $393 million in 2006 to an income of $1
million in 2007.

Revenues were lower in 2007 due to (i) the absence of $17 million in revenue assoctated with a credit card
marketing program under which we earned fees based on a percentage of credit card spending through the date of
the Cendant Separation, (ii) a $16 million decrease in revenues earned for information technology service
contracts with Realogy, Wyndham and Travelport as the contracts expire and services are no longer being
provided and (iii) a $10 million reduction primarily related to dividend income and gains on the sale of
marketable securittes in 2006.

EBITDA increased primarily due to (i) a $131 million reduction in selling and general expenses resulting from
the spin-offs of Realogy and Wyndham and the sale of Travelport in third quarter 2006, (i) a $248 million
reduction in separation-related expenses, including unallocated corporate costs, {iii) a $40 million reduction in
lega! fees for litigation related to the former CUC business units and (iv) a $21 million decrease in intercompany
interest expense prior to the Cendant Separation.
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Year Ended December 31, 2006 vs. Year Ended December 31, 2005

Qur consolidated results of operations comprised the following:

2006 2005 Change

Net revenues $ 5689 % 5400 % 289

Total expenses ) 6,366 5,462 - 904

Loss before income taxes ) (677 62) (615)
Benefit from income taxes ' ' (226) (51 (175)
Loss from continuing operations (451) (11) (440)
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 478 1,088 (610)
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax (1,957 549 (2,506)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax 64) (8) (56)
Net income {loss) $ (1994) § 1,618 $§ (3,612)

During 2006, our total revenues increased $289 million (5%) principally due to a 5% increase in T&M revenue
reflecting a 2% increase in rental days and a 5% increase in T&M revenue per day within our car rental
operations, partially offset by a 14% reduction in truck rental days. Total expenses increased $904 million
(17%) principally reflecting separation-related charges of $574 million we incurred during 2006 and increased
fleet depreciation and lease charges of $178 million resulting from higher per unit fleet costs and a larger car
rental fleet. The separation charges relate primarily to the early extinguishment of debt, stock-based
compensation, severance and retention and legal, accounting, and other professional fees. The year-over-year
increase in total expenses also reflects (i) increases in operating costs associated with increased car rental volume
and fleet size, including vehicle maintenance and damage costs, commissions and shuttling costs, and

(ii) incremental expenses representing inflationary increases in rent, salaries and wages and other costs. Interest
expense related to corporate debt increased $64 million primarily due to the absence in 2006 of a $73 million
reversal of accrued interest during first quarter 2005 associated with the resolution of amounts due under a
litigation settlement reached in 1999, We also incurred $101 million of incremental corporate interest expense
related to $1,875 million of borrowings by Avis Budget Car Rental in second quarter 2006, which was
substantially offset by a reduction in corporate interest expense resulting from the repayment of approximately
$3.5 billion of corpoerate debt in third quarter 2006. As a result of these items, as well as a $175 million increase
in our benefit from income taxes, our loss from continuing operations increased $440 million. Our effective tax
rate for continuing operations was a benefit of 33.4% and 82.3% for 2006 and 2003, respectively. The 2005 rate
was higher due to the favorable resolution of prior years’ examination matters and state taxes. Selling, general
and administrative expenses include unallocated corporate expenses related to the discontinued operations
treatment of our former subsidiaries. We will not incur the majority of these corporate costs going forward.

Income from discontinued operations decreased $6 10 million, which primarily reflects (i) a decrease of $745
million in net income generated by Realogy and Wyndham in 2006 compared to 2005 (these businesses were
included in our 2006 results through July 31, 2006, the date of disposition, but were included in our results for
the full year ended December 31, 2005) and (ii) the absence in 2006 of net income of $53 millicon related to our
former Marketing Services division (this business was disposed in fourth quarter 2005). These decreases were
partially offset by (i) an increase of $160 million in net income generated by Travelport during 2006, which
reflects the absence in 2006 of a $425 million pretax impairment charge recorded in 2005, partially offset by the
inclusion of this business in our 2006 results through August 23, 2006, the date of disposition, but for the full
year ended December 31, 2005 and (ii) the absence of a $24 million loss incurred by PHH in 2005.

The net loss we recognized on the disposal of discontinued operations increased approximately $2.5 billion year-
over-year, which reflects (i) a $1.8 billion loss on the disposal of Travelport in 2006, (ii) $112 million of costs we
incurred in connection with the spin-offs of Realogy and Wyndham and (iii) the absence of a net gain on
disposals of $54%9 million in 2005, which includes a $581 million gain on the sale of our former Marketing
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Services division and a $253 million gain recognized primarily in connection with the initial public offering of
Wright Express, partially offset by a $285 million charge related to the spin-off of PHH.

During 2006, we recorded non-cash charges of $103 million ($64 million, after tax) to reflect the cumulative
effect of accounting changes as a result of our adoption of (i) SFAS No. 152, “Accounting for Real Estate Time-
Sharing Transactions,” and American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Statement of Position No. 04-2,
*“Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing Transactions™ on January 1, 2006, which resulted in a non-cash
charge of $65 million after tax, and (ii) SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” on January 1, 2006, which
resulted in a non-cash credit of $1 million after tax. In addition, during 2005, we recorded a $14 million ($8
million, after tax) non-cash charge to reflect the cumulative effect of accounting change as a result of our
adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional
Asset Retirement Obligations.”

As a result of the above-mentioned items, which arose from the dramatic change in composition of our
operations effected over 2005 and 2006, net income decreased approximately $3.6 billion.

Following is a more detailed discussion of the results of each of our reportable segments:

Revenues EBITDA
o o
2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change
Domestic Car Rental $ 4395 § 4,109 7% $ 214 $ 225 (5%
International Car Rental 761 661 15 1 111 -
Truck Rental 472 546 (14) 45 103 (56)
Corporate and Other @ : 61 84 27N (393) 213)
Total Company $ 5689 § 5400 5 23 226
Less: Non-vehicle related depreciation and amortization 105 1i6
Interest expense related to corporate debt, net ®) 549 172
Loss before income taxes $ ©77H § (62)

@  Includes unallocated corporate overhead, the elimination of transactions between segments and the results of operations
of certain non-strategic businesses.

®  The 2006 amount includes a $313 million charge related to early extinguishment of corporate debt. The 2005 ameunt
includes a credit resulting from the reversal of $73 million of accrued interest associated with the resolution of amounts
due under a litigation settlement reached in 1999.

Domestic Car Rental

Revenues increased $286 million (7%) while EBITDA decreased $11 million (5%) in 2006 compared with 2005.
We achieved higher car rental pricing in 2006 compared to 2005, but EBITDA margin comparisons were
negatively impacted by higher fleet costs.

The revenue increase of $286 million was comprised of a $222 million (7%) increase in T&M revenue and a

$64 million (8%) increase in ancillary revenues. The increase in T&M revenue was principally driven by a 1%
increase in the number of days a car was rented and a 6% increase in T&M revenue per day. Fleet depreciation
and lease charges increased $122 million (12%) in 2006 primarily due to (i} an increase of 1% in the average size
of our domestic rental fleet and (ii) increased per unit fleet costs for model year 2007 and 2006 vehicles
compared, respectively, to model year 2006 and 2005 vehicles. We incurred $5 million more vehicle-related
interest expense during 2006 compared to 2003, primarily due to a decrease in intercompany interest income.
The impact of rising interest rates was substantially offset by the reduction in vehicle related debt in April 2006
with the proceeds from our corporate borrowings incurred in 2006. Interest expense related to such corporate
debt is not included in EBITDA, whereas interest related to vehicle-backed debt is included in EBITDA.
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The $64 million increase in ancillary revenues was due primarily to (i} a $27 million increase in counter sales of
insurance and other items, (ii) a $24 million increase in airport concession and vehicle licensing revenues, which
was offset in EBITDA by higher airport concession and vehicle licensing expenses remitted to airport and other
regulatory authorities, and (iii) a $13 million increase in gasoline revenues, which was offset in EBITDA by $24
million of additional gasoline costs. EBITDA from our domestic car rental operations also reflects (i) $87 million
of additional expenses primarily associated with increased car rental volume and fleet size, including vehicle
maintenance and damage costs, (ii) $43 million of incrementat expenses primarily representing inflationary
increases in rent, salaries and wages and other costs, (tii) $28 million of incremental agency-operator and credit
card commission expense associated with increased T&M revenue and {(iv) $19 million of separation-related
charges we incurred during 2006 primarily related to accelerated vesting of stock-based compensation awards.
Such activity was partially offset by (i) a $26 million decrease in public liability and property damage costs
reflecting more favorable claims experience, (i) the absence of $12 million of expenses relating to damages
caused by the hurricanes experienced in the Gulf Coast in September 2005, (iii) a $10 million reduction in
incentive compensation expenses and (iv) the absence of $10 million of litigation expense incurred in 2005
resulting from the settlement of a dispute.

International Car Rental

Revenues increased $100 million (15%) while EBITDA was unchanged in 2006 compared with 2005, primarily
reflecting growth in rental day volume and the impact on our 2006 results of franchisees acquired during or
subsequent to 2005, as discussed below. Our EBITDA margins were negatively impacted by higher fleet and
interest costs.

The revenue increase of $100 million was comprised of a $69 million (14%) increase in car rental T&M revenue
and a $31 million (18%) increase in ancillary revenues, The increase in T&M revenue was principally driven by
a 13% increase in the number of days a car was rented (which includes 4% organic growth) and a 2% increase in
T&M revenue per day. The favorable effect of incremental T&M revenues was partially offset in EBITDA by
$35 million (24%) of increased fleet depreciation and lease charges resulting from an increase of 13% in the
average size of our international rental fleet and increased per-unit fleet costs. We incurred $10 million more
vehicle-related interest expense during 2006 compared to 2005, primarily due to increased interest rates.

The $31 million increase in ancillary revenues was due primarily to (i) a $16 million increase in counter sales of
insurance and other items, (ii) an $11 million increase in airport concession and vehicle licensing revenues, the
majority of which was offset in EBITDA by higher airport concession and vehicle licensing expenses remitted to
airport and other regulatory authorities, and (iii) a $4 million increase in gasoline revenues, which was partially
offset in EBITDA by $1 million of additional gasoline costs. EBITDA also reflects (i) $20 million of higher
operaling expenses primarily due to increased car rental volume and fleet size, including vehicle maintenance
and damage costs, (ii) $20 million of incremental expenses primarily representing inflationary increases in rent,
salaries and wages and other costs and (iii} $7 million of incremental agency-operator and credit card
commission expense associated with increased T&M revenue. The increases discussed above also include

(i) $55 million of revenue and $1 million of EBITDA losses resulting from our acquisitions of international
franchisees during or subsequent to 2005 and (ii) a $12 million increase in revenue related to favorable foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations, which was substantially offset in EBITDA by the opposite impact of foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations on expenses.

Truck Rental

Revenues and EBITDA declined $74 millien {14%) and $58 million (56%), respectively, for 2006 compared
with 2003, primarily reflecting lower rental day volume and lower T&M revenue per day. EBITDA was also
impacted by higher fleet costs.

Substantially all of the revenue decrease of $74 million was due to a decrease in T&M revenue, which reflected a
14% reduction in rental days and a 2% decrease in T&M revenue per day. The 14% reduction in rental days
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reflected declines primarily in commercial volumes and a 5% reduction in the average size of our rental fleet.
Despite the reduction in the average size of our truck rental fleex, reflecting our efforts to focus on newer and
more efficient trucks, we incurred $23 million (23%) of incremental fleet depreciation, interest and lease charges
primarily due to higher per-unit fieet costs. EBITDA was also unfavorably impacted by the absence of a $13
million credit relating to'a refinement made during 2005 in how we estimate repair and refurbishment costs of
our truck fleet. During 2006, we recorded $3 million of separation-related charges, including debt termination
and other costs. These items were partially offset by (i) a $31 million decrease in operating expenses primarily
due to operating a smaller and more efficient fleet and reduced rental volumes, (ii) a $13 million decrease in our
public liability and property damage costs as a result of more favorable claims experience and a reduction in
rental days, (iii) a decrease of $12 million in credit card and other commission expense partially associated with
decreased T&M revenue and (iv) the absence of a $5 million restructuring charge-recorded in 2005, which
represented costs incurred in connection with the closure of a reservation center and unprofitable rental locations,
which was more than offset by an $8 million charge in 2006 principally related to the closure of the Budget
Truck Rental headquarters and other facilities and reductions in staff.

Corporate and Other

Revenues decreased $23 million and the EBITDA loss increased from $213 million in 2005 to $393 million in
2006. ‘

Revenues and EBITDA were unfavorably impacted in 2006 by the absence of an $18 million realized gain on the
sale of Homestore stock in 2005. Revenues were also impacted by a $12 million reduction in earnings on a credit
card marketing program under which we earned fees based on a percentage of credit card spending through the
date of the completion of the Cendant Separation.

EBITDA was also unfavorably impacted year-over-year by a $182 million increase in general and administrative
costs in 2006, including separation-related charges, unallocated corporate expenses and executive salaries. These
increases were partially offset by a $32 million decrease in incentive compensation costs in 2006, and the
absence in 2006 of $19 million of restructuring charges recorded during 2003.

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We present separately the financial data of our vehicle programs. These programs are distinct from our other
activities as the assets are generally funded through the issuance of debt that is collateralized by such assets.
Assets under vehicle programs are funded through borrowings under asset-backed funding or other similar
arrangements. The income generated by these assets is used, in part, to repay the principal and interest associated
with the debt. Cash inflows and outflows relating to the generation or acquisition of such assets and the principal
debt repayment or financing of such assets are classified as activities of our vehicle programs. We believe it is
appropriate to segregate the financial data of our vehicle programs because, ultimately, the source of repayment
of such debt is the realization of such assets.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
December 31, December 31,

2007 2006 Change
Total assets exclusive of assets under vehicle programs $ 4493 § 5571 $(1,078)
Total liabilities exclusive of liabilities under vehicle programs 3,880 4,149 260)
Assets under vehicle programs 7,981 7,700 281
Liabilities under vehicle programs ' 7,120 6,679 44]
Stockholders’ equity 1,465 2,443 {978)

Total assets exclusive of assets under vehicle programs decreased $1.1 billion principally due to (i) a $1,193
million decrease in goodwill and (i) a $99 million decrease in other current assets and other non-current assets
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primarily as a result of the sale of our preferred stock investment in Affinion. These decreases were offset by

(i) an increase of $60 million in other non-current assets related to our investment in Carey in 2007, (ii) a $43
million increase in deferred taxes (iii) a $42 million increase in cash and cash equivalents (see “Liquidity and
Capital Resources—Cash Flows” for a detailed discussion), {iv) a $29 million increase in accounts receivable
primarily due to an increase in retention receivables from manufacturers, (v} a $21 million increase in intangible
assets related to our acquisition of vehicle rental licensees and (vi) fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates.

Total liabilities exclusive of liabilities under vehicle programs decreased $260 million primarily due to (i) a $99
million decrease in balances due to Realogy and Wyndham related to our preferred stock investment in Affinion,
(11) a $73 million decrease in accrued payroll costs, (iii} an $80 million decrease in income taxes payable and
(iv) a $45 million decrease in our corporate debt. These decreases were partially offset by a $50 million increase
in accrued settlement liabilities, for which we are entitled to indemnification by Realogy and Wyndham.

Assets under vehicle programs increased $281 million as a result of $425 million of net additions primarily to our
International and Domestic vehicle rental fleets, reflecting projected year-over- year increases in demand. This
increase was partially offset by a $131 million decrease in our [nvestment in Avis Budget Rental Car Funding
related to a change in the value of derivatives, including derivatives which qualify for hedge-accounting
treatment, used to manage the interest rate risk associated with the debt under vehicle program for our wholly-
owned substdiary, AESOP Leasing LP.

Liabilities under vehicle programs increased 3441 million, primarily reflecting additional borrowings to support
the growth in our vehicle rental fleet described above. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources—Debt and
Financing Arrangements” for a detailed account of the change in our debt related to vehicle programs.

Stockholders’ equity decreased $978 million primarily due to (i) a net loss of $916 million for 2007 reflecting a
charge of $1,195 related to the impairment of goodwill, (ii) a $66 million decrease to additional paid-in capital
related to post Cendant Separation dividend adjustments to Realogy and Wyndham in accordance with the
Separation Agreement, (iii) a $36 million decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income as a result of
unrealized losses on cash flow hedges incurred during 2007, partially offset by currency translation adjustments
and (iv} an $18 million charge to stockholders’ equity as a result of the adoption of Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48™). These decreases were partially offset by a net $49
million increase in stockholders’ equity related to the exercise of employee stock options and (iii) a net $12
million increase related to the granting and vesting of restricted stock units.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Our principal sources of liquidity are cash on hand and our ability to generate cash through operations and

financing activities, as well as available funding arrangements and committed credit facilities, each of which is
discussed below.
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CASH FLOWS

At December 31, 2007, we had $214 million of cash on hand, an increase of $42 million from $172 million at
December 31, 2006. The following table summarizes such increase:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 Change

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities : $ 1,714 § 252 § 1462

Investing activities (1,91 7) (753) (1,164)

Financing activities 239 (4,704) 4,943
Effects of exchange rate changes 6 2 4
Cash provided by discontinuéd operations - 4,829 (4,829)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents , : $ 42 % (374 § 4dl6

For 2007, we generated approximately $1.5 billion more cash from operating activities in comparison to 2006,
This change principally reflected (i) an increase in operating results in 2007 primarily due to jower expenses than
those incurred in 2006 related to the Cendant Separation of $266 million and debt extinguishment costs of $313
miflion, (i) decreased interest expense and iii) reduced use of cash for working capital requirements.

We used approximately $1.2 billion more cash in investing activities during 2007 compared with 2006. This
change was principally due to the activities of our vehicle programs which produced a greater cash outflow of
approximately $1.2 billion in 2007 compared to 2006 and reflected the reduction in the size of our fleet in 2006,
changes in vehicle prices and the timing of payments and receipts for vehicles. As a result of these changes we
received $1.9 billion less cash during 2007 compared to 2006 in payments received on vehicles repurchased by
manufacturers partially offset by our reduced investment in vehicles purchased of $715 million during 2007,
During 2008, we expect to utilize at least $4.9 billion of cash to purchase rental vehicles, which will primarily be
funded with proceeds received on sale of rental vehicles to manufacturers under our repurchase or guaranteed
depreciation agreements or in the used car market and our borrowings under our vehicle-backed debt programs.
We anticipate aggregate capital expenditure investments for 2008 1o approximate $100 million.

We used approximately $4.9 billion less cash in financing activitie$ during 2007 compared to 2006. This change
primarily reflects (i) the absence of $3.6 billion of cash used in 2006 to repay corporate debt previously issued by
Cendant, (i) an approximately $2.9 billion decrease in principal debt payments related to our vehicle rental
activities net of decreased proceeds, (iii) a reduction of $247 million in cash utilized as compared to 2006 for net
repurchases or issuances of common stock and (iv) a reduction of dividend payments of $113 miltion. These
increases were partially offset by the absence of the proceeds received in connection with the issuance of $1,875
million of fixed and floating rate notes in 2006.

For 2007, we received approximately $4.8 billion less cash from discontinued operations compared to 2006,
which primarily reflects the absence of the net proceeds of $4.1 billion received in connection with the sale of
Travelport in 2006,

DEBT AND FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

At December 31, 2007, we had approximately $7.4 billion of indebtedness (including corporate indebtedness of
approximately $1.8 billion and debt under vehicle programs of approximately $5.6 billion).
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Corporate indebtedness consisted of:

As of As of
Maturity December 31, December 31,
Date 2007 2006 Change
Floating rate term loan @ ® April 2012 § 796 % 838 § (42)
Floating rate notes @ May 2014 250 250 -
7¥%: % notes May 20t4 375 375 -
7 ¥4 % notes @ May 2016 375 375 -
1,796 1,838 42)
Other 1 4 (3)
£ 1,797 § 1,842 § (45)

@ In connection with the Cendant Separation, Avis Budget Car Rental borrowed $1,875 million in April 2006, which
consisted of (i) $1 billion of unsecured fixed and floating rate notes and (ii) an $875 million secured floating rate term
loan under a credit facility. The floating rate term loan and floating rate notes bear interest at three month LIBOR plus
125 basis peints and three month LIBOR plus 250 basis points, respectively. We use various hedging strategies,
including derivative instruments, to manage a portion of the risks associated with our floating rate debt.

) The floating rate term loan and our revolving credit facility are secured by pledges of ali of the capital stock of all of our
direct or indirect domestic subsidiaries and up to 66% of the capital stock of each direct foreign subsidiary, subject to
certain exceptions, and liens on substantially all of the Company’s intellectual property.

The following table summarizes the components of our debt under vehicle programs (including related party debt
due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC):

Asof As of
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 Change
Avis Budget Rental Car Funding @ $ 4646 § 4511 % 135
Budget Truck financing:
Budget Truck Funding program ® 246 135 111
Capital Jeases © 204 257 (53)
Other @& 500 367 133
$ 5,596 % 5270 § 326

@ The change in the balance ai December 31, 2007 principally reflects the issuance of vehicle-backed floating rate notes
during the first six months of 2007 to support the acquisition of rental vehicles within the Company’s Domestic Car
Rental operations.

®  The change in the batance at December 31, 2007 primarily reflects incremental borrowings during the year ended
December 31, 2007 1o support the acquisition of rentat vehicles within the Budget Truck rental fleet.

&t The change in the balance at December 31, 2007 primarily reflects repayments made during the year ended
December 31, 2007 on capital leases,

@ The change in the balance at December 31, 2007 primarily reflects incremental borrowings to support the acquisition of
vehicles in the Company’s International Car Rental operations and new fleet loans to support the acquisition of certain
vehicles for Domestic Car Rental operations.
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The following table provides the contractual maturities for our corporate debt and our debt under vehicle
programs (including related party debt due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding) at December 31, 2007:

Debt Under
Corporate Vehicle
Debt Programs
Due in 2008 $ 10 § 1,726
Due in 2009 9 474
Due in 2010 9 1,240
Due in 2011 9 827
Due in 2012 760 1,150
Thereafter 1,000 179

$ 1,797 § 5,596

At December 31, 2007, we had approximately $4.1 billion of available funding under our various financing
arrangements (comprised of approximately $1.2 billion of availability at the corporate level and approximately
$2.9 billion available for use in our vehicle programs). As of December 31, 2007, the committed credit facilities
available to us and/or our subsidiaries at the corporate or Avis Budget Car Rental level included:

Total Outstanding  Lettersof  Available
Capacity Borrowings Credit Issued Capacity

$1.5 billion revolving credit facility @} $ 1,500 § - 3 338 § 1,162
Letter of credit facility ) 303 - 303 -

@ This secured revolving credit facility was entered into by Avis Budget Car Rental in April 2006, has a five year term and
currently bears interest of LIBOR plus 125 basis points. The floating rate term loan and our revolving credit facility are
secured by pledges of all of the capital stock of all of the Company’s direct or indirect domestic subsidiaries and up to
66% of the capital stock of each direct foreign subsidiary, subject to certain exceptions, and liens on substantially all of
the Company's intellectual property.

) Final maturity date is July 2010

The following table presents available funding under our debt arrangements related to our vehicle programs at
December 31, 2007:

Total Outstanding Available
Capacity @ Borrowings Capacity

Debt due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding ® $ 6,621 % 4646 $ 1975
Budget Truck Financing:
Budget Truck Funding program © ‘ 400 246 154
Capital leases® 204 204 -
Other 1,227 500 127

$ 8452 § 5596 § 2,856

@  Capacity is subject to maintaining sufficient assets to collateralize debt.

®  The outstanding debi is collateralized by approximately $6.7 billion of underlying vehicles (the majority of which are
subject to manufacturer repurchase or guaranteed depreciation obligations) and related assets.

©  The outstanding debt is collateralized by approximately $296 million of underiying vehicles and related assets.

@  In conpection with these capital leases, there are corresponding unamortized assets of $207 million classified within
vehicles, net on our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2007.

0 The outstanding debt is collateralized by $1.1 billion of vehicles and related assets.

The significant terms for our outstanding debt instruments, credit facilities and available funding arrangements as
of December 31, 2007 can be found in Notes 16 and 17 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

50




LIQUIDITY RISK

We believe that access to our existing financing arrangements is sufficient to meet liquidity requirements for the
foreseeable future. Our primary liquidity needs include the payment of operating expenses, corporate and vehicle
related debt and procurement of rental vehicles to be used in our operations. Qur primary sources of funding are
operating revenue, cash received upon sale of vehicles, borrowings under our vehicle-backed borrowing
arrangements and our revolving credit facility.

Our liquidity position may be negatively affected by unfavorable conditions in the vehicle rental industry or the
asset backed financing market. Additionally, our liquidity as it relates to vehicle programs could be adversely
affected by (i) the deterioration in the performance of the underlying assets of such programs, (ii) increased costs
associated with the principal financing program for our vehicle rental subsidiaries if General Motors Corporation
or Ford Motor Company is not able to honor its obligations to repurchase or guarantee the depreciation on the
related vehicles, (iii) any disruption in our ability to obtain financing due to negative credit events specific to us
or affecting the overall debt market and {iv} default by any of the financial-guarantee firms that have insured a
portion of our outstanding vehicle-backed debt. Our liquidity may aiso be negatively impacted if either Realogy
or Wyndham is unable to meet its indemnification and other obligations under the agreements among us,
Realogy, Wyndham and Travelport entered into in connection with the Cendant Separation. Access to our credit
facilities may be limited if we were to fail to meet certain financial ratios or other requirements.

Additionally, we monitor the maintenance of required financial ratios and, as of December 31, 2007, we were in
compliance with all financial covenants under our credit facilities.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table summarizes our future contractual obligations as of December 3 1, 2007

200 2009 2010 2011 2012  Thereafier Total

Long-term debt, including current

portion (@ $ 108 9% 93% 9 % 760 $1000 § 1,797
Asset-backed debt under programs ®) 1,726 474 1,240 827 1,150 179 5,596
Debt interest 327 284 245 197 116 164 1,333
Operating leases © 398 294 210 160 132 741 1,935
Commitments to purchase vehicles @) 4910 - - - - - 4910
Tax obligations ‘¢ - - - - - 440 440
Other purchase commitments 29 - - - - - 29

$7,400 §$1,06t $1,704 $1,193 $2,158 $2,524 $16,040

@  Consists primarily of borrowings of Avis Budget Car Rental including $1,000 million of fixed and floaiing rate senior
notes and $797 million outstanding under a secured floating rate term loan.

) Represents debt under vehicle programs (including related party debt due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding), which
was issued to support the purchase of vehicles.

©  Operating lease obligations are presented net of sublease rentals to be received (see Note 18 to our Consolldated
Financial Statements).

@  Represents commitments to purchase vehicles, the majority of which are from General Motors Corporation, Ford Motor
Company or Chrysler LLC. These commitments are subject to the vehicle manufacturers’ satisfying their obligations
under the repurchase and guaranteed depreciation agreements. The purchase of such vehicles is financed through the
issuance of debt under vehicle programs in addition to cash received upon the sale of vehicles primarily under repurchase
and guaranteed depreciation programs (see Note 18 to our Consolidated Financial Statements).

©  Primarily represents income tax uncertainties related 1o FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48”), substantially all of which are entitled to
indemnification by Realogy and Wyndham.

M Primarily represents commitments under service contracts for information technology and telecommunications.
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For more information regarding guarantees and indemnifications, see Note 18 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Critical Accounting Policies

In presenting our financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, we are
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported therein. Several of the estimates and
assumptions we are required to make relate to matters that are inherently uncertain as they pertain to future
events and/or events that are outside of our control. If there is a significant unfavorable change to current
conditions, it could result in a material adverse impact to our consolidated results of operations, financial position
and liquidity. We believe that the estimates and assumptions we used when preparing our financial statements
were the most appropriate at that time. Presented below are those accounting policies that we believe require
subjective and complex judgments that could potentially affect reported results. However, our businesses operate
in environments where we are paid a fee for a service performed, and therefore the results of the majority of our
recurring operations are recorded in our financial statements using accounting policies that are not particularly
subjective, nor complex. '

Goodwill and Other Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets. We have reviewed the carrying value of our goodwill and
other indefinite-lived intangible assets as required by SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” In
performing this review, we are required to make an assessment of fair value for our goodwill and other
indefinite-lived intangible assets. When determining fair value, we utilize various assumptions, including the fair
market trading price of our common stock and management’s projections of future cash flows. A change in these
underlying assumptions will cause a change in the results of the tests and, as such, could cause the fair value to
be less than the respective carrying amount. In such event, we would then be required to record a charge, which
would impact earnings. We review the carrying value of goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets for
impairment annually, or more frequently if circumstances indicate impairment may have occurred.

Our goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets are allocated among three reporting units. A $1,195
million charge was recorded for the impairment of goodwill at each of our reporting units to reflect the decline in
the fair value as evidenced by a decline in the market value of our common stock. Domestic Car Rental
operations recorded $786 million of the goodwill impairment, International Car Rental recorded $268 million
and Truck Rental recorded $141 million. Following the goodwill impairment charge, the aggregate carrying
value of our goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets was approximately $1.0 billion and $690
million, respectively, at December 31, 2007,

Vehicles. We present vehicles at cost, net of accumulated depreciation on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. We
record the initial cost of the vehicle net of incentives and allowances from manufactures. We acquire our rental
vehicles either through repurchase and guaranteed depreciation programs with certain automobile manufacturers
or outside of such programs. For rental vehicles purchased under such programs, we depreciate the vehicles such
that the net book value on the date of sale or return to the manufacturers is intended to equal the contractual
guaranteed residual values. For vehicles acquired outside of manufacturer repurchase and guaranteed
depreciation programs, we depreciate based on the vehicles’ estimated residual market values and their expected
dates of disposition. See Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition
of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in
the financial statements. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the
differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect
for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax
assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.
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We record net deferred tax assets to the extent we believe these assets will more likely than not be realized. In
making such determination, we consider all available positive and negative evidence, including scheduled
reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, tax planning strategies and recent results of
operations. In the event we were to determine that we would be able to realize deferred income tax assets in the
future in excess of their net recorded amount, we would make an adjustment to the valuation aliowance which
wouid reduce the provision for income taxes.

See Notes 2 and 10 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding income taxes.

Financial Instruments. We estimate fair values for each of our financial instruments, including derivative
instruments. Most of these financial instruments are not publicly traded on an organized exchange. In the absence
of quoted market prices, we must develop an estimate of fair value using dealer quotes, present value cash flow
maodels, option pricing models or other conventional valuation methods, as appropriate. The use of these fair
value techniques involves significant judgments and assumptions, including estimates of future interest rate
levels based on interest rate yield curves, volatility factors, and an estimation of the timing of future cash flows,
The use of different assumptions may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounis recorded in the
financial statements, which are disclosed in Note 22 1o our Consolidated Financial Statements. In addition, hedge
accounting requires that at the beginning of each hedge period, we justify an expectation that the relationship
between the changes in fair value of derivatives designated as hedges compared to changes in the fair value of the
underlying hedged items will be highly effective. This effectiveness assessment, which is performed at least
quarterly, involves an estimation of changes in fair value resulting from changes in interest rates, as well as the
probability of the occurrence of transactions for cash flow hedges. The use of different assumptions and changing
market conditions may impact the results of the effectiveness assessment and ultimately the timing of when
changes in derivative fair values and the underlying hedged items are recorded in earnings. See Item 7a.
“Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk™ for a discussion of the effect of hypothetical
changes to these assumptions.

Public Liability, Property Damage and Other Insurance Liabilities, Net. Insurance liabilities on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets include additional liability insurance, personal effects protection insurance, public
liability, property damage and personal accident insurance claims for which we are self-insured. We estimate the
required liability of such claims on an undiscounted basis etilizing an actuarial method that is based upon various
assumptions which include, but are not limited to, our histerical loss experience and projected loss development
factors. The required liability is also subject to adjustment in the future based upon changes in claims experience,
including changes in the number of incidents and changes in the ultimate cost per incident,

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements
During 2007, we adopted the following standards as a result of the issuance of a new accounting pronouncement;

¢ FASB interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”

+ FASB Staff Position FIN 48-1, “Definition of Settlement in FASB Interpretation No. 48”
We wiil adopt the following recently issued standards as required:

+ SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”

« FASB Staff Position FAS 157-1. “Application of SFAS No. 157 to'SFAS No. 13 and its Related
Interpretative Accounting Pronouncements that Address Leasing Transactions™

* FASB Staff Position FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of SFAS 1577
+ SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”

=  SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations”
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+ SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statement — an amendment of ARB
No. 51”7

For detailed information regarding these pronouncements and the impact thereof on our business, see Notes 1 and
2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We use various financial instruments, particularly swap contracts, futures and options contracts, to manage and
reduce the interest rate risk related specifically to our debt. Foreign currency forwards are also used to manage
and reduce the foreign currency exchange rate risk associated with our foreign currency denominated receivables
and forecasted royalties, forecasted earnings of foreign subsidiaries and other transactions. We also use
derivative commodity instruments to manage and reduce the risk of changing unleaded gasoline prices.

We are exclusively an end user of these instruments, which are commonly referred to as derivatives. We do not
engage in trading, market-making or other speculative activities in the derivatives markets. More detailed
information about these financial instruments is provided in Note 22—Financial Instruments to our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Our principal market exposures are interest and foreign currency rate risks.

«  Our primary interest rate exposure at December 31, 2007 was to interest rate fluctuations in the United
States, specifically LIBOR and commercial paper interest rates due to their impact on variable rate
borrowings and other interest rate sensitive liabilities. We anticipate that LIBOR and commercial paper
rates will remain a primary market risk exposure for the foreseeable future.

«  We have foreign currency rate exposure to exchange rate fluctuations worldwide and particularly with
respect to the British pound, Canadian dollar, Australian dollar and the New Zealand dollar. We
anticipate that such foreign currency exchange rate risk will remain a market risk exposure for the
foreseeable future,

+  We have commodity price exposure related to fluctuations in the price of unieaded gasoline. We
anticipate that such commodity risk will remain a market risk exposure for the foreseeable future.

We assess our market risk based on changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates utilizing a sensitivity
analysis. The sensitivity analysis measures the potential impact in earnings, fair values and cash flows based on a
hypothetical 10% change (increase and decrease) in interest and currency rates.

We use a duration-based model in determining the impact of interest rate shifts on our debt portfolio and interest
rate derivative portfolios. The primary assumption used in this model is that a 10% increase or decrease in the
benchmark interest rate produces a paralle! shift in the yield curve across all maturities.

Our total market risk is influenced by a wide variety of factors including the volatility present within the markets
and the liquidity of the markets. There are certain limitations inherent in the sensitivity analyses presented. While
probably the most meaningful analysis, these “shock tests™ are constrained by several factors, including the
necessity to conduct the analysis based on a single point in time and the inability to include the complex market
reactions that normally would arise from the market shifts modeled.

We used December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 market rates on outstanding financial instruments to perform the
sensitivity analyses separately for each of our market risk exposures. The estimates are based on the market risk
sensitive portfolios described in the preceding paragraphs and assume instantaneous, parallel shifts in interest
rate yield curves and exchange rates.

We have determined that the impact of a 10% change in interest and foreign currency exchange rates and prices
on our earnings, fair values and cash flows would not be material. While these results may be used as
benchmarks, they should not be viewed as forecasts.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

See Consolidated Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial Statement Index commencing on Page F-1
hereof,

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a)

(b)

(©)

Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on such
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of
such period, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our management is
responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control aver financial reporting, as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our management assessed the effectiveness of our
internal contro] over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. In making this assessment, management
used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
{COSO) in Internal Comtrol-Integraied Framework. Based on this assessment, our management believes
that, as of December 31, 2007, our internal control over financial reporting is effective. Our independent
registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of the Coinp'any‘s
internal control'over financial reporting, which is included below. '

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. There have not been any changes in the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) during the Company’s fiscal fourth quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially atfect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting,
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Avis Budget Group, Inc.

We have audited the internal controt over financial reporting of Avis Budget Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company's principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in fnternal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2007 of the Company and our report dated February 27, 2008 expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements and financial statement schedule and included an explanatory paragraph
relating to the Company’s adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, on January 1, 2007.

fs/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
New York, New York
February 27, 2008
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART III
iTEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information contained in the Company’s Annual Proxy Statement under the sections titled “Board of
Directors,” “Executive Officers,” “Corporate Governance” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” is incorporated herein by reference in response to this item.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information contained in the Company’s Annual Proxy Statetnent under the section titled “Executive
Compensation” is incorporated herein by reference in response o this item.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information contained in the Company’s Annual Proxy Statement under the section titled “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” is incorporated herein by reference in response to
this item.

Information concerning our equity compensation plans is included in Part II of this report under the caption
“Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans.”

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS; AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information contained in the Company’s Annual Proxy Statement under the section titled “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions” and “Board of Directors” is incorporated herein by reference in
response to this item.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information contained in the Company’s Annual Proxy Statement under the section titled “Ratification of
Appointment of Auditors” is incorporated herein by reference in response to this item.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
ITEM 15(A)(1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See Consolidated Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial Statements Index commencing on page F-1
hereof.

ITEM 15(A)(2) FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

See Schedute I1—Valuation and Qualifying Account for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
commencing on page G-1 hereof,

ITEM 15(A)(3) EXHIBITS

See Exhibit Index commencing on page H-1 hereof.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AVIS BUDGET GROUP, INC.
By: /s BRETT WEINBLATT

Brett Weinblatt
Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
Date: February 28, 2008 '
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Avis Budget Group, Ing,

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Avis Budget Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”} as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31. 2007. Our
audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements
and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, Also, in our opinion, such financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of
FASB Statemeni No. 109, on January 1, 2007.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 27, 2008 expressed an unqualified
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

fs/ DELQITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York
February 27, 2008
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Avis Budget Group, Inc,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In millions, except per share data)

Revenues
Vehicle rental
Other

Net revenues

Expenses
Operating
Vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net
Selling, general and administrative
Vehicle interest, net

Non-vehicle related depreciation and amortization

Interest expense related to corporate debt, net:
Interest expense
Early extinguishment of debt

Separation costs, net

Restructuring charges

Goodwill impairment

Total expenses

Loss before income taxes
Benefit from income taxes

Loss from continuing operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting changes

Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax

Net income (loss)

Earnings (loss) per share
Basic
Loss from continuing operations
Net income (loss)
Diluted
Loss from continuing operations
Net income (loss)

Year Ended December 31,

2007

2006

2005

$ 4667 § 4519 § 4302

1,319 1,170 1,098
5.986 5680 5,400
3,033 2,887 2,729
1,571 1,416 1,238
658 818 857

315 320 309

84 105 116

127 236 172

. 313 ;

(5) 261 15

- 10 26

1,195 - -
6,978 6,366 5462
(992) (677) (62)
(45) (226) 51
(947) (@51) (11

Q) 478 1,088

33 (1.957) 549

(916)  (1,930) 1,626

- (64) (8)

$ (916) $ (1,994) $ 1,618
$ (9.18) $ (448) $ (0.10)
(8.88)  (19.82) 1556

$ (9.18) $ (448) $ (0.10)
(8.88)  (19.82)  15.56

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Avis Budget Group, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except share data)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $19 and $20)
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes
Goodwill

Other intangibles, net

QOther non-current assets

Total assets exclusive of assets under vehicle programs

Assets under vehicle programs:
Program cash
Vehicles, net
Receivables from vehicle manufacturers and other
Investment in Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC—related party

Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt
Other non-current liabilities

Total liabilities exclusive of liabilities under vehicle programs

Liabilities under vehicle programs:
Debt
Debt due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding {AESOP) LLC—related party
Deferred income taxes
Other

Commitments and contingencies (Note 18}

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value—authorized 10 million shares; none issued and outstanding
Common stock, $.01 par value—authorized 250 million shares; issued 136,706,236 and

135,498,121 shares
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Treasury stock, at cost—32,719,985 and 34,306,694 shares

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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December 31,

2007 2006
214 $ 172
392 363

42 7
570 1,264
1,218 1,806
500 486
234 226
1,000 2,193
760 739
781 121
4,493 5,571
1 14
7.474 7,049
276 276
230 361
7,981 7,700
12,474 13,271
1,094 1,855
10 29
1,104 1,884
1,787 1,813
998 452
3,889 4,149
950 759
4,646 4,511
1,246 1,206
278 203
7.120 6,679
1 1
9,320 9,664
(1.520) (586)
32 68
(6,368) (6,704)
1,465 2,443
12474 $ 13271




Avis Budget Group, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{In millions)

Operating Activities
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to arrive at loss from continuing operations

Loss from continuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing operations to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities exclusive of vehicle programs:
Non-vehicle related depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Goodwill impairment
Net change in assets and liabilities, excluding the impact of acquisitions

and dispositions:

Receivables

Income 1axes

Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Other, net

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities exclusive of vehicle
programs

Vehicle programs:
Vehicle depreciation

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Property and equipment additions

Net assets acquired (net of cash acquired) and acquisition-related payments
Proceeds received on asset sales

Proceeds from sale of investment

Payments made to Realogy and Wyndham, net

Purchase of equity investment

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities

Other, net

Net cash used in investing activities exclusive of vehicle programs

Vehicle programs:
Decrease {increase) in program cash
Investment in vehicles
Proceeds received on disposition of vehicles
Other, net

Net.cash used in investing activities

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

916) $ (1,994) § 1,618
Gn 1,543 (1,629)
(947) 450 (11
84 105 116
57 (200) (170)
1,195 - )
(6) (33) (14)
38 (3001 69)
(120) 8N @)
(38) (143) (39)
149 (1,110) (191
1,565 1,362 1,191
1,565 1,362 1,191
1.714 252 1,000
(94) (95) (146)
(1D (118) 21N
19 25 46

106 - -
(108) - -
(60) - -

- - 18

(13) 4 66
(161) (184) 227)
13 i (15)
(10,633)  (11,348) (11,214)
8,864 10,790 8.869
- (12) (22)
{1,756) {569) {2.382)
(1,.917) (753) (2,609)




Avis Budget Group, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(In millions)

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings - 1,875 -
Principal payments on borrowings (45) (3,603) (38)
Net short-term repayments under revolving credit agreement - - (650)
Issuances of common stock 50 46 289
Repurchases of common stock - (243) (1,349)
Payment of dividends - (113) (423)
Other, net n (38) 7
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities exclusive of vehicle

programs 4 (2,076) (2,164)
Vehicle programs:

Proceeds from borrowings 10,565 10,979 10,246

Principal payments on borrowings (10,236) (13,310) (9,149

Net change in short-term borrowings (86) (282) 81

Other, net (8) (15 (15)

235 (2,628) 1,163

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 239 (4,704) (1,001)
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 6 2 -
Cash provided by discontinued operations

Operating activities - 463 2,513

Investing activities - 3,304 (110}

Financing activities - 1,050 641

Effect of changes in exchange rates - 12 51
Cash provided by discontinued operations - 4,829 2,993
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 42 (374) 383
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 172 546 163
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 3 214§ 172 % 546

Supplemental Disclosure
Interest payments
Income tax payments (refunds), net

461 §$ 996 $ 576
(26) 3 275 8 188

o o

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Balance at January 1, 2005

Comprehensive income:

Net income

Currency transtation adjustment, net of
tax of $(20)

Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges,
net of tax of $26

Reclassification for gains on cash flow
hedges. net of tax of $(8}

Unrealized loss on available-for- sale
securities, net of tax of $1

Reclassification for realized holding
gains on available-for- sale securities,
net of tax of $(10}

Minimum pension liability adjusunent,
net of 1ax of $(12}

Total comprehensive income

Net activity related to restricted stock
units

Exercise of stock optiens

Tax benefit from exercise of stock
options

Repurchases of common stuck

Payment of dividends

Dividend of PHH Corpuoration

Adjustment to offset PHH valuation
charge included in net income

Other

Balance at December 31, 2005

Avis Budget Group, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In millions)

Accumulated
Additional Other — - Total
M Paid-in  Retained Comprehensive M Stockholders®
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income Shares Amount Equity
1333 % 1 11,802 § 5948 § 274 (282) § (5.561) § 12,464
- - - 1,618 - - -
- - - - (219 - -
- - - - 39 - -
- - - - {n - -
. - - - ) - -
R - - - (13) - -
- - - an - -
1,395
- . 14 - - 0.3 63 77
1.7 135 - - 0.8 133 268
y . 79 - . - - 79
. - - - (6.8) (1349 (1,349)
- - - (423 - - - (423)
- - - (1427 (11 - (1.438)
. - - 281 - - B 281
0.1 - (8 - - - 4 (12)
135.1 % 1 12022 § 5997 § 40 (339 $(6.718) § 11,342




Balance at January 1, 2006

Comprehensive loss:

Net loss

Currency translation adjustment, net of
tax of $16

Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges,
net of tax of $(6)

Reclassilication for gains on cash flow
hedges, net of tax of $(1}

Minimum pension liability adjustment,
net of tax of $5

Total comprehensive loss

Net activity related to restricted stock
units

Exercise of stock options

Tax benefit from exercise of stock
options

Repurchases of common stock

Payment of dividends

Dividend of Realogy Corporation and
Wyndham Worldwide Corporation

Cumulative effect of adoption of SFAS
No. 158, net of tax of $(2)

Other

Balance at December 31, 2006

Comprehensive loss:

Net loss

Currency translation adjustment

Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges,
net of tax of $39

Pension liability adjustment, net of tax
of §(5)

Total comprehensive loss

Adoption of FIN 48 (see Note 2}

Net activity related to restricted stock
units

Exercise of stock options

Tax benefit from exercise of stock
options

Activity related to employee stock
purchase plan

Post-separation dividend adjustment

Other

Balance at December 31, 2007

Avis Budget Group, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Continued)
{In mitlions)

Accumulated
- Additional Qther . Total
CommonStock  “pijin  Retained Comprehensive _LTeASUrY Stock g0 okholders’
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income Shares  Amount Equity

135.1 % 1 § 12022 § 5997 % 40 (339) 3 (6,7I8) § 11,342

- - - (1.994) - - -

. - 213 -

. - (12) - -

- R - . (1} - .

- . . - 9 - -
(1,785)
. - (48) - 0.7 211 163
0.4 - 39 - - 0.2 44 83
- - 12 - - - - 12
_ R . - - (1.4) (243) (243)
- - - {107) - - - (107)
- - (2,361)  (4.482) (167) - . (7.010)
- - - - @ - - @
. . - (10 0.1 2 8
1355 % 1 $ 9664 § (586} $ 68  (34.3) § (6,704) § 2,443

- - - (916} - - -

R - - . 50 - -

- . . . (93 - R

- . . - 7 R
(952)
- - (18) - - (18)
N - (60) - - 0.3 72 12
1.2 - 207y - - 1.3 256 49
- - 1 - - 1
- - 3) - - 4 1
- - (66) - - - (66)
- - ] - - 4 &)
136.7 § i % 9320 % (1,520} § 32 (327 $(6.368) % 1,465

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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N Avis Budget Group, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unless otherwise noted, all amounts are in millions, except per share amounts)

1. Basis of Presentation

Avis Budget Group, Inc. provides car and truck rentals and ancillary services to businesses and consumers in
the United States and internationally. The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the

accounts and transactions of Avis Budget Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“*Avis Budget”), as well as entities
in which Avis Budget directly or indirectly has a controlling financial interest (collectively, the “Company™).

The Company operates in the following business segments:
.= Domestic Car Rental—provides car rentals and ancillary products and services in the United States.

* International Car Rental-—provides car rentals and ancillary products and services primarily in
Argentina, Australia, Canada, New Zealand, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands.

» Truck Rental—provides truck rentals and related services to consumers and light commercial users
in the United States.

In presenting the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with accounting principles generaily
accepted in the United States, management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
and related disclosures. Estimates, by their nature, are based on judgment and available information.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates,

Discontinued Operations. On January 31, 2005, the Company completed the spin-off of its former mortgage,
fleet leasing and appraisal businesses in a tax-free distribution to the Company’s stockholders of one share of
PHH Corporation (“PHH"} common stock per every twenty shares of Cendant common stéck held on
January 19, 2005, In February 2005, the Company completed an initial public offering of Wright Express
Corporation (“Wright Express”), its former fuel card subsidiary, and in October 2003, the Company sold its
former Marketing Services division, which was comprised of its individual membership and loyalty/
insurance marketing businesses. Also, on July 31, 2006, the Company completed the spin-offs of Realogy
Corporation (*Realogy”) and Wyndham Worldwide Corporation (“Wyndham™), and on August 23, 2006, the
Company completed the sale of Travelport, Inc, (*Travelport”) (see Cendant Separation below). Upon
completion of the spin-off of PHH, the Company’s former mortgage business was not classified as a
discontinued operation due to Realogy’s participation in 2 mortgage origination venture that was established
with PHH in connection with the spin-off. However, due to the spin-off of Realogy on July 31, 2006, the
Company no longer participated in the venture. Pursuant to Statement of Financtal Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 1447),
the account balances and activities of PHH, Wright Express, the former Marketing Services division,
Realogy, Wyndham and Travelport have been segregated and reported as discontinued operations for all
periods presented. Summarized financial data for the aforementioned businesses are provided in Note 3—
Discontinued Operations.

Cendant Separarion. In July 2006, under a Board of Directors approved plan, the Com'pany, then known as
Cendant Corporation (“Cendant™), was separated into four independent companies (the “Cendant
Separation™):

* ‘Realogy Corporation — encompasses the Company’s former Realogy segment, which is now
presented as a discontinued operatlon

+  Wyndham Worldwide Corporation — encompasses the Company’s former Hospitality Services and
Timeshare Resorts segments, which are now presented as discontinued operations.
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« Travelport, Inc. — encompasses the Company’s former Travel Distribution Services segment, which
is now presented as a discontinued operation.

+  Avis Budget Group, Inc. — encompasses the Company’s vehicle rental operations.

On July 31, 2006, the Company completed the spin-offs of Realogy and Wyndham in tax-free distributions of
one share each of Realogy and Wyndham common stock for every four and five shares, respectively, of then
outstanding Cendant common stock held on July 21, 2006. Prior to the completion of the spin-offs, Avis
Budget received special cash dividends of $2,225 million and $1,360 million from Realogy and Wyndham,
respectively, and utilized such proceeds to fund a portion of the repayment of its outstanding debt, as
discussed below. On August 23, 2006, the Company completed the sale of Travelport for proceeds of
approximately $4.1 billion, net of closing adjustments, of which approximately $1.8 billion was used to repay
indebtedness of Travelport. Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement {(“Separation Agreement”)
among the separating companies, during third quarter 2006, the Company distributed $1,423 million and
$760 million of such proceeds from the sale of Travelport to Realogy and Wyndham, respectively.

During 2007, the Company recorded a net credit of $5 million in connection with the Cendant Separation.
During 2006 and 2005, the Company incurred costs of $574 million and $15 million, respectively, in
connection with executing the Cendant Separation. The 2007 net credit and 2006 costs are as follows:

_ 2007 2006
Early extinguishment of corporate debt ' $ - § 313
Other separation costs: |
Stock-based compensation - 79
Severance and retention 3 70
Legal, accounting and other professional fees 5 38
Reversal of receivables from Realogy and Wyndham - 28
Asset write-offs - 19
I[nsurance - 14
Infrastructure implementation 4 2
FIN 48 indemnification ® (14) -
Other ' _ (3) 11
5)] 261

$ 5) % 54

®  Represents the reversal of receivables from Realogy and Wyndham due to the favorable resolution of certain tax
related contingencies, for which the Company is entitled to indernnification by Realogy and Wyndham. The benefit
for income taxes includes a corresponding credit resulting from the favorable resolution of such matters.

i  See Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

1

During 2006, the Company also incurred costs within discontinued operations of $239 million in connection
with executing the Cendant Separation. Such costs are primarily related to the accelerated vesting of stock-
based compensation awards, severance and retention and professional and consulting fees.

In addition, pursuant to the Separation Agreement, Realogy, Wyndham and Travelport have agreed to assume
and retain all of the liabilities primarily related to each of their respective businesses and operations,
including litigation primarily related to each of their businesses where the Company is a named party.
Realogy and Wyndham have also agreed to assume certain contingent and other corporate liabilities of the
Company or its subsidiaries incurred prior to the disposition of Travelport (see Note 183—Commitments and
Contingencies).
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Prior to the spin-offs of Realogy and Wyndham, the Company entered into a Transition Services Agreement
with Realogy, Wyndham and Travelport to provide for an orderly transition following the sale of Travelport
and the spin-offs of Realogy and Wyndham. Under the Transition Services Agreement, the Company has
provided Realogy, Wyndham and Travelport with various services, including services relating to payroll,
accounts payable, telecommunications and information technology in exchange for fees based on the
estimated cost of the services provided. .

Also, in connection with its execution of the Cendant Separation, the Company repaid certain corporate and
other debt and entered into new financing arrangements (see Note 16—Long-term Debt and Borrowing
Arrangements). )

Selling, general and administrative expenses on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations
include unallocated corporate expenses in 2005 and 2006 related to the Company's discontinued
operations. Accordingly, the expenses recorded by the Company in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations may not be indicative of the actual expenses the Company will incur as a separate company.

Vehicle Programs. The Company presents separately the financial data of its vehicle programs. These
programs are distinct from the Company's other activities since the assets are generally funded through the
issuance of debt that is collateralized by such assets. Assets under vehicle programs are funded through
borrowings under asset-backed funding or other similar arrangements. The income generated by these assets
is used, in part, to repay the principal and interest associated with the debt. Cash inflows and outflows
relating to the generation or acquisition of such assets and the principal debt repayment or financing of such
assets are classified as activities of the Company’s vehicle programs. The Company believes it is appropriate
to segregate the financial data of its vehicle programs because, ultimately, the source of repayment of such
debt is the realization of such assets.

Reverse Stock Split. In connection with the September 5, 2006 1-for-10 reverse stock split of the Company’s
common stock, common stock share data in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements and notes
have been revised to reflect the reverse stock split, unless otherwise noted.

Changes in Accounting Estimate. During fourth quarter 2007, the Company revised the assumed service
lives of its truck fleet, for model years 2004 and later, to better reflect the projected hold periods of these
vehicles. The Company believes that its decision to retain these trucks longer than previously anticipated will
allow it to reduce cash outflow related to fleet costs. This change will also affect the value the Company
realizes upon the disposition of trucks and will impact the amount and timing of its future fleet purchases.
The change in estimate, effective as of October 1, 2007, was accounted for prospectively and resulted in a
decrease in depreciation expense of approximately $5 million, and decreased net loss by approximately $3
million ($0.03 per diluted share), for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Daring fourth quarter 2007, the Company revised its estimates for recording depreciation expense related to
certain vehicles covered by guaranteed repurchase agreements in light of longer projected hold periods. Once
these vehicles are held longer than the Company’s average hold period, they will be depreciated at monthly
rates consistent with their contractually guaranteed residual values, This change in estimate, effective as of
October 1, 2007, was accounted for prospectively and resulted in a decrease in depreciation expense of
approximately $10 million, and decreased net loss by approximately $6 million ($0.06 per diluted share), for
the year ended December 31, 2007.

Reclassification. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with current year
presentation. In 2007, the Company has presented proceeds from dispositions of businesses as cash provided
by discontinued operations within the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Proceeds for 2006 and 2005,
were $4,046 million and $2,636 million, respectively.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accountmg Policies
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES ‘ '

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The Consolidated Fmanc1a1 Statemems mclude the accounts of Avis Budget and all entities in which the
Company has a direct or indirect controlling financial interest and variable interest entities (“*VIEs"} where
the Company is determined to be the primary beneficiary. The Company is deemed to be the primary
beneficiary if it bears a majority of the risk to the entities’ potential losses or stands to gain from a majority of
the entities’ expected returns. Significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The use of estimates and assumptions as determined by management are required in the preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP. Theée estimates are based on management’s
evaluation of historical trends and other information available. when the Consolidated Financial Statements
are prepared Changes in estimates are recognized in accordance with the accountmg rules for the estimate.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company derives revenue through the operation and franchising of the Avis and Budget rental systems,
providing vehicle rentals and other services to business and leisure travelers and others. Other revenue
includes rentals of GPS navigational units, sales of loss damage waivers and insurance products, and other
items. Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the services have been
rendered to customers, the pricing is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured.

Vehicle rental and rental-related revenue is recognized over the period the vehicle is rented. Franchise
revenue principally consists of royalties and is recorded as the franchisee revenue is earned (generally over
the rental period of a vehicle). Revenue and expenses associated with gasoline, vehicle licensing and airport
concessions are recorded on a gross basis within revenue and operating expenses.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate of exchange in effect on the balance sheet
date; income and expenses are translated at the weighted average rate of exchange prevailing during the year.
The related translation adjustments are reflected in “Accumulated other comprehensive income™ in the
stockholders’ equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The accumulated foreign currency translation
adjustment as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 was $117 million and $67 million, respectively.
Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from transactions are included in earnings.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ‘

The Company considers highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment {including leasehold improvements) are recorded at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization. Depreciation (non-vehicle related) is computed utilizing the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Amortization of leasehold improvements is
computed utilizing the straight-line method over the estimated benefit period of the related assets, which may
not exceed 20 years, or the lease term, if shorter. Useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 30 years
Furniture, fixtures & equipment 3107 years
Capitalized internal use software 3to 7 years
Buses and support vehicles 4 to 15 years

The Company capitalizes the costs of software developed for internal use in accordance with Statement of
Position No. 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal
Use.” The software developed or obtained for internal use is amortized on a straight-line basis when such
software is substantially ready for use. The net carrying value of software developed or obtained for internal
use was $60 million and $50 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

On March 30, 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations™ (“FIN 477). which clarifies that conditional asset retirement obligations (“ARQs”),
are within the scope of SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” FIN 47 requires a
company to recognize a liability for the fair value of conditional AROs if the fair value of the liability can be
reasonably estimated. The Company adopted FIN 47 in 2005 and recorded a $14 million ($8 million after tax.
or $0.08 per diluted share) non-cash charge 1o reflect the cumulative effect of accounting change relating to
the Company’s AROs to remove assets at certain leased properties.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the fair values assigned to the tangible
assets acquired, the intangible assets that are required to be recognized and reported separately from goodwill
and the liabilities assumed. The Company does not amortize goodwill, but tests it at least annually for
recoverability. Other intangible assets, primarily trademarks, with indefinite lives are not amortized but are
evaluated annually for impairment, Other intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their
remaining useful lives.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

In connection with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (*SFAS No. 142™), the Company
is required to assess goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment annually, or more
frequently if circumstances indicate impairment may have occurred, The Company assesses goodwill for
such impairment by comparing the carrying value of its reporting units to their fair values and reviewing the
Company’s market capitalization as compared to stockholders’ equity. Each reportable segment represents a
reporting unit. The Company determines the fair value of its reporting units utilizing discounted cash flows
and incorporates assumptions that it believes marketplace participants would utilize. When available and as
appropriate, comparative market multiples and other factors to corroborate the discounted cash {low resuits
are used. Other indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested for impairment and written down to fair value, as
required by SFAS No. 142, The Company performs its annual impairment testing in the fourth quarter of
each year.

The Company also evaluates the recoverability of its other long-lived assets, including amortizable intangible

assets, if circumstances indicate impairment may have occurred, pursuant to SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets™ (“SFAS No. 144™). This analysis is performed by
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comparing the respective carrying values of the assets to the current and expected future cash flows, on an
undiscounted basis, to be generated from such assets. Property and equipment is evaluated separately within
each segment. If such analysis indicates that the carrying value of these assets is not recoverable, the carrying
value of such assets is reduced to fair value.

During 2007, a $1,195 million ($1,073 million after tax) charge was recorded for the impairment of goodwill
at each of the Company’s reporting units to reflect the decline in their fair value as evidenced by a decline in
the market value of the Company’s common stock. Domestic Car Rental recorded $786 million of the
goodwill impairment, International Car Rental recorded $268 million and Truck Rental recorded $141
million. There was no impairment under SFAS No. 142 on indefinite lived assets or under SFAS No. 144 on
long-lived assets.

During 2006 and 2003, there was no impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets within the Company’s
continuing operations.

During 2006, the Company recorded an impairment charge of approximately $1.3 billion within discontinued
operations 1o reflect the difference between Travelport’s carrying value and its estimated fair value, less costs
to dispose.

During 2005, the Company determined that the carrying values of goodwill and certain other indefinite-lived
intangible assets assigned to Travelport’s consumer travel businesses within discontinued operations
exceeded their estimated fair values. In connection with the impairment assessments performed, the
Company recorded a pretax charge of $425 million within discontinued operations, of which $254 miilion
reduced the value of goodwill and $171 million reduced the value of other intangible assets (including $120
million related to trademarks). This impairment resulted from a decline in future anticipated cash flows
primarily generated by Travelport’s consumer travel businesses.

PROGRAM CASH

Program cash primarily represents amounts specifically designated to purchase assets under vehicle programs
andfor to repay the related debt.

VEHICLES

Vehicles are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of the vehicles is net of
incentives and allowances from manufacturers. The Company acquires many of its rental vehicles pursuant to
repurchase and guaranteed depreciation programs established by automobile manufacturers, Under these
programs, the manufacturers agree to repurchase vehicles at a specified price and date, or guarantee the
depreciation rate for a specified period of time, subject to certain eligibility criteria (such as car condition and
mileage requirements). The Company depreciates vehicles such that the net book value on the date of return
to the manufacturers is intended to equal the contractual guaranteed residual values, thereby minimizing any
gain or loss. The Company records depreciation expense for any deficiency in the contractual guaranteed
residual values due to excessive wear or damages. At December 31, 2007, the Company has cumulatively
recorded $47 million for the projected difference between the contracted guaranteed residual value and the
carrying value of such vehicles, which is reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Rental vehicles acquired outside of manufacturer repurchase and guaranteed depreciation programs are
depreciated based upon their estimated residual values at their expected dates of disposition, after giving
effect to anticipated conditions in the used car market.

For 2007, 2006 and 2005, rental vehicles were depreciated at rates ranging from 5% to 48% per annum. Upon
disposal of the vehicles, depreciation expense is adjusted for any difference between the net sales proceeds
and the remaining book value. Vehicle-related interest amounts are net of interest income of $5 million, $6
million and $4 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company revised the assumed service lives of its truck fleet, for model
years 2004 and later, to better reflect the projected hold periods of these vehicles (see Note 1—Basis of
Presentation), '

During the fourth quarter 2007, the Company revised its estimates for recording depreciation expense related
1o certain vehicles covered by guaranteed repurchase agreements (see Note | —Basis of Presentation).

ADVERTISING EXPENSES

Advertising costs are expensed in the period incurred. Advertising expenses, recorded within selling, general
and administrative expense on our Consolidated Statements of Operations, include radio, television, “yellow
pages” and other advertising, travel partner points programs, internet advertising and other promotions and
were approximately $106 million, $107 million and $100 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition
of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
included in the financial statements. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined
based on the differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted
tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax
rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment
date.

The Company records net deferred tax assets to the extent it believe these assets will more likely than not be
realized. In making such determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence,
including scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, tax planning
strategies and recent results of operations. In the event the Company were to determine that it would be able
to realize the deferred income tax assets in the future in excess of their net recorded amount, the Company
would adjust the valuation allowance, which would reduce the provision for income taxes.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No, 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” (“FIN 48”), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in the financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes”. FIN 48 provides that a tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be recognized when it
is mare likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination, including resolations of any
related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits. Income tax positions must meet a more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold at the effective date to be recognized upon the adoption of FIN 48 and
in subsequent periods. This interpretation also provides guidance on measurement, derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. As a result of the implementation of
FIN 48, the Company recognized approximately an $18 million increase in the liability for unrecognized tax
benefits, which was accounted for as a reduction to the January t, 2007, balance of retained earnings,

In June 2006, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") issued EITF Issue No. 06-3, “How Taxes
Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income
Statement (That Is, Gross versus Net Presentation)” (“EITF No. 06-3™). EITF No. 06-3 reached a consensus
that the presentation on a gross or a net basis of any tax assessed by a governmental authority that is both
imposed on and concurrent with a specific revenue-producing transaction between a seller and a customer is
an accounting policy decision that should be disclosed. The Company reports revenues net of these taxes in
its Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Derivative instruments are used as part of the Company’s overall strategy to manage exposure to market risks
assoctated with fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and gasoline costs. As a matter
of policy, derivatives are not used for trading or speculative purposes.

All derivatives are recorded at fair value either as assets or liabilities. Changes in fair value of derivatives not
designated as hedging instruments are recognized currently in earnings within the same line item as the
hedged item {principally vehicle interest, net). The effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives
designated as cash flow hedging instruments is recorded as a component of other comprehensive income. The
ineffective portion is recognized currently in carnings within the same lipe item as the hedged item, including
vehicle interest, net or interest related to corporate debt, net, based upon the nature of the hedged item.
Amounts included in other comprehensive income are reclassified into earnings in the same period during
which the hedged item affects earnings.

During 2006, the Company utilized certain derivatives designated as fair value hedges. Changes in the fair
value of such instruments were recognized in earnings as a component of interest related to corporate debt,
net. The Company did not utilize fair value hedges during 2007.

INVESTMENTS

The Company determines the appropriate classification of its investments in debt and equity securities at the
time of purchase and reevaluates such determination at each balance sheet date. The Company’s
non-marketable preferred stock investments are accounted for at cost plus accretion. Common stock
investments in affiliates over which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence but not a
controlling interest are carried on the equity method of accounting. Available-for-sale securities are carried at
current fair value with unrealized gains or losses reported net of taxes as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity. Trading securities are recorded at fair value with realized and unrealized gains and
losses reported currently in earnings.

Aggregate realized gains and losses on investments and preferred dividend income are recorded within other
revenues on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. There were no net realized gains or losses in
continting operations in 2007, Gains amounted to $11 million and $21 million in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Gains and losses on securities sold are based on the specific identification method.

Affinion Group Holdings, Inc. The Company’s former investment in Affinion Group Holdings, Inc.
(“Affinion™) was received in connection with the October 2005 sale of its former Marketing Services
division, along with cash proceeds approximating 31.7 biltion. This investment represented preferred stock
with a carrying value of $95 million, including accrued dividends (face value of $125 million) maturing in
Qctober 2017, and warrants with a carrying value of $3 million that were exercisable into 7.5% of the
common equity of Affinion upon the earlier of four years or the achievement of specified investment hurdles.

Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, the Company was obligated to distribute all proceeds received on the
sale of its investments in Affinion to Realogy and Wyndham. Accordingly, following the spin-offs of
Realogy and Wyndham on July 31, 2006, the Company began to recognize a charge on its Consolidated
Statement of Operations equal to the dividend and accretion income on the preferred stock of Affinion. From
January 1, 2006 1o July 31, 2006, the Company recorded $6 million of dividend and accretion income related
to its preferred stock investment in Affinion. During 2007, the Company sold the majority of its preferred
stock investment in Affinion and distributed the proceeds and the remaining investment to Realogy and
Wyndham.
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Homestore, Inc. The Company’s investment in Homestore, Inc. (“Homestore”) was received in connection
with the February 2001 sale of its former move.com and ancillary businesses, During 2005, the Company
sold 7.3 million shares of Homestore and recognized gains of $18 million within net revenues on its
Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of December 31, 2005, the Company had sold all of its shares of
Homestore stock. ’

SELF-INSURANCE RESERVES

The Consolidated Balance Sheets include approximately $361 million and $376 million of liabilities with
respect to self-insured public liability and property damage as of December 31. 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Such liabilities relate to additional liability insurance, personal effects protection insurance, public liability,
property damage and personal accident insurance claims for which the Company is self-insured. These
obligations represent an estimate for both reported claims not yet paid and claims incurred but not yet
reported. The Company estimates the required reserve for such claims on an undiscounted basis utilizing an
actuarial method that is based upon various assumptions which inclede, but are not limited to, the Company’s
historical loss experience and projected loss development factors. The required liability is also subject to
adjustment in the future based upon the changes in claims experience, including changes in the number of
incidents and changes in the ultimate cost per incident. These amounts are included within accounts payable
and other current liabilities and other non-current liabilities.

The Consolidated Balance Sheets also includes liabilities of approximately $76 million and $105 million as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. These liabilities relate to health and welfare, workers’
compensation and other benefits the Campany provides to its employees. The Company estimates the
liability required for such benefits based on actual claims outstanding and the estimated cost of claims
incurred as of the balance sheet date. These amounts are included within accounts payable and other current
liabilities.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R™), which
eliminates the alternative (o measure stock-based compensation awards using the intrinsic value approach
permitted by APB Opinion No. 25 and by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”. The
Company adopted SFAS No. 123R on January 1, 2006, as required, under the modified prospective
application method. Since the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense for all outstanding
employee stock awards prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, 1he adoption of such standard did not have a
significant impact on the Company’s results of operations. However, during 2006, the Company recorded an
after tax credit of $1 million as a cumulative effect of an accounting change, which represents the Company’s
estimate of total future forfeitures of stock-based awards outstanding as of Januvary 1, 2006 (see Note 20—
Stock-Based Compensation).
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ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS DURING 2007

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the financial statements in accordance with

FAS 109. FIN 48 provides that a tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be recognized when it is
more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination, including resolutions of any related
appeals or litigation processes, based on technical merits. Income tax positions must meet a more-likely-than-
not recognition threshold at the effective date to be recognized upon the adoption of FIN 48 and in
subsequent periods. This interpretation also provides guidance on measurement, derecognition, classification,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2006,

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. As a result of the implementation of
FIN 48, the Company recognized approximately an $18 million increase in the liability for unrecognized tax
benefits, which was accounted for as a reduction to the January 1, 2007, balance of retained earnings. The
Company is entitled to indemnification from Realogy and Wyndham for additional tax related liabilities of
$14 million recognized as a result of the adoption of FIN 48. The Company recorded a $14 million credit,
within the separation costs, net line item on the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations for first
quarter 2007, reflecting the recognition of receivables from Realogy and Wyndham for such tax-related
matters. At December 31, 2007, certain income tax payable balances have been classified as long term
liabilities and certain receivables from Realogy and Wyndham have been classified as non-current assets
(see Note |5—Other Non-Current Liabilities).

Including the impact of the adoption of FIN 48 discussed above, the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits
totaled $559 million and were reclassitied to long-term income taxes payable as of January 1, 2007. If
recognized, substantially all would affect the annual effective income tax rate. The Company’s unrecognized
tax benefits were offset by tax loss carryforwards and tax credits in the amount of $15 million and $104
million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2007, the unrecognized tax benefits in long-term income taxes payable were $440
million. The Company does not anticipate that total unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change due to
the settlement of audits or the expiration of statute of limitations within twelve months.

Including the impact of the adoption of FIN 48 discussed above, the Company’s accrual for the potential
interest associated with uncertain tax positions was $26 million as of January 1, 2007. During the twelve
months ended December 31, 2007, the Company recorded additional liabilities of $23 million for the accrual
of interest, which had minimal impact on the Company’s results of operations as the Company is
substantially entitled to indemnification for such liabilities and recognized corresponding receivables from
Realogy and Wyndham, The Company recognizes potential interest and the corresponding indemnifications
from Realogy and Wyndham, retated to unrecognized tax benefits within interest expense related to corporate
debt, net on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Penalties incurred during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2007, were not significant and were recognized as a compoenent of income taxes.

In May 2007, the FASB issued FASB Staft Position FIN 48-1, “Definition of Settlement in FASB
Interpretation No. 48" (“FSP FIN 48-17). FSP FIN 48-1 provides guidance on how an enterprise should
determine whether a tax position is effectively settled for the purpose of recognizing previously unrecognized
tax benefits. The Company retroactively adopted the provisions of FSP FIN 48-1 effective January 1, 2007
and has determined that it had no impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 1577), which
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure about fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company
adopted SFAS No. 157 on January 1, 2008, as required, and it bad no impact on its financial statements at the
time of adoption.
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In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FAS 157-1, “Application of SFAS No. 157 to SFAS
No. 13 and Its Related Interpretative Accounting Pronouncements that Address Leasing Transactions™ (“FSP
FAS 157-1"") and FASB Staff Position FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of SFAS No. 157" (“FSP FAS 157-2),
FSP FAS 157-1 excludes SFAS No. 13 and its related interpretive accounting prenouncernents that address
leasing transactions, with the exception of fair value measurements of assets and liabilities recorded as a
result of a lease transaction but measured pursuant to other pronouncements within the scope of SFAS

No. 157. FSP FAS 157-2 delays the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for all nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements
on a recurring basis (at least annually). FSP FAS 157-1 and FSP FAS 157-2 became effective for the
Company upon adoption of SFAS No. 157 on January 1, 2008. '

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities—Inctuding an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115,” (“SFAS No. 159”). SFAS

No. 159 permits a company to irrevocably elect fair value as the initial and subsequent measurement atiribute
for certain financial assets and financial liabilities on a contract-by-contract basis, with changes in fair value
recognized in earnings. The eléction to use the fair value option is available when an entity first recognizes a
financial asset or a {inancial liability or upon entering into a firm commitment. Additionaliy, SFAS No. 159
allows for a one-time election for existing positions upon adoption, with the transition adjustment recorded to
beginning retained earnitigs. The Company adopted SFAS No. 159 on January 1, 2008, as required, and

elected not to apply the option to measure any of its financial assets or liabilities at the time of adoption.
. ‘

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations™ (“SFAS

No. 141(R)"}). SFAS No. 141(R) seeks to impréve the relevance, representational faithfulness, and
comparability of the information that a reporting entity provides in its financial reports about a business
combination and its effects. SFAS No. 141(R) requires an acquirer to recognize the assets acquired, the
liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date, measured at their
fair values as of that date, with limited exceptions. This Statement also requires the acquirer in a business
combination achieved in stages to recognize the identifiable assets and liabilities, as well as the
noncontrolling interest in the acquiree, at the full amounts of their fair values. SFAS No. 141(R) requires an
acquirer to recognize adjustments made during the measurement period to the acquired assets and liabilities
as if they had occurred on the acquisition date and revise prior period financial statements in subsequent
filings for changes. In addition, SFAS No. 141{R) requires that all acquisition related costs be expensed as
incurred, rather than capitalized as part of the purchase price and those restructuring costs that an acquirer
expected but was not obligated to incur to be recognized separately from the business combination. This
Statement applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on.or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The Company will
adopt SFAS No. 141(R) on January 1, 2009, as required, and is currently evaluating the impact of such
adoption on its financial statements,

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51” (“SFAS No. 160”). SFAS No. 160 amends Accounting
Research Bulletin (“ARB”) No. 51 to establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling
{minority) interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It clarifies that a noncontrolling
interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in
the Consolidated Financial Statements. SFAS No. 160 also requires consolidated net income to be reported at
amounts that include the amounts attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest on the face of
the consolidated statement of income. Under SFAS No. 160, the accounting for changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in deconsolidation must be accounted for as equity
transactions for the difference between the parent’s carrying value and the cash exchanged in the transaction.
In addition, SFAS No. 160 also requires that a parent recognize a gain or loss in net income when a
subsidiary is deconsolidated (except in the case of a spin-off), and requires expanded disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent’s
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ownership interest and the interests of the noncontrolling owners of a subsidiary. This Statement is effective
for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The
Company will adopt SFAS No. 160 on January 1, 2009, as required, and is currently evaluating the impact of
such adoption on its financial statements.

1

. Discontinued Operations

Travelport. On August 23, 2006, the Company completed the sale of Travelport, which comprised the
Company’s former travel distribution services businesses for proceeds of approximately $4.1 billion, net of
closing adjustments. The loss incurred on disposal of Travelport included a $1.3 billion impairment charge
reflecting the difference between Travelport’s carrying value and its estimated fair value and a tax charge
related to asset basis differences resulting from the 2001 acquisition of a Travelport subsidiary.

Realogy and Wyndham. On July 31, 2006, the Company completed the spin-offs of Realogy and Wyndham
in tax-free distributions of one share each of Realogy and Wyndham common stock for every four and five
shares, respectively, of Cendant common stock held on July 21, 2006. Direct costs incurred in connection
with the spin-offs of Realogy and Wyndham are included within gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued
operations, net of tax on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Marketing Services Division. On October 17, 2005, the Company completed the sale of its Marketing
Services division for approximately $1.8 billion. The proceeds consisted of approximately $1.7 billien of
cash, net of closing adjustments, plus $125 million face value of newly issued preferred stock of Affinion and
warrants to purchase up to 7.5% of the common equity of Affinion (see Note 2—Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies). The Company distributed the proceeds from the sale of Affinion preferred stock and
warrants and transferred its residual shares of Affinion preferred stock and warrants to Realogy and
Wyndham pursuant to the Separation Agreement.

Wright Express. On February 22, 2005, the Company completed the initial public offering of Wright Express
for $964 miltion of cash. Additionally, the Company entered into & tax receivable agreement with Wright
Express pursuant to which Wright Express is obligated to make payments to the Company over a 15 year
term. The Company is obligated to distribute all such payments received from Wright Express to Realogy and
Wyndham following the Cendant Separation. Excluding amounts remitted to Realogy and Wyndham, the
Company received $9 million during 2006 and $15 million during 2005 in connection with this tax receivable
agreement. Such amounts are recorded within gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax on
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

PHH. On January 31, 2005, the Company completed the spin-off of PHH, which includes its former
mortgage, fleet leasing and appraisal businesses. In connection with the spin-off, the Company recorded a
non-cash impairment charge of $281 million and transaction costs of $4 million during first quarter 2003,
There were no tax benefits recorded in connection with these charges, as such charges are not tax deductible.

Summarized statement of income data for discontinued operations are as follows:
Year Ended December 31, 2007

The $2 million loss from discontinued operations, net of tax for the year ended December 31, 2007 represents
a tax charge due to an increase in non-deductible expenses offset by a benefit in state taxes on discontinued
operations. The $33 million gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax for the year ended
December 31, 2007, primarily represents a tax benefit realized as a result of certain elections made in
connection with the Travelport disposition on the income tax returns filed during 2007.
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Year Ended December 31, 2006

Net revenues

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Income from discontinued cperations, net of tax -

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations
Provision (benefit) for income taxes

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax

Net revenues

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations
Provision (benefit) for income taxes

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax

Marketing

Wright Services
Express @ Division ®  Realogy©
$ - $ - § 3856
- 8 - % 445
- - 172
$ - 8 - 3 273
$ 9 3 (15) % (76)
3 27 (22)
§ 6 3 (42) $ (54)

Wyndham ¥ Travelport Total

$ 2,052 % 1859 $ 7,767
$ 377 % 170 $ 992
288 54 514
$ 89 % 116 % 478
(83) S (L,464) $ (1,629)
(25) 345 328
$ (58) $ (1,809) $ (1,957)

@  Gain on disposal includes payments received from Wright Express in connection with the tax receivable agreement

discussed above.

) Represents payments in connection with a guarantee obligation made to the Company’s former Marketing Services
division and a tax charge primarily related (o state taxes prior to the date of disposition.

) Results are through the date of disposition.

@  The provision for income taxes reflects a $158 million charge associated with separating the vacation ownership
business from the Company in connection with the spin-off of Wyndham.
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Year Ended December 31, 2005

Marketing
Wright Services

Express®®  PHH #(© Division ®@  Realogy

Net revenues $ 29 3% 179 % 1,066 § 7.139

Income (loss) before income taxes 3 (7 8 1 § 90 § 1,065

Provision (benefit) for income taxes (3) 25 37 414
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of

tax $ 4y $ (24) $ 53 % 651

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations 3 585 § (285) $ 1,146 $ -

Provision for income taxes 332 - 565 -
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations,

net of tax $ 253 § 285 § 581 % -

Wyndham Travelport @  Total

Net revenues $ 3252 % 2,400 $14,065

Income (loss) before income taxes $ 643 § (118) $ 1,674

Provision (benefit) for income taxes 187 (74) 586

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax 5 456 (44) $ 1,088

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations b - § - § 1446

Provision for income taxes - - 897

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax $ - § - $ 549

(a)
(b}

©

(U]

Results are through the date of disposition.

Gain on disposal includes payments received from Wright Express in connection with the tax receivable agreement

discussed above.

The provision for income taxes reflects a $24 million charge associated with separating the appraisal business from

the Company in connection with the PHH spin-off.

Results include a pretax impairment charge of $425 million. (See Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies.)
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4. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”):

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Loss from continuing operations % (94 3 451 3 (1
Income {loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax (2) ‘478 1,088
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax 33 (1,957) 549
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax - (64) (8)
Net income (loss) ) 3 @I 35 (199 $ 1,618
Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding ® 103.1 100.6 104.0
Earnings per share:
Basic and Diluted
Loss from continuing operations $ O1I8) § 448 % (0.1
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (0.02) 475 10.47
Gain (loss) on dispoesal of discontinued operations 0.32 {19.46) 5.27
Cumulative effect of accounting changes - (0.63) (0.08)
Net income (loss} $ (RBB) $ (1982) § 15.56

@ Because the Company tncurred a loss from continuing operations in 2007, 2006 and 2005, outstanding stock options,
restricted stock units and stock warrants are anti-dilutive. Accordingly, basic and diluted weighted average shares
outstanding are equal for such periods. :

The following table summarizes the Company’s outstanding common stock equivalents that were anti-
dilutive and therefore excluded from the computation of diluted EPS:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Options @ 6.0 1.0 12.9
Warrants (& 0.2 0.2 0.2

@ Represents all outstanding stock options for 2007, 2006 and 2005.
®)  Represents all outstanding warrants for 2007, 2006 and 20035, for which the weighted average exercise price is
$21.31.

5. Restructuring Charges
2006 Restructuring

During fourth quarter 2006, the Company committed to various strategic initiatives targeted principally at
reducing costs, enhancing organizational efficiency and consolidating and rationalizing existing processes
and facilities within its Budget Truck Rental and Domestic Car Rental operations. The more significant areas
of cost reduction included the closure of the Budget Truck Rental headquarters and other facilities and
reductions in staff. The Company recorded $8 miilion of restructuring charges in connection with these
initiatives, of which $6 million and $2 million was incurred within the Company’s Truck Rental and
Domestic Car Operations, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, there are no liabilities relating to the 2006
restructuring charges.
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2005 Restructuring

In 2005, the Company recorded $26 million of restructuring charges as a result of activities undertaken
following the PHH spin-off and the initial public offering of Wright Express. The restructuring activities
were targeted principally at reducing costs, enhancing organizational efficiency and consolidating and
rationalizing existing processes and facilities. The more significant areas of cost reduction included the
closure of a call center and field locations of the Company's Truck Rental business and reductions in staff
within the Company’s corporate functions. The initial charge recorded in the Company’s Corporate and
Other, Truck Rental and Domestic Car Rental segments amounted to $19 million, $5 miilion and $2 million,
respectively. During fourth quarter 2006, the Company recorded a $2 million charge representing a revision
to its original estimate of costs to exit a lease in connection with the closure of a truck rental facility in first
quarter 2005. As of December 31, 2007, there is a remaining liability of $2 million, primarily relating to
obligations under terminated leases.

The initial recognition of the restructuring charges and the corresponding utilization from inception are
summarized by category as follows:

Personnel Facility Asset
Related Related Impairments Total

2005 Restructuring initial charge $ 20§ 5% 1§ 26

Cash payment {15) 2) - {an

Other reductions @ &) - (1 (6)
Balance as of December 31, 2005 - 3 - 3
2005 Restructuring charge - 2 - 2
2006 Restructuring initial charge 4 4 - 8
2005 Restructuring cash payment - (2) - (2)
2006 Restructuring cash payment - (1) - (D
Balance as of December 31, 2006 4 6 - 10
2005 Restructuring cash payment - (1) - 4}
2006 Restructuring cash payment (4) (3) - €
Balance as of December 31, 2007 $ - 3 2 3 -3 2

@  Other reductions to charges recorded for personnel-related costs represents the accelerated vesting of restricted stock
units previously granted 1o individuals who were terminated and write-offs of leasehold improvements in connection

with lease terminations.

®  The initial charge primarily represents severance benefits resulting from reductions in staff and costs incurred in
connection with facility closures and lease obligations resulting from the closure of the Truck Rental headquarters,
consolidation of Truck Rental operations and the closure of other facilities within the Company’s Domestic Car
Rental operations. Prior to December 31, 2006, the Company formally communicated the termination of
employment to approximately 180 employees, representing a wide range of employee groups. As of December 31,
2007, the Company had terminated substantially all of these employees.

F-24




Total segment restructuring charges are recorded as follows:

Truck Domestic  Corporate

Rental Rental and Other Total

2005 Restructuring initial charge ) $ 5 % .2 08 19 $ 26

Cash payment , ) (2) (19) (23)
Balance as of December 31, 2005 3 - - 3
2005 Restructuring charge 2 - - o2
2006 Restructuring initial charge . 6 2 - - 8
2005 Restructuring cash payment : : (2) -. - (2)
2006 Restructuring cash payment (n - - (1)
Balance as of December 31, 2006 8 2 - ' 1G
2005 Restructuring cash payment (1) - - (1
2006 Restructuring cash payment . _ . (3) (2) - N

Balance as of December 31, 2007 % 2 % - % -3 2

. Franchising Activities

Franchising revenues, which are recorded within other revenues on the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations, amounted to $36 million, $37 million and $39 million during 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

The number of Company-owned and franchised outlets in operation (excluding independent commissioned
dealer locations for the Budget truck rental business and Avis and Budget locations operated by or through
Avis Europe Holdings, Limited, an independent third party) is as follows:

As of December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Company-owned )

Avis brand 1,335 1,268 1,186
Budget brand 1,046 951 902
Franchised

Avis braand 849 847 849
Budget brand 1,184 1,218 1,221

In connection with ongoing fees the Company receives from its franchisees pursuant to the franchise
agreements, the Company is required to provide certain services, such as training, marketing and the
operation of reservation systems.

. Acquisitions

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combinations were recorded on the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of the respective acquisition dates based upon their estimated fair values at
such dates. The resuits of operations of businesses acquired by the Company have been included in the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations since their respective dates of acquisition. The excess of
the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the underlying assets acquired and liabilities assumed was
allocated to goodwill. In certain circumstances, the allocations of the excess purchase price are based upon
preliminary estimates and assumptions. Accordingly, the allocations may be subject to revision when the
Company receives final information, including appraisals and other analyses. Any revisions to the fair values
will be recorded by the Company as further adjustments to the purchase price allocations.
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During 2007, the Company acquired 13 vehicle rental franchisees for %10 million in cash, resulting in
trademark intangible assets of $11 million. During 2006, the Company acquired 19 vehicle rental franchisees
for $20 million in cash, resulting in trademark intangible assets of $17 million. During 2005, the Company
acquired 23 vehicle rental franchisees for $206 million in cash, resulting in trademark intangible assets of $88
million and goodwill of $6 million, none of which is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. These
acquisitions, which for 2007 and 2006 relate primarily to the Company’s Domestic Car Rental segment and
for 2005 relate primarily to the Company’s {nternational Car Rental segment, were not significant
individually or in the aggregate to the Company’s results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

The Company acquired approximately 48% of the equity in Carey Holdings, Inc., the parent of Carey
International, Inc., on October 23, 2007 (see Note 13—Equity Investment).

. Intangible Assets

{ntangible assets consisted of:

As of December 31, 2007 As of December 31, 2006

Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

Amortized Intangible Assets

Franchise agreements @ $ 75 & - 18 % 57 % 75 % 16 % 59
Customer lists ™ 19 . 7 12 19 6 - 13
Other ©) 2 1 1 2 1. 1
$ 9% § 26 % 70 % 96 $ 23 3 73
Unamortized Intangible
Assets .
Goodwill § 1,000 $ 2,193
.Trademarks @ 3 690 $ 666

@  Primarily amortized over a period ranging from 25 to 40 years.

) Primarily amortized over 20 years.

) Primarily amortized over 27 years.

@  Comprised of various tradenames (including the Avis and Budget tradenames) that the Company has acquired and
which distinguish the Company’s consumer services. These tradenames are expected to generate future cash flows
for an indefinite period of time.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill during 2007 are as follows:

Adjustments
To Goodwill
Balance at  Acquired Balance at
January 1, during Goodwill  December 31,
2007 2007 @ Impairment 2007
Domestic Car Rental $ 1355 % - 3 {(786) § 569
International Car Rental ) 595 2 (268) 329
Truck Rental . 243 - (141) 102
Total Company - $ 2,193 § 2 % (1,195 $ 1,000

@  The adjustment in goodwill was primarily due to fluctuations in foreign currency.

During the Company’s annual assessment of goodwill and other indefinite-lived assets for impairment, it was
determined that impairment had occurred (see Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies).

F-26




Amortization expense relating to all intangible assets was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Franchise agreements $ 2 3 2 3 2
Customer lists 1 1
Total $ 3 3 K

Based on the Company’s amortizable intangible assets at December 31, 2007, the Company expects related
amortization expense to approximate $3 million for each of the five succeeding fiscai years.

Vehicle Rental Activities

The components of vehicles, net within assets under vehicle programs are as follows:

As of December 31,
2007 2006
Rental vehicles $ 7947 § 7,738
Less: Accumulated depreciation (1,022} (993)
6,925 6,745
Vehicles held for sale 549 304
Vehicles, net _ $ 7474 $ 7,049

The components of vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net are summarized below:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Depreciation expense 5 1565 8 1362 % 1,191
Lease charges 46 54 69
Gain on sales of vehicles, net (40} - (22)
Vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net $ 1571 $ 1416 % 1238

During 2007, and 2006, vehicle interest, net on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations
excludes $141 million and $101 million, respectively, of interest expense related to the fixed and floating rate
borrowings of the Company’s Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC (*Avis Budget Car Rental”) subsidiary. Such
interest is recorded within interest expense related 1o corporate debt, net on the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
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10. Income Taxes

The income tax provision (benefit) consists of the following:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Current
Federal 3 1 47 3 79
State 2 21 15
Foreign 9 - 25
Current income tax provision (benefit) 12 (26) 119
Deferred
Federal (120) (250) {149)
State 46 21 (34)
Foreign 17 29 13
Deferred income tax benefit {5 (200) (170)
Benefit from income taxes 3 45y § (226) § 5b
Pretax income (loss) for domestic and foreign operations consists of the following:
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Domestic $ (084) $§ (756 3 (135)
Foreign 72 79 73
Pretax loss $§ (992) $ (671 $ (62)
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Current and non-current deferred income tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following:

As of December 31,
2007 2006
Current deferred income tax assets:

Accrued liabilities and deferred income $ 103 $ 48

Provision for doubtful accounts 6 G

Acquisition and integration-related liabilities - 3

Other - i

Valuation allowance 2n -
Current deferred income tax assets 88 58
Current deferred income tax liabilities: .

Prepaid expenses 46 51
Current deferred income tax liabilities 46 51
Current net deferred income tax asset $ 42 3 7
Non-current deferred income tax assets:

Net tax loss carryforwards $ 193 §$ 163

Accrued liabilities and deferred income 127 178

Tax credit carryforward 48 102

Acquisition and integration-related labilities 26 24

Unrealized hedge loss 11 -

Valuation allowance (*) (116) (B1)
Non-current deferred income tax assets 289 386
Non-current deferred income tax liabilities:

Depreciation and amortization 49 160

Other 6 -
Non-current deferred income tax liabilities 55 160
Non-current net deferred income tax asset $ 234 % 226

) The valuation allowance of $137 million at December 31, 2007, primarily relates to tax loss carryforwards, foreign
tax credits and certain state deferred tax assets of $100 millior, $32 million and $5 million, respectively, The
valuation allowance will be reduced when and if the Company determines that the related deferred income tax assets
are more likely than not to be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities related to the vehicle programs are comprised of the following:

As of December 31,
2007 2006
Deferred income tax assets:

Unrealized hedge loss 3 29 § -
29 -

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Depreciation 1,275 1,205
Other - 1
1,275 1,206
Net deferred income tax liabilities under vehicle programs $ 1,246 $ 1206
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As of December 31, 2007, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $173
million (net of valuation allowances), most of which expire in 2027. No provision has been made for U.S.
federal deferred income taxes on approximately $327 million of accumulated and undistributed earnings of
foreign subsidiaries at December 31, 2007, since it is the present intention of management to reinvest the
undistributed earnings indefinitely in those foreign operations. The determination of the amount of
unrecognized U.S. federal deferred income tax liability for unremitted earnings is not practicable.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 109-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Guidance
for the Foreign Earnings Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004”. The American
Jobs Creation Act of 2004, which became effective October 22, 2004, provides a one-time dividends received
deduction on the repatriation of certain foreign earnings to a U.S. taxpayer, provided certain criteria are met. The
Company has applied the provisions of this act to qualifying earnings repatriations through December 31, 2005. In
December 2005, the Company repatriated $350 million of unremitted eamnings, resulting in income tax expense of
approximately $28 million, which is reflected within discontinued operations.

The reconciliation between the U.S. federal income tax statutory rate and the Company’s effective income tax
rate for continuing operations is as follows:

As of December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Adjustments to reconcile to the effective rate:
State and local income taxes, net of federal tax benefits (0.4) 2.1 36.9
Changes in valuation allowances (0.4) 4.3) (18.4)
Taxes on foreign operations at rates different than
statutory U.S. federal rates 0.1 (0.2) (2.8)
Taxes on repatriated foreign income, net of tax credits 0.1 (0.1 1.9
Resolution of prior years’ examination issues 0.2 3.5 29.8
Goodwill impairment (29.8) - -
Nondeductible expenses 0.4) (0.8) (20.3)
Other 0.1 (1.8) 20.2

4.5% 33.4% 82.3%

The following is a tabular reconciliation of the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits for the year:

Year Ended
December 31,
2007

Balance at January 1, 2007 $ 614
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year -
Additions for tax positions for prior years 21
Reductions for tax positions for prior years . (23)
Settlements -
Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 612

The Company is subject to income taxes in the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant
judgment is required in determining the Company’s worldwide provision for income taxes and recording the
related assets and liabilities. In the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions and calculations
where the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Company is regularly under audit by tax authorities.
Accruals for tax contingencies are provided for in accordance with the requirements of FIN 48.
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Pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement and the Separation Agreement, the Company is entitled to
indemnification for non-Avis Budget Car Rental tax contingencies. The company believes that its accruals for
tax liabilities, including the indemnified liabilities outlined in the Tax Sharing Agreement and the Separation
Agreement, are adequate for all remaining open years, based on its assessment of many factors, including
past experience and interpretations of tax law applied to the facts of each matter.

The Company and the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) have settled the IRS examination for the Company’s
taxable years 1998 through 2002, The Company was adequately reserved for this audit cycle and has
reflected the results of that examination in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. The IRS
has begun to examine the Company’s taxable years 2003 through 2006. Although the Company believes
there is appropriate support for the positions taken on its tax returns, the Company has recorded $440 million,
net of federal tax benefit, for liabilities representing the best estimates of the probable loss on certain
positions. The Company believes that the accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open years, based on
assessment of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax law applied to the facts of
each matier, Although the Company believes the recorded assets and liabilities are reasonable, tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and tax litigation is inherently uncertain; therefore, the Company’s assessments
can involve both a series of complex judgments about future events and rely heavily on estimates and
assumptions. While the Company believes that the estimates and assumptions supporting the assessments are
reasonable, the final determination of tax audits and any other related litigation could be materially difterent
than that which is reflected in historical income tax provisions and recorded assets and liabilities,

The potential results of an audit or litigation related to these matters include a range of outcomes, which may
involve material amounts. However, as discussed above, the Company is entitled to indemnification for most
pre-separation matters by Realogy and Wyndham and therefore does not expect such resolution to have a
significant impact on its earnings, financial position or cash flows. '

11. Other Current Assets

" Other current assets consisted of:

As of December 31,

2007 2006
Receivables from Realogy ‘ $ 169 § 572
Receivables from Wyndham @ 122 393
Prepaid expenses 148 144
Other 131 155

$ 570 § 1264

@  Represents amounts due for certain contingent and other corporate liabilities assumed by Realogy and Wyndham in
connection with the Cendant Separation and transition services performed under a Transition Services Agreement
which was entered into at the time of the Cendant Separation. These amounts are due from Realogy and Wyndham
on demand upon the Company’s settlement of the related liability. At December 31, 2007, there are corresponding
liabilities recorded within accounts payable and other current liabilities. In connection with the Company’s adoption
of FIN 48, receivables from Realogy and Wyndham related to income taxes were classified as non-current assets. At
December 31, 2007, receivables related to tax items included in non-current assets were $620 million.
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12. Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment, net consisted of:

As of December 31,
2007 2006

L.and b 48 8 50
Buildings and leasehold improvements 365 337
Capitalized software 255 238
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 135 138
Buses'and support vehicles 59 68
Projects in process 93 89

955 920
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization {455) (434)

$ 500 % 486

Depreciation and amortization expense relating to property and equipment during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$81 million, $102 million and $112 million, respectively (including $21 million, $36 million and $36 million,
respectively, of amortization expense relating to capitalized computer software).

13. Equity Investment

At December 31, 2007, the Company’s equity-method investee and the Company’s approximate ownership
interest, based on outstanding shares, is as follows:

Percentage
Company Ownership
Carey Holdings. Inc. 47.9%

The Company acquired its investment in Carey Holdings, Inc. (“Carey”) on October 23, 2007 for
approximately $60 miliion in cash. Carey’s subsidiary, Carey International, Inc., is a worldwide
provider of chauffeured ground transportation services, operating in approximately 550 cities and 60
countries through a network of franchisees and alliance partners. The Company’s investment in Carey is
recorded within other non-current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and the Company’s share of
Carey’s operating results is reported within operating expenses ot the Consolidated Statements of
Operations, At December 31, 2007, the Company’s investment totaled $60 million including $2 million
of deferred acquisition costs and a $2 million net loss, representing the Company’s share of Carey’s
October 23, 2007 to December 31, 2007 operating results.
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4.

18,

16.

Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities consisted of:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related
Disposition related liabilities
Accrued legal settlements

Public liability and property damage insurance liabilities-current

Income taxes payable @
Other

As of December 31,
2007 2006

$ 210 § 223

171 244

125 152

121 71

109 116

- 520

358 529

1.855

$ 1,094 §

@ Income taxes payable have been classified as long-term liabilities as of January 1, 2007, in connection with the
adoption of FIN 48. At December 31, 2007, the non-current liability related to long-term income taxes payable was

$440 million.

Other Non-Current Liabilities

Other non-current liabilities consisted of:

Long-term income taxes payable ‘

Public liability and property damage insurance liability
Acquisition related liabilities

Accrued interest — tax contingencies

Tax reserve

Pension liability

Other

Long-term Debt and Borrowing Arrangements

Avis Budget Car Rental corporate debt:

" Floating rate term loan @

Floating rate notes
7 %% notes
T¥4% notes

Other

Total long-term debt
Less: Current portion

Long-term debt
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As of December 31,
2007 2006
$ 440 % -
252 260
65 67
52 -
2 -
22 37
138 . 88
$ 098 §% 452
As of As of
Maturity December 31, December 31,
Date 2007 2006

April 2012 § 796 $ 838
May 2014 250 250
May 2014 . 375 375
May 2016: 375 375
1,796 1,838
1 4
1,797 1,842
10 29
$ 1,787 % 1,813




@  The floating rate term loan and our revolving credit facility are secured by pledges of all of the capital stock of all of
the Company’s direct or indirect domestic subsidiaries and up to 66% of the capital stock of each direct foreign
subsidiary, subject to certain exceptions, and liens on substantially all of the Company’s intellectual property.

AVIS BUDGET CAR RENTAL CORPORATE DEBT
Floating Rate Term Loan

The Company’s floating rate term loan was entered into in April 2006, has a six year term and bears interest
at three month LIBOR plus 125 basis points, for a rate of 6.0% at December 31, 2007. Quarterly installment
payments, of approximately $2 million, are required for the first five and three quarter years with the
remaining amount repayable in fuil at the end of the term. During 2007 and 2006, the Company repaid $42
million and $37 million, respectively, of outstanding principal under the Floating Rate Term Loan.

Floating Rate Senior Notes

The Company’s Floating Rate Senior Notes were issued in April 2006 at 100% of their face value for
aggregate proceeds of $250 million. The interest rate on these notes is equal to three month LIBOR plus 250
basis points, for a rate of 7.20% at December 31, 2007. The Company has the right to redeem these notes in
whole or in part at any time prior to May 15, 2008 at the applicable make-whole redemption price and, in
whole or in part, at any time on or after May 15, 2008, at the applicable scheduled redemption price, plus in
each case, accrued and unpaid interest through the redemption date. These notes are senior unsecured
obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all the Company’s existing and future senior
indebtedness.

75%3% and 7¥4% Senior Notes

The Company’s 7%s% and 7¥2% Senior Notes were issued in April 2006 at 100% of their face value for
aggregate proceeds of $750 miliion. The Company has the right to redeem the 7%8% and 7¥%2% Senior Notes
in whole or in part at any time prior to May 15, 2010 and May 15, 2011, respectively, at the applicable make-
whole redemption price and, in whole or in part, at any time on or after May 15, 2010 and May 15, 2011,
respectively, at the applicable scheduled redemption price, plus in each case, accrued and unpaid interest
through the redemption date. These notes are senior unsecured obligations and rank equally in right of
payment with all the Company’s existing and future senior indebtedness.

CORPORATE GUARANTEE

On February 9, 2007, the Company agreed to guarantee (the “Guarantee”) the payment of principal,
premium, if any, and interest on the $1.0 billion aggregate principal amount of senior notes issued by Avis
Budget Car Rental in April 2006 (the “Notes”). The Notes consist of Avis Budget Car Rental’s 7¥8% Senior
Notes due 2014, 7¥%% Senior Notes due 2016 and Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2014. The Company
executed a Supplemental Indenture, dated February 9, 2007, to provide the Guarantee in accordance with the
terms and limitations of the Notes and the indenture governing the Notes. In consideration for providing the
Guarantee, the Company received $14 million, before fees and expenses, from certain institutional investors.
The $14 million consideration has been deferred and is being amortized over the life of the debt.
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17.

DEBT MATURITIES

The following table provides contractual maturities of the Company’s corporate debt at December 31, 2007:

_ Year _Amount
2008 3 10
2009 9
2010 9
2011 9
2012 760
Thereafter 1,000

$ 1,797

COMMITTED CREDIT FACILITIES AND AVAILABLE FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS

At December 31, 2007, the commitied credit facilities available to the Company and/or its subsidiaries at the
corporate or Avis Budget Car Rental level were as follows:

Total Outstanding  Lettersof  Available

Capacity Borrowings Credit Issued Capacity

$1.5 billion revolving credit facility @ $ 1,500 5 - 3 338 § 1,162
Letter of credit facility ® 303 - 303 -

@ This secured revolving credit facility was entered into by Avis Budget Car Rental in April 2006, has a five year term
and currently bears interest at one moath LIBOR plus 125 basis points. The floating rate term loan and the revolving
credit facility are secured by pledges of all of the capital stock of all of the Company’s direct or indirect domestic
subsidiaries and up to 66% of the capital stock of each direct foreign subsidiary, subject to certain exceptions, and
liens on substantially all of the Company’s intellectual property.

®  Final maturity date is July 2010.

DEBT COVENANTS

The Company’s debt agreements contain restrictive covenants, including restrictions on dividends paid to the
Company by certain of its subsidiaries, the incurrence of indebtedness by the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries, mergers, liquidations, and sale and leaseback transactions. The credit facility also requires the
maintenance of certain financial ratios. As of December 31, 2007, the Company is not aware of any instances
of non-compliance with such financial or restrictive covenants.

Debt Under Vehicle Programs and Borrowing Arrangements

Debt under vehicle programs (including related party debt due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding AESOP,
LLC (“Avis Budget Rental Car Funding™)) consisted of:

Asof As of
December 31, December 31,

2007 2006
Debt due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding h) 4,646 3 4,511

Budget Truck Financing:

Budget Truck Funding program ® 246 135
Capital leases 204 257
Other® 500 367
‘ $ 559 S 5,270
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@ The change in the balance at December 31, 2007 principally reflects the issuance of vehicle-backed floating rate
notes during the first six months of 2007 to support the acquisition of rental vehicles within the Company's Domestic
Car Rental operations.

®  The change in the balance at December 31, 2007 primarily reflects incremental borrowings during the year ended
December 31, 2007 to support the acquisition of rental vehicles within the Budget Truck rental fleet.

©  The change in the balance at December 31, 2007 primarity reflects incremental borrowings to support the acquisition
of vehicles in its International Car Rental operations and new fleet loans to support the acquisition of certain vehicles
for Domestic Car Rental operations.

Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP), LLC. Avis Budget Rental Car Funding, an unconsolidated
bankruptcy remote qualifying special purpose limited liability company, issues private placement notes that
at issuarce are typically “AAA” rated generally with principal and interest payments guaranteed by
independent insurance companies. Avis Budget Rental Car Funding then uses the proceeds from such
issuances to make loans to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, AESOP Leasing LP (“AESOP
Leasing”) on a continuing basis. By issuing debt through the AESOP program, Avis Budget pays a lower rate
of interest than if the Company had issued debt directly to third parties. AESOP Leasing is then required to
use these proceeds to acquire or finance the acquisition of vehicles used in the Company’s rental car
operations. As a result, AESOP Leasing’s obligation to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding is reflected as
related party debt on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. The
Company also recorded an asset within assets under vehicle programs on its Consolidated Balance Sheets at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, which represented the equity issued to the Company by Avis Budget Rental
Car Funding. The vehicles purchased by AESOP Leasing remain on the Company’s Consolidated Balance
Sheet as AESOP Leasing is consolidated by the Company. Such vehicles and related assets, which
approximate $6.7 billion and the majority of which are subject to manufacturer repurchase and guaranteed
depreciation agreements, collateralize the debt issued by Avis Budget Rental Car Funding and are not
available to pay the obligations of the Company.

The business activities of Avis Budget Rental Car Funding are limited primarily to issuing indebtedness and
using the proceeds thereof to make loans to AESOP Leasing for the purpose of acquiring or financing the
acquisition of vehicles to be leased to the Company’s rental car subsidiaries and pledging its assets to secure
the indebtedness. Because Avis Budget Rental Car Funding is not consolidated by the Company, its results of
operations and cash flows are not reflected within the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.
Borrowings under the Avis Budget Rental Car Funding program primarily represent floating rate term notes
with a weighted average interest rate of 5% for both 2007 and 2006 and 4% for 2005.

Truck financing. The Budget Truck Funding program consists of debt facilities established by the Company
to finance the acquisition of the Budget Truck rental fleet, The borrowings under the Budget Truck Funding
program are collateralized by $296 million of corresponding assets and are floating rate term loans with a
weighted average interest rate of 5% in 2007 and 2006. The Company has also obtained a portion of its truck
rental fleet under capital lease arrangements for which there are corresponding gross assets of $361 million
and $381 million with accumulated amortization of $154 million and $129 million classified within vehicles,
net on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Interest
paid as part of capital lease obligations was $10 million and $20 million during 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Other. Borrowings under the Company’s other vehicle rental programs primarily represent amounts issued
under financing facilities that provide for borrowings to support the acquisition of vehicles used in the
Company’s international vehicle rental operations and new fleet loans to support the acquisition of certain
vehicles for Domestic Car Rental operations. The debt issued is collateralized by $1.1 billion of vehicles and
related assets and primarily represents floating rate bank loans and a commercial paper conduit facility for
which the weighted average interest rate was 6%, 5% and 4% for 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.
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The following table provides the contractual maturities of the Company’s debt under vehicle programs
(inctuding related party debt due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding) at December 31, 2007:

Vehicle-
Backed Capital
Debt Leases Total
2008 5 1,562 § 164 § 1,726
2009 434 40 474
2010 1,240 - 1.240
2011 827 - 827
2012 1,150 - 1,150
Thereafter 179 - 179
$ 5392 % 204§ 5,596

COMMITTED CREDIT FACILITIES AND AVAILABLE FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS

As of December 31, 2007, available funding under the Company’s vehicle programs (including related party
debt due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding) consisted of;

Total Outstanding  Available
Capacity @  Borrowings Capacity

Debt due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding b3 6,621 % 4646 § 1,975
Budget Truck financing;
Budget Truck Funding program 400 246 154
Capital leases 204 204 —
Other 1,227 500 727

$ 8452 § 5506 % 2,856

@ Capacity is subject to maintaining sufficient assets to collateralize debt.
DEBT COVENANTS

Debt agreements under the Company’s vehicle-backed funding programs contain restrictive covenants,
including restrictions on dividends paid to the Company by certain of its subsidiaries and indebtedness of
material subsidiaries, mergers, liens, liquidations and sale and leaseback transactions and also require the
maintenance of certain financial ratios. As of December 31, 2007 the Company is not aware of any instances
of non-compliarce with such financial or restrictive covenants.
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18, Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Commitments

The Company is committed to making rental payments under noncancelable operating leases covering
various facilities and equipment. Many of the Company’s operating leases for facilities contain renewal
options. These renewal options vary, but the majority include clauses for the renewal rental at various length
terms and prevailing market rate rents, subject to a market review. Future minitum lease payments required
under noncancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2007 are as follows:

Year Amount
2008 $ 398
2009 294
2010 210
2011 160
2012 132
Thereafter 741

51935

The future minimum lease payments in the above table have been reduced by minimum future sublease rental
inflows of $44 million. The Company maintains concesston agreements with various airport authorities that
allow the Company to conduct its car rental operations onsite. In general, concession fees for airport locations
are based on a percentage of total commissionable revenue (as determined by each airport authority), subject
to minimum annual guaranteed amounts. These concession fees are included in the Company’s total rent
expense and for the years ended December 31 amounted to:

2007 2006 2005

Rent $ 56 % 47 % 35
Concession expense:

Minimum fees 409 377 322
Contingent fees 130 142 138

595 566 495

Less: sublease rental income (8 &) ()
Total $ 587 % 561 % 491

Commitments under capital leases, other than those within the Compuny’s vehicle rental program, for which
the future minimum lease payments have been reflected in Noite 17-—Debt Under Vehicle Programs and
Borrowing Arrangements, are not significant.

Commitments to Purchase Vehicles

The Company maintains agreements with vehicle manufacturers which require the Company to purchase
approximately $4.9 billion of vehicles from these manufacturers over the next year, The majority of these
commitments are subject to the vehicle manufacturers’ satisfying their obligations under the repurchase and
guaranteed depreciation agreements. The Company’s featured suppliers for the Avis and Budget brands are
General Motors Corporation and Ford Motor Company, respectively. The purchase of such vehicles is
financed through the issuance of debt under vehicle programs in addition to cash received upon the sale of
vehicles primarily under repurchase and guaranteed depreciation programs.
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Other Purchase Commitments

In the normal course of business, the Company makes various commitments to purchase goods or services
from specific suppliers, including those related to capital expenditures. None of the purchase commitments
made by the Company as of December 31, 2007 (aggregating approximately $29 million) was individually
significant. These purchase obligations extend through 2008.

Contingencies

The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) is examining the Company’s taxable years 2003 through 2006.
Although the Company believes there is appropriate support for the positions takén on its tax retirns, the
Company has recorded liabilities for uncertain tax positions for all years which the statute of limitations has
not expired. The Company has $440 million acerued for tax liabilities and believes these accruals to be
adequate for all open years, based on assessment of many factors including past experience and
interpretations of tax law applied to the facts of each matter. Although the Company believes the recorded
assets and liabilities are reasonable, tax regulations are subject to interpretation and tax litigation is inherently
uncertain; therefore, the Company’s assessments can involve both a series of complex judgments about future
events and rely heavily on estimates and assumptions. While the Company believes that the estimates and
assumptions supporting the assessments are reasonable, the final determination of tax audits and any other
related litigation could be materially different than that which is reflected in historical income tax provisions
and recorded assets and liabilities. '

The potential results of an audit or litigation related to these matters include a range of cutcomes, which may
involve material amounts, However, the Company is entitled to indemnification for most pre-separation tax
matters by Realogy and Wyndham and therefore does not expect such resolution to have a significant impact
on its earnings, financial position or cash flows. -

The Company is involved in litigation asserting claims associated with accounting irregularities discovered in
1998 at former CUC business units outside of the principal common stockholder class action litigation (such
class action, the “Securities Action”). Regarding one such litigation matter, during 2007, the relevant court
granted summary judgment to the plaintiffs on their breach of contract claims and the Company has an
accrued liability of approximately $99 million. The Company does not believe that it is feasible to predict or
determine the final outcome or resolution of such unresolved proceedings. Pursuant to the Separation
Agreement, Realogy and Wyndham have assumed all liabilities related to this litigation, as described below,
and therefore a corresponding receivable has been established for such amount. Changes in liabilities related
to such legal matters for which the Company is entitled to indemnification, and corresponding changes in the
Company’s indemnification assets, are shown net within the separation costs, net line on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations,

In connection with the spin-offs of Realogy and Wyndham, the Company entered into the Separation
Agreement, pursuant to which Realogy assumed 62.5% and Wyndham assumed 37.5% of certain contingent
and other corporate liabilities of the Company or its subsidiaries, which are not primarily related to any of the
respective businesses of Realogy, Wyndham, Travelport and/or the Company’s vehicle rental operations, in
each case incurred or allegedly incurred on or prior to the separation of Travelport from the Company
(“Assumed Liabilities”). Realogy is entitled to receive 62.5% and Wyndham is entitled to receive 37.5% of
the proceeds (or, in certain cases, a portion thereof) from certain contingent corporate assets of the Company,
which are not primarily related to any of the respective businesses of Realogy, Wyndham, Travelport and/or
the Company’s vehicle rental operations, arising or accrued on or prior to the separation of Travelport from
the Company (“Assumed Assets”). Additionally, if Realogy or Wyndham were to default on its payment of
costs or expenses to the Company reiated to any Assumed Liability, the Company would be responsible for
50% of the defaulting party’s obligation. In such event, the Company would be allowed to use the defaulting
party’s share of the proceeds of any Assumed Assets as a right of offset. Realogy and Wyndham have also
agreed to guarantee each other’s as well as the Company’s obligation under each entity’s deferred
compensation plans for amounts deferred in respect of 2005 and earlier years.
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The Company does not believe that the impact of any unresolved proceedings constituting an Assumed
Liability related to the CUC accounting irregularities should result in a material liability to the Company in
relation to its consolidated financial position or liquidity, as Realogy and Wyndham each have agreed to
assume responsibility for these liabilities as well as other liabilities related to the Company’s litigation that
are not related to its vehicle rental operations. Such litigation assumed by Realogy and Wyndham includes
litigation which was retained by the Company in connection with the sale of its former Marketing Services
division,

On April 10, 2007, Realogy was acquired by an affiliate of Apollo Management VI, L.P. and no longer is
listed as an independent public company. The acquisition does not affect Realogy’s obligation to satisfy
62.5% of the contingent and other corporate liabilities of the Company or its subsidiaries pursuant to the
terms of the Separation Agreement. As a result of the acquisition, Realogy has greater debt obligations and its
ability to satisfy its portion of the contingent and other corporate liabilities may be adversely impacted. In
accordance with the terms of the Separation Agreement, Realogy posted a letter of credit in April 2007 for
the benefit of the Company to cover its estimated share of the Assumed Liabilities discussed above, subject to
adjustment, although there can be no assurance that such letter of credit will be sufficient to cover Realogy’s
actual obligations if and when they arise.

On December 21, 2007, the Company and certain other parties entered into a settlement agreement with
Ernst & Young to settle all claims between the parties arising out of the Securities Action. Pursuant to the
terms of the settlement, Ernst & Young has agreed to pay into escrow an aggregate of $298.5 million to settle
all claims arising from the Securities Action. Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, the Company will not
receive the proceeds from this settlement agreement.

In addition to the matters discussed above, the Company is also involved in claims and legal proceedings
related to its vehicle rental operations, including contract disputes, business practices, intellectual property,
environmental issues and other commercial, employment and tax matters, including patent claims, wage and
hour claims and breach of contract claims by licensees. The Company believes that it has adequately accrued
for such matters as appropriate or, for matters not requiring accrual, believes that they will not have a
material adverse impact on its results of operations, financial position or cash flows based on information
currently available. However, litigation is inherently unpredictable and, although the Company believes that
its accruals are adequate and/or that it has valid defenses in these matters, unfavorable resolutions could
occur, which could adversely impact the Company’s resulis of operations or cash flows in a particular
reporting period.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company maintains a liability for asset retirement obligations. An asset retirement obligation is a legal
obligation to perform certain activities in connection with the retirement, disposal or abandonment of assets.
The Company’s asset retirement obligations, which are measured at discounted fair value, are primarily
related to the removal of underground gas storage tanks at its rental facilities. Liabilities for asset retirement
obligations were $20 miltion and $15 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Standard Guarantees/Indemnifications

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into numerous agreements that contain standard
guarantees and indemnities whereby the Company indemnifies another party for breaches of representations
and warranties. In addition, many of these parties are also indemnified against any third party claim resulting
from the transaction that is contemplated in the underlying agreement. Such guarantees or indemnifications
are granted under various agreements, including those governing (i) purchases, sales or outsourcing of assets
or businesses, (ii) leases of real estate, (iii) licensing of trademarks, (iv) access 1o credit facilities and use of
derivatives and (v) issuances of debt or equity securities. The guarantees or indemnifications issued are for
the benefit of the (i) buyers in sale agreements and sellers in purchase agreements, (ii) landlords in lease
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contracts, (iii) franchisees in licensing agreements, (iv) financial institutions in credit facility arrangements
and derivative contracts and (v) underwriters in debt or equity security issuances. While some of these
guarantees extend only for the duration of the underlying agreement, many survive the expiration of the term
of the agreement or extend into perpetuity (unless subject to a legal statute of limitations). There are no
specific limitations on the maximum potential amount of future payments that the Company could be
required to make under these guarantees, nor is the Company able to develop an estimate of the maximum
potential amount of future payments to be made undér these guarantees as the triggering events are not
subject to predictability. With respect to certain of the aforementioned guarantees, such as indemnifications
of landlords against third party claims for the use of real estate property leased by the'Company, the
Company maintains insurance coverage that mitigates any potential payments to be made.

Other Guarantees \

The Company has provided certain guarantees to subsidiartes of Realogy, Wyndham and Travelport which,
as previously discussed, were disposed during third quarter 2006. These guarantees relate primarily to various
real estate and product operating leases. The maximum potential amount of future payments that the
Company may be required to make under the guarantees relating to the various real estate and product
operating leases is estimated to be approximately $367 million. At December 31, 2007, the liability recorded
by the Company in connection with these guarantees was approximately $6 million. To the extent that the
Company would be required to perform under any of these guarantees the Company is entitled to
indemnification by Realogy, Wyndham and Travelport.

The Company has provided certain guarantees to subsidiaries of PHH, which, as previously discussed, was
spun-off during first quarter 2005. These guarantees relate primarily to various real estate and product
operating leases. The maximum potential amount of future payments that the Company may be required to
make under the guarantees relating to the various real estate and product operating leases is estimated to be
approximately $19 million. At December 31, 2007, the liability recorded by the Company in connection with
these guarantees was $! million. To the extent that the Company would be required to perform under any of
these guarantees, PHH has agreed to indemnify the Company.

In: connection with the Company’s disposition of its Marketing Services division (*"MSD”), the Company
agreed to provide certain indemnifications related to, among other things, litigation matters related to various
suits brought against MSD by individual consumers and state regulatory authorities seeking monetary and/or
injunctive relief regarding the marketing of certain membership programs and inquiries from state regulatory
authorities related to such programs. Such indemnification entitles the purchaser to reimbursement for a
portion of the actual losses suffered by it in regards to such matters. In addition, pursuant to a number of post-
closing commercial arrangements entered into between certain of the Company's subsidiaries and MSD, the
Company also agreed to provide a minimum number of call transfers to certain MSD subsidiaries, as well as
retaining pre-existing guarantee obligations for certain real estate operating lease obligations on behalf of
certain MSD subsidiaries. The Company established a liability for the estimated fair value of these guarantees
in the amount of approximately $100 million on the sale date, which reduced the gain on the transaction
recorded within discontinued operations. The residual liability of December 3 [, 2007 was $68 million. The
maximum potential amount of future payments to be made under these guarantees is approximately $315
million excluding one litigation matter for which there is no limitation to the maximum potential amount of
future payments.

Realogy and Wyndham have agreed to assume responsibility for the Company’s liabilities relating to PHH
and the former Marketing Services division.
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19. Stockholders’ Equity
Cash Dividend Payments.

During 2007, the Company did not pay cash dividends. During 2006 and 2005, the Company paid cash
dividends of $113 million ($1.10 per share in first quarter) and $423 million ($0.90 per share in first and
second quarters and $1.10 per share in third and fourth quarters), respectively. Such per share dividend
amounts have been adjusted for the t-for-10 reverse stock split of the Company’s common stock, which
became effective September 5, 2006.

Share Repurchases '

During 2007, the Company did not repurchase any shares of its common stock. In 2006, the Company used
$221 million of avatlable cash and $22 million of proceeds primarily received in connection with option
exercises to repurchase $243 million of common stock. During 2003, the Company used approximately $1.1
billion of available cash and $289 million of proceeds primarily received in connection with oplion exercises
to repurchase approximately $1.3 billion of common stock.

On January 23, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $50 mitlion of the
Company’s common stock (see Note 26—Subsequent Events). The Company may repurchase shares from
time to time and the timing and amount of repurchase {ransactions, if any, will be determined by the
Company’s management based on its evaluation of market conditions, share price, legal requirements and
other factors.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The after-tax components of accumulated other comprehensive income are as follows:

Unrealized Unrealized

Gains Gains
(Losses) {Losses) on Minimum Accumulated
Currency on Cash  Available- Pension Other

Translation Flow for-Sale Liabitity = Comprehensive

Adjustments Hedges Securities Adjustment Income (Loss)
Balance, January 1, 2005 . % 308 % 20 3 16 § (70) $ 274
Effect of PHH spin-off (1) 3) (1) 7 (i)
Current period change 219) 28 (15) (17 (223)
Balance, December 31, 2005 77 43 - (80) 40
Effect of dispositions (223) - - 46 (77
Current period change 213 (13) - 5 205
Balance, December 31, 2006 67 30 - 29) 68
Current period change 50 (93) - 7 (36)
Balance, December 31, 2007 $ 117 § 63) § - $ 22) § 32

During 2007, the Company recorded unrealized losses on cash flow hedges of $152 million ($93 million, net of
tax), in accumulated other comprehensive income which primarily related to the derivatives used to manage the
interest-rate risk associated with the Company’s vehicle-backed debt and the Company’s floating rate debt (see
Note 22—Financial Instruments for more information). Such amount in 2007 includes $i31 million of unrealized
losses ($80 million, net of tax) on cash flow hedges related to the Company’s vehicle-backed debt and is offset by a
corresponding decrease in the Company’s Investment in AESOP on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

All components of accumulated other comprehensive income are net of tax except currency translation
adjustments, which exclude income taxes related to indefinite investments in foreign subsidiaries.
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20. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company may grant stock options, stock appreciation rights (“SARs”), restricted shares und restricted
stock units {"RSUs™) 1o its employees, including directors and officers of the Company and s affiliates.
Beginning in 2003, the Company changed the method by which it provides stock-based compensation to its
employees by significantly reducing the number of stock options granted and instead, issuing RSUs as a form
of compensation. Additionally, in 2006, the Company issued stock-settled stock appreciation rights to certain
executives. As of December 31, 2007 the Company’s active stock plan consists of the 2007 Equity and
Incentive Plan, under which the Company is authorized to grant up to 8 million shares of its common stock
and approximately 8 million shares were available for future grants. The Company may setile employee stock
option ¢xercises with treasury shares. The Company issues shares related to vested RSUs from treasury
shares. The Company applies the direct method and tax law ordering approach to calculate the tax effects of
stock-based compensation. In jurisdictions with net operating loss carryforwards, tax deductions for 2007
exercises of stock-based awards did not generate a cash benefit. Approximately $31 million of tax benefits
will be recorded in additional paid-in capital when realized in these jurisdictions.

Steck Options

Following the spin-offs of Realogy and Wyndham, all previously outstanding and unvested stock options
vested and converted into stock options of Avis Budget, Realogy and Wyndham. Although no stock options
were granied during 2007 and 2006, the Company may grant stock options that vest based on performance

and/or time vesting criteria.

The annual activity of the Company’s common stock option plans consisted of (in thousands of shares):

2007 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number Average Number Average Number Average
of Exercise of Exercise of Exercise
Options  Price®  Options Price® Options Price ®
Balance at beginning of year 11,037 § 2722 12890 $ 2712 15071 $26.73
Granted at fair market value @ - - - - 100 30.55
Granted in connection with PHH
spin-off ® . - - - - 627 {*)
Exercised © (2.495) 19.92 (576) 15.69 (2,380} 17.01
Forfeited . (2,579) 36.74 (1,277) 3136 (528) 30.32
Balance at end of year @ 5,963 26.16 11,037 27.22 12,890 27.12

™ Not meaningful.

@ Reflects the maximum number of options assuming achievement of all performance and time vesting criteria.

) As a result of the spin-off of PHH, the Company granted incremental options and reduced the exercise price of each
stock option.

©©  Stock options exercised during 2007, 2006 and 2005 had intrinsic value of $20 mitlion, $23 million and $223
million, respectively.

@  As of December 31, 2007, the Company's outstanding “in-the-money™ stock options had aggregate intrinsic value of
less than $0.1 million. Aggregate unrecognized compensation expense related 1o outstanding stock options was zero
as of December 31, 2007.

) As a result of the spin-offs of Realogy and Wyndhara on July 31, 2006, the exercise price of each option was
adjusted downward by a proportionate value. Such amounts were then revised to reflect the (-for-10 reverse stock
split, which became effective on September 5, 2006.
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The table below summarizes information regarding the Company’s outstanding and exercisable stock options
as of December 31, 2007 (in thousands of shares):

Outstanding and Exercisable Options

Weighted
Average Weighted
Number Remaining Average

Range of of Contractual Exercise
Exercise Prices Options Life Price
Less than $20.00 1,438 25 % 15.15
$20.01 to $25.00 232 23 22.18
$25.01 to $30.00 2,733 23 26.73
$30.01 to $35.00 . 1,190 1.9 3177
$35.01 and above 370 0.1 49,3}

5,963 22 26.16

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of common stock options granted during 2005 was $5.89. The fair
values of these stock options estimated on the dates of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing modet
with the following weighted average assumptions: dividend yield—1.7%; expected volatility—30.0%; risk-
free interest rate—3.8%: and expected holding period—>5.5 years.

Restricted Stock Units

RSUs currently granted by the Company entitle the employee to receive one share of Avis Budget common
stock upon vesting, which occurs ratably over a four-year period for the majority of currently outstanding
RSUs. The Company also employs performance and time vesting criteria for RSU grants made to certain of
the Company's executives. The predetermined performance criteria determine the number of RSUs that will
ultimately vest and are based on growth in earnings before taxes and certain other metrics over varying
periods of three to four years. The number of performance-based RSUs that will ultimately vest may range
from 0% to 100% of the target award. The annual activity related to the Company’s RSU plan consisted of
(in thousands of shares):

2007 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average

Number Exercise Number Exercise Number Exercise
of RSUs Price of RSUs Price of RSUs Price

Balance at beginning of year 1,774 & 2433 2,299 § (*) 1,618 % (*)
Granted at fair market value @ 1,143 25.83 1,799 (*) 1,402 (*)
Granted in connection with PHH

spin-off ® - - - (*) 77 (™)
Vested © (382) 2431 (1,129) (*) (341) *
Canceled © (205) 2479  (1,195) (*) (457) *
Balance at end of year @ 2,330 25.03 1,774 24.33 2,299 (*)

™ Weighted average grant date prices for 2005 and for RSU activity prior to the Cendant Separation are not meaningful
due 1o the impact of the Cendant Separation on the weighted average grant price of RSUs.

@  Reflects the maximum number of RSUs assuming achievement of all performance and time vesting criteria.

®  Ag a result of the spin-off of PHH, the closing price of Cendant common stock was adjusted downward on
January 31, 2005. In order to provide an equitable adjustment to holders of its RSUs. the Company granted
incremental RSUs 1o achieve a balance of 1.0477 RSUs outstanding subsequent to the spin-off for each RSU
outstanding prior to the spin-off,
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&) As a result of the Cendant Separation, approximately 1.2 million RSUs were canceled during third quarter 2006,
Also, as a result of the Cendant Separation, approximately 1.1 milliocn RSUs vested and converied into shares of
Avis Budget commen stock, Realogy common stock and Wyndham common stock.

@ As of December 31, 2007, the Company’s outstanding RSUs had aggregate intrinsic value of $30 million and
unrecognized compensation expense of $49 million, which will be recognized over the remaining vesting period of
the respective award.

Stock Appreciation Rights

SARs are settled in Company stock, have a seven-year term, and vest ratably over a four-year period or after
three years with no graded vesting prior thereto. The Company’s policy is to grant SARs with exercise prices
at thep-current fair markel value. At December 31, 2007, the Company had approximately 0.5 million SARs
outstanding with a weighted average exercise price of $24.40, a weighted average contractual life of six years
and unrecognized compensation expense of $3 million.

The weighted average grant-date fair value of SARs granted during 2006 was $9.05. The fair value of these
SARs is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted average assumptions: dividend yield—0%; expected volatility—32.9%; risk-free interest rate—
4.9%; and expected holding period—4.9 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company is authorized to sell shares of its Avis Budget common stock to eligible employees under its
non-compensatory employee stock purchase plan (“ESPP”). Under the terms of the ESPP, employees may
authorize the company to withhold up to 10% of their compensation from each paycheck for the purchase of
Avis Budget common stock. For amounts withheld in 2007, the purchase price of the stock was calculated as
95% of the fair market value of Avis Budget common stock as of last business day each month, During 2007,
the Company sold approximately 19,000 shares under the ESPP. As of December 31, 2007, approximately
358,000 shares were available for issnance under the ESPP.

Compensation Expense

The Company records compensation expense for all outstanding employee stock awards (see Note 2—
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies). The Company’s policy is to record compensation expense
related to the issuance of stock options and SARs to its employees on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period of the award and based on the estimated number of stock options or SARs the Company believes it
will ultimately provide. The Company records amortization expense of the deferred compeunsation related to
RSUs on a straight-line basis over the remaining vesting periods of the respective RSUs and based on the
estimated performance goals the Company believes it will ultimately achieve. Currently, all stock-based
compensation expense associated with time and performance based awards is predicated on achievement of
established performance targets.

The Company recorded pretax stock-based compensation expense of $17 million, $93 million and $25
million ($10 million, $57 miltion and $15 million, after tax) during 2007, 2006 and 20085, respectively,
related to employee stock awards that were granted or modified by the Company. The expense recorded in
2006 includes a pretax charge of $79 miilion primarily related to the accelerated vesting of previously
outstanding RSUs and equitable adjustments related to previously outstanding stock options, as a result of the
Cendant Separation. The expense recorded in 2005 includes $5 million related to the accelerated vesting of
RSUs of individuals terminated in connection with the Company’s 2005 restructuring initiatives (see Note
5—Restructuring Charges). Such pretax stock-based compensation expense is recorded within selling,
general and administrative expenses on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Qperations except
amounts incurred in connection with the 2006 accelerated vesting of RSUs and stock options related to the
Cendant Separation (which are recorded within the separation costs line item) and the 2005 restructuring-
related charge (which is recorded in the restructuring charges line item).
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The Company also recorded pretax stock-based compensation expense of $134 miltion and $54 million (383
million and $33 million, after tax) during 2006 and 2005, respectively, within discontinued operations. The
expense recorded in 2006 includes a pretax charge of $104 million, primarily related to the accelerated
vesting of previously outstanding RSUs and equitable adjustments refated to previously outstanding stock
options as a result of the Cendant Separation.

Employee Benefit Plans
Defined Contribution Savings Plans

The Company sponsors several defined contribution savings plans that provide certain eligible employees of
the Company an opportunity to accumulate funds for retirement. The Company matches the contributions of
participating employees on the basis specified by the plans. The Company's contributions to these plans was
$14 million, $23 million and $20 million during 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The Company sponsors domestic non-contributory defined benefit pension plans covering certain eligible
employees and contributory defined benefit pension plans in certain foreign subsidiaries with participation in
the plans at the employees’ option. Under both the domestic and foreign plans, benefits are based on an
employee’s years of credited service and a percentage of final average compensation. However, the majority
of such plans are frozen and no longer accruing benefits.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 158 as of December 31, 2006. SFAS 158 requires the recognition of the
funded status of our defined benefit pension plan on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the recognition as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or
credits and that arise during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost.
Additional minimum pension liabilities and related intangible assets are also derecognized upon adoption of
the new standard. As a result of the adoption of the provisions of SFAS No. 158, the Company recorded a
pretax charge in 2006 of $6 million ($4 million, after tax) within stockholders’ equity and a $6 million
reduction in pension assets.

The components of net periodic pension cost and the assumptions related to the cost consisted of the
following in millions of dollars:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Service cost 3 2 % 2 3 2
Interest cost 13 13
Expected return on plan assets (12) (14) (1
Amortization of unrecognized amounts 3 5
Net periodic benefit cost $ 4 % 6 3 4
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The Company uses a measurement date of December 31 for its pension plans,

pension plans as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 was as follows:

The funded status of the

Change in Benefit Obligation 2007 2006
Benefit obligation at end of prior year $ 193 8§ 176
Service cost 2 2
Interest cost 1 11
Plan amendmenis t 1
Actuarial (gain)/loss (10} 10
Net benefits paid (8) {7)
Benefit obligation at end of current year 5 18 § 193
Change in Plan Assets

Fair value of assets at end of prior year § 156 8 144
Actual return on plan assets 12 13
Employer contributions 7 6
Net benefits paid (8) (7
Fair value of assets at end of current year $ 167 § 156
Funded status:

Funded status at end of year $ 2% @3N
Net amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets:

Other non-current liabilities $ (22) § a7

The estimated amount that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic

pension cost in 2008 is as follows:

2008
Net actoarial loss b 2
Prior service cost 1
Transition (asset) obligation -
$ 3
The following assumptions, calculated on a weighted-average basis, were used to determine pension
obligations and pension costs for the principal plans in which the Company’s employees participated:
For the Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Discount rate:
Net periodic benefit cost 5.75% 5.50% 5.75%
Benefit obligation 6.25% 5.75% 5.50%
Long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.25% 8.25% 8.25%

To select a discount rate for its defined benefit pension plans, the Company uses a modeling process that
involves matching the expected cash outflows of such plan, to a yield curve constructed from a portfolio of
AA rated fixed-income debt instruments. The Company uses the average yield of this hypothetical portfolio
as a discount rate benchmark.
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The Company’s expected rate of return on plan assets of 8.25% is a long term rate based on historic plan
asset returns over varying long term periods combined with current market conditions and broad asset mix
considerations. The expected rate of return is a long term assumption and generally does not change annually.

As of December 31, 2007, substantially all of the Company’s defined benefit pension plans had a projected
benefit obligation in excess of the fair value of plan assets. The Company expects to contribute
approximately $6 million to these plans in 2008.

The Company’s pension plan assets were $167 million and $156 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Plan assets are managed by independent investment advisors with the objective of maximizing
returns with a prudent level of risk. Plan assets consist mainly of equity and fixed income securities of U.S.
and foreign issuers and our weighted average asset allocation for the Company’s pension plan as of
December 31, 2007 was as follows:

Asset Category 2007

Equity 61%
Debt 37%
Real estate 2%

The Company estimates that future benefit payments from plan assets will be $9 million, $10 million, $9
million, $10 million, $10 million and $62 million for 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 to 2017,
respectively.

Financial Instruments
Risk Management
Following is a description of the Company’s risk management policies.

Foreign Currency Risk. The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its exposure to
changes in foreign currency exchange rates associated with its foreign currency denominated receivables and
forecasted royalties, forecasted eamings of foreign subsidiaries and forecasted foreign currency denominated
acquisitions. The Company primarily hedges its foreign currency exposure to the British pound, Canadian
dollar, Australian dollar and New Zealand dollar. The majority of forward contracts do not qualify for hedge
accounting treatment under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”
(“SFAS No. 133"). The fluctuations in the value of these forward contracts do, however, largely offset the
impact of changes in the value of the underlying risk they economically hedge. Forward contracts used to
hedge forecasted third party receipts and disbursements up to 12 months are designated and do qualify as
cash flow hedges. The amount of gains or losses reclassified from other comprehensive income 1o earnings
resulting from ineffectiveness or from excluding a component of the forward contracts’ gain or loss from the
cffectiveness calculation for cash flow hedges during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was not material, nor is the
amount of gains or losses the Company expects to reclassify from other comprehensive income to earnings
over the next 12 months.

Interest Rate Risk. The Company uses various hedging strategies including interest rate swaps and interest
rate caps to create an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate assets and liabilities. In 2007, the Company
recorded a net unrealized loss on all cash flow hedges of $93 million, net of tax, to other comprehensive
income. The after-tax amount of gains or losses reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) to earnings resulting from ineffectiveness for 2007, 2006 and 2005 was not material to the Company’s
results of operations. The Company estimates that approximately $24 million of losses deferred in
accumulated other comprehensive income will be recognized in earnings in 2008, which is expected to be
offset in earnings by the impact of the underlying hedged items.
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Daring 2007, the Company used interest rate swaps, designated as cash flow hedges, to manage the risk
related to its floating rate corperate debt. In connection with such cash flow hedges, the Company recorded
net unrealized losses of $13 million, net of tax, to other comprehensive income. During 2006 and 2003, the
Company’s hedging strategies related to its corporate debt included swaps and financial instruments with
purchased option features designated as either fair value hedges or freestanding derivatives. The fair value
hedges were perfectly effective resulting in no impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations
during 2006 and 2003, except to create the accrual of interest expense at variable rates. The freestanding
derivatives resulted in a nominal impact in 2006 and $12 million of expenses in 2005, During 2006, the
Company repaid all outstanding debt associated with terminated hedges and recognized the unamortized
gains as a component of the early extinguishment of debt line item on the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations. During 2003, the Company recorded $32 million of such previously unamortized
gains.

The Company uses derivatives to manage the risk associated with its floating rate vehicle-backed debt. These
derivatives include freestanding derivatives and derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, which have
maturities ranging from January 2008 to August 2012. In connection with such cash flow hedges, the
Company recorded net unrealized gains (losses) of $(80) million, $(5) millicn and $39 million, net of tax,
during 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, to other comprehensive income. The Company recorded a gain
(loss) of $(8) million, $5 million and $1 million, respectively, related to freestanding derivatives during 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Commodity Risk. The Company is also exposed to changes in commedity prices, which consist primarily of
unleaded gasoline. In the first quarter of 2007 and fourth quarter 2006, the Company purchased derivative
commodity instruments to manage the risk of changes in unleaded gasoline prices. These instruments were
designated as freestanding derivatives, These derivatives resulted in a $10 million gain on the Company’s
consolidated results of operations in 2007 and had a nominal impact on the Company’s consolidated results
of operations in 2006.

Credit Risk and Exposure. The Company is exposed to counterparty credit risks in the event of
nonperformance by counterparties to various agreements and sales transactions. The Company manages such
risk by evaluating the financial position and creditworthiness of such counterparties and by requiring
collateral in certain instances in which financing is provided. The Company mitigates counterparty credit risk
associated with its derivative contracts by monitoring the amount for which it is at risk with each
counterparty, periodically evaluating counterparty creditworthiness and financial position, and where
possible, dispersing its risk among multiple counterparties.

There were no significant concentrations of credit risk with any individual counterparties or groups of
counterparties at December 31, 2007 or 2006 other than (i) risks related to the Company’s repurchase and
guaranteed depreciation agreements with General Motors Corporation and Ford Motor Company with respect
to program cars that were sold and returned to the car manufacturers but for which the Company has not yet
received payment (see Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies), (ii} receivables from Realogy
and Wyndham related to certain contingent. income tax and other corporate liabilities assumed by Realogy
and Wyndham in connection with the Cendant Separation and (iii) risks related to leases which have been
assumed by Realogy, Wyndham or Travelport but of which the Company is a guarantor,

Concentrations of credit risk associated with trade receivables are considered minimal due to the Company’s

diverse customer base. Bad debts have been minimal historically. The Company does not normally require
collateral or other security to support credit sales,

F-49




Fair Value

The fair value of financial instruments is generally determined by reference to market values resulting from
trading on a national securities exchange or in an over-the-counter market. In cases where quoted market
prices are not available, fair value is based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques, as
appropriate. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale securities, accounts
receivable, program cash and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair value due to the short-
term maturities of these assets and liabilities.

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instruments at December 31 are as follows:

2007 2006
Estimated Estimated
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Assets : ‘ . .
Investments in Affinion ® . $ - % - % 98 § 139
Corporate debt -
Current portion of long-term debt 10 10 29 29
Long-term debt 1,787 1,680 - 1,813 1,775
Debt under vehicle programs
Vehicle-backed debt due to Avis Budget Rental Car
Funding 4,646 4,274 4,511 4,505
Vehicle-backed debt 936 931 744 739
Interest rate swaps and other derivatives &) (14) (14) =) {15)
Derivatives ™ . (28) (28) N "

@  The Company’s investment in Affinion was sold in 2007.
™ Derivative instruments in gain (loss) positions.
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2). Segment Information

The reportable segments presented below represent the Company’s operating segments for which separate
financial information is available and is utilized on a regular basis by its chief operating decision maker to

assess performance and to allocate resources. In identifying its reportable segments, the Company also

considers the nature of services provided by its operating segments. Management evaluates the operating

results of each of its reportable segments based upon revenue and “EBITDA,” which is defined as income
from continuing operations before non-vehicle related depreciation and amortization, any goodwill
impairment charge, non-vehicle interest and income taxes. The Company’s presentation of EBITDA may not
be comparable to similarly-titled measures used by other companies.

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Net revenues @

Vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net

Vehicle interest, net

EBITDA

Non-vehicle depreciation and amortization

Segment assets exclusive of assets under
vehicle programs

Assets under vehicle programs

Capital expenditures {excluding vehicles)

Domestic  International Truck  Corporate
Car Rental Car Rental Rental and Other @ Total
$ 4,679 % 873 § 416 % 18 $5,986
1,270 205 96 - 1,571
259 28 28 - 315
265 131 17 1 414
74 7 2 1 84
2,528 717 192 1,056 4,493
6,421 1,043 517 - 7,981
79 12 3 - 94

During 2007 a $1,195 million charge was recorded for the impairment of goodwill (see Note 2—Summary of

Significant Accounting Policies).

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Net revenues @

Vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net

Vehicle interest, net

EBITDA

Non-vehicle depreciation and amortization

Segment assels exclusive of assets under
vehicle programs

Assets under vehicle programs

Capital expenditures (excluding vehicles)

Domestic  International Truck  Corporate

Car Rental Car Rental Rental and Other © Total
3 4,395 § 761 $ 472§ 61 $5,689
1,145 178 93 - 1416

272 22 26 - 320
214 111 45 (393) (23)

78 6 2 19 105

3,096 919 314 1,242 5,571
6,400 798 502 - 7,700

63 8 2 12 93

F-51




Year Ended December 31, 2005

Domestic International Truck  Corporate
Car Rental Car Rental Rental and Other © Total

Net revenues @ $ 4,109 §$ 661 $ 546 § 84 $5,400
Vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net 1,022 144 72 - 1,238
Vehicle interest, net 27 13 25 - 309
EBITDA 225 111 103 (213) 226
Non-vehicle depreciation and amortization 73 5 2 36 116
Segment assets exclusive of assets under

vehicle programs ® 2,993 876 318 1,294 5,481
Assets under vehicle programs 1,217 771 512 - 8,500
Capital expenditures (excluding vehicles) 75 11 2 58 146

® Inter-segment net revenues were not significant to the net revenues of any one segment.

®  Exctudes assets of discontinued operations,

©  Includes the results of operations of the Company’s non-strategic businesses, unallocated corporate overhead and the
elimination of transactions between segments.

Provided below is a reconciliation of EBITDA to loss before income taxes.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

EBITDA : $ 414 3% (23) 3 226

Less: Non-vehicle related depreciation and amortization 84 105 116

Interest expense related to corporate debt, net 127 236 172

Goodwill impairment 1,195 - -

Early extinguishment of debt - 313 -
Loss before income taxes $ (992) $ (677) $ (62)

The geographic segment information provided below is classified based on the geographic location of the
Company’s subsidiaries.

United All Other

States Countries Total

2007

Net revenues 5 5113 § 373 % 5,986
Segment assets exclusive of assets under vehicle programs 3,776 717 4,493
Assets under vehicle programs 6,938 1,043 7,981
Net property and equipment 450 50 500
2006

Net revenues $ 4928 § 761§ 5,689
Segment assets exclusive of assets under vehicle programs 4,652 919 5,571
Assets under vehicle programs 6,902 798 7,700
Net property and equipment 442 44 486
2005

Net revenues 5 4,739 % 661 $ 5.400
Segment assets exclusive of assets under vehicle programs* 4,605 876 5,481
Assets under vehicle programs 7,729 771 8,500
Net property and equipment 483 33 516

™ Excludes assets of discontinued operations.

F-52




24. Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Consolidating Financial Statements

The following consolidating financial information presents Consolidating Condensed Statements of
Operations for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, Conselidating Condensed Balance Sheets
as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 and Consolidating Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 for: (i) Avis Budget Group, Inc. {the “Parent’);

(ii} Avis Budget Car Rental and Avis Budget Finance, Inc. (the “Subsidiary Issuers™); (iii) the guarantor
subsidiaries; (iv) the non-guarantor substidiaries; (v) elimination entrics necessary to consolidate the Parent
with the Subsidiary Issuers, the guarantor and non-guarantor subsidiaries; and (vi) the Company on a
consolidated basis, The Subsidiary Issuers and the guarantor and non-guarantor subsidiaries are 100% owned
by the Parent, either directly or indirectly. All guarantees are full and unconditional and joint and several.
This financial information is being presented in relation to the Company’s Guarantee of the Notes issued by
Avis Budget Car Rental. See Note 16—Long-term Debt and Borrowing Arrangements for additional
description of these Notes, The Notes have separate investors than the equity investors of the Company and
the Notes are guaranteed by certain subsidiaries.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for using the equity method of accounting for purposes of the
consolidating presentation. The principal elimination entries relate to investments in subsidiaries and
intercompany balances and transactions. For purposes of the accompanying Conselidating Condensed
Statements of Operations, certain expenses incurred by the Subsidiary Issuers are allocated to the guarantor
and non-guarantor subsidiaries. The results of operations of discontinued operations are included in the
nen-guarantor subsidiaries column. Income from discontinued operations, net of tax within the Parent column
inciudes the equity in earnings from discontinued operations and gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued
operations,
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Conselidating Condensed Statements of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent Issuers Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries  Eliminations  Total

Revenues

Vehicle rental $ - 5 - 3 4047 $ 620 % - $4.667

Other 7 - 967 2,178 (1,833) 1,319
Net revenues 7 - 5,014 2,798 - (1,833) 5,986
Expenses

Operating 1 - 2,555 477 - 3,033

Vehicle depreciation
and lease charges,

net - - 1,353 1,535 (1,317 1,571
Selling, general and

administrative 14 - 560 34 - 658
Vehicle interest, net - - 203 322 (300 315

Non-vehicle related
depreciation and
amortization 1 - 76 7 - 84
Interest expense related
to corporate debt, net:

Interest expense 3) 132 - (2) - 127
Intercompany
interest expense
(income) - (132) 132 - - -
Separation costs, net (10) 5 - - - (5)
Goodwill impairment - 4 1,180 11 - 1,195
Total expenses 3 9 6,149 2,434 (1,617 6,978

Income (loss) hefore
income taxes and
equity in earnings of

subsidiaries 4 (9 (1,135) 364 (216) (992)
Provision (benefit) for

income taxes ()] (23] {6) 55 - (45)
Equity in earnings (loss)

of subsidiaries (954) (1,035) 94 - 1,895 -
Income (loss) from

continuing

operations (947 (953) (1,035) 309 1,679 947y

Income from
discontinued
operations, net of tax 31 - - - - 31

Net income (loss) $ (916) $ (953) % (1,035) § 309 % 1,679  § (916)
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent Issuers Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Revenues
Vehicle rental $ -8 -5 3972 % 547 $ - $4519
Other Other 39 - 805 2,057 (1,731 1,170
Net revenues ) 39 - 4,777 2,604 (1,731) 5,689
Expenses
Operating 2 - 2,469 416 - 2,887
Vehicle depreciation and
lease charges, net - - 1,248 1,519 (1,351) 1,416
Selling, general and
administrative 191 - 554 88 (15 818

Vehicle interest, net - - 305 311 (296) 320
Non-vehicle related '

depreciation and

amortization 9 - 81 15 - 105
Interest expense related 1o

corporate debt, net:

Interest expense 176 101 27 (1) (13) 236
Intercompany interest
expense (income} - (101} 101 - - -
Early extinguishment of
debt 313 - - - - 313
Separation costs, net 238 19 4 - - 261
Restructuring charges - - 10 - - 10
Total expenses 929 19 4,745 2,348 (1,675) 6,366

Income (loss) before income
taxes and equity in : ,
earnings of subsidiaries (890) (19) 32 256 (56) (677)

Provision (benefit) for income

taxes (338) ) 48 61 10 (226)
Equity in earnings of

subsidiaries 101 182 198 - (481) -
Income (loss) from continuing

operations (451) 170 182 195 (547 (45D

Income (loss) from
discontinued operations, net
of tax (1,479 - - 478 (478) (1,479)

Income (loss) before

cumulative effect of

accounting changes (1,930) 170 182 673 (1,025) (1,930)
Cumulative effect of

accounting changes, net of

tax (64) - - {65) 65 {64)

Net income (loss) $(1,994) % 170 § 182 § 608 % {960} $(1,994)
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Issuers Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

Eliminations Total

Revenues
Vehicle rental $ -3 -$ 3824 § 478 % - $4,302
Other 63 - 746 1,925 (1,636) 1,098
Net revenues 63 - 4,570 2,403 (1,636) 5,400
Expenses
Operating 7 - 2,340 383 (1 2,729
Vehicle depreciation and lease
charges, net - - 1,096 1,498 (1,356) 1,238
Selling, general and
administrative 182 - 547 93 35 857
Vehicle interest, net - - 300 255 (246) 309
Non-vehicle related
depreciation and
amortization 17 - 15 24 - 116
Interest expense refated to
corporate debt, net:
Interest expense 197 - a7 1 @ 172
Separation costs, net i5 - - - 15
Restructuring charges 19 - 7 - - 26
Total expenses 437 - 4,348 2,254 (1,577) 5,462
Income (loss) before income

taxes and equity in earnings

of subsidiaries (374) - 222 149 (59) (62)
Provision (benefit) for income

taxes (188) - 80 - 42 t5 (28]
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 175 261 119 - (555) -
Income (loss) from continuing

operations (n 261 261 107 (629) (1)
Income (loss) from discontinued

operations, net of tax 1,637 - - 1,088 (1,088) 1,637
Income (loss) before

cumulative effect of

accounting changes 1,626 261 261 1,195 (1,117 1,626
Cumulative effect of accounting

changes, net of tax (8) (8) (8) - 16 (8)
Net income (loss) $1618 $ 253 § 253 § 1,195 § (1,701)$1,618
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Consolidating Condensed Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2007

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes

Goodwill

QOther intangibles, net

Other non-current assets
Intercompany receivables (payables)
Investment in subsidiaries

Total assets exclusive of assets under
vehicle programs

Assets under vehicle programs:
Program cash
Vehicles, net
Receivables from vehicle manufacturers
and others
. Invesument in Avis Budget Rental Car
Funding (AESOP) LLC-related party

Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current
liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt
Other non-current liabilities

Total liabilities exclusive of liabilities
under vehicle programs

Liabilities under vehicle programs:
Debt
Due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC-related party
Deferred income taxes
Other

Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Isswers Subsidiaries Suobsidiaries Eliminations Total
$ 3753 99 % 12 % 66 3 -3 214
2 67 220 103 - 392

- - 13 7. (3% 12

329 104 82 55 - 570
368 270 387 226 (33) 1,218

- 175 275 50 - 500

4 223 - 49 “2) 234

- 3 985 12 - L0000

- 17 648 95 - 760

681 72 22 5 - 781
460 672 {1,007 (125) - -
841 2,063 2,496 - (5,400) -
2,354 3,495 3,806 313 (5,475) 4,493

- - - 1 - |

- - 207 7,267 7474

. - - 276 - 276

- - - 230 - 230

- - 207 7.774 - 7981
$2,354 § 3495 % 4013 % 2087 § .. (5475)512474
$ 356 % 233 % 433 § 105 3 {33)% 1,004
1 9 - - - 10

357 242 433 105 (33) 1,104

- 1,787 - - - 1,787

532 110 218 180 @ 998
889 2,139 651 285 (75) 3.889

- 58 204 688 - 950

- - - 4,646 - 4646

- - 1,088 158 - 1,246

- 2 7 269 - 278

- 60 1,299 5,761 - 7120
1,465 1,296 2,063 2,041 (5,400) 1,465
$2354 § 1495 § 403 % 8087 § {5,475) $12,474
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As of December 31, 2006

Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent Issuers Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 35% 75 % 29 % 338 -$ 172
Receivables, net 2 54 217 90 - 363
Deferred income taxes 5 - 10 7 (15) 7
Other current assets 1,070 49 84 62 (1 1,264
Total current assets 1,112 178 340 192 (16) 1,806
Property and equipment, net - 115 326 45 - 486
Deferred income taxes 4] 153 - 68 (36) 226
Goodwill - 7 2,165 21 - 2,193
Other intangibles, net 1 17 639 82 - 739
Other non-current assets 59 48 10 4 - 121
Intercompany receivables (payables) 627 627 (1,209) (45) - -
Investment in subsidiaries 1,854 3,109 2,603 - (7,566) -
Total assets exclusive of assets under
vehicle programs 3,694 4,254 4,874 367 (7,618) 5,571
Assets under vehicle programs:
Program cash - - - 14 . 14
Vehicles, net - - 299 6,750 - 7,049
Receivables from vehicle
manufacturersand others - - 13 263 - 276
Investment in Avis Budget Rental Car
Funding (AESOP) LLC-related party - - - 361 - 361
- - 312 7,388 - 7,700
Total assets $3.694 § 4254 % 5186 % 7755 % (7,618)$13,271
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current
liabilities $1,185 3% 81 % 490 $ 115 % (16)% 1,855
Current portion of long-term debt 4 25 - - - 29
Total current liabilities 1,189 106 490 115 (16) 1,884
Long-term debt - 1,813 - - - 1,813
Other non-current liabilities 62 24 226 176 (36) 452
Total liabilities exclusive of liabilities
under vehicle programs 1,251 1,943 716 291 (52) 4,149
Liabilities under vehicle programs:
Debt - - 271 488 - 759
Due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC-related party - - - 4,511 - 4,511
Deferred income taxes - - 1.077 129 - 1,206
Other - - 13 190 - 203
- - 1,361 5,318 - 6,679
Total stockholders’ equity 2,443 2,311 3,109 2.146 (7,566) 2,443
TFotal liabilities and stockholders’ equity $3.694 $ 4254 % 5,186 % 7,755 % (7.618)$13,271
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Consolidating Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007
o Subsidiar.y Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent Issuers Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net cash provided Ey (used in) operating

activities 188 (135 48) $ 1,973 § @16)$ 1714
Investing activities '
Property and equipment additions - 47 (36) (11} - (94)
Net assets acquired, net of cash acquired,
and acquisition-related payments - - (ln . - - (11
Proceeds received on asset sales - 13 3 3 - 19
Proceeds received from sale of
investment 106 - - - - 106
Proceeds from (paid to) Realogy and .
Wyndham, net (108) - - - -, (108)
Proceeds from dispositions of businesses, '
net of transaction-related payments - - - - - -
Purchase of equity investment (60) - - - - (60)
Other, net : - (©) (N - - (13)
Net cash used in investing activities ‘
exclusive of vehicle programs (62) 40) (51 (8) - (161)
Vehicle programs: -
Decrease (increase) in program cash - - - 13 - 13
Investment in vehicles - (45) (87) (10,501) - (10,633)
Proceeds received on disposition of ‘ .
vehicles - 228 50 8,586 - 8,864
Other, net - - - - - -
- 183 . s {37 (1,902) - {(1,756)
Net cash provided by (used in}
investing activities (62) 143 (88) (1,910) - (1917
Financing activities .
Principal payments on borrowings &) 42 - - ’ - (45)
Issuances of common stock 50 - - - - 50
Net intercompany transactions 2 (106) 172 (284) - 216 -
Other, net 3) 2 - . - - 1)
Net cash provided by (used in}
financing activities exclusive of '
vehicle programs 46 (146) 172 ! (284) 216 4
Vehicle programs: -
Proceeds from borrowings - 48 - 10,517 - 10,565
Principal payments on borrowings - (2) (52) (10,182) - (10,236)
Net change in short-term borrowings - - - (86) - (86)
Other, net - ®) (1} {ay - (8)
- 40 (53) 248 . - 235
Net cash provided by (used in) .
financing activities 46 (106) 119 (36) . 216 239
Effect of changes in exchange rates on
" cash and cash equivalents - -7 - 6 - 6
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash . . :
equivalents 2 24 v a7 33 -, 42
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of ' :
period o 35 75 29 33 - 172
+ Cash and cash equivalents, end of period § 37 § ° 9 % - 12.% . 66 $ -$ 214
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
Activities

Investing activities

Property and equipment additions

Net assets acquired (net of cash acquired})

and acquisition-related payments
Proceeds received on asset sales
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale
securities
Other, net

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities exclusive of
vehicle programs

Vehicle programs:
Decrease (increase) in program cash
Investment in vehicles
Payments received on investment in
vehicles
Other, net

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Principal payments on borrowings

Issuances of commen stock

Repurchase of common stock

Payment of dividends

Net intercompany transactions

Other, net

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities exclusive of
vehicle programs

Vehicle programs:
Proceeds from borrowings
Principal payments on borrowings
Net change in short-term borrowings
Other, net

.

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities

Effect of changes in exchange rates on
cash and cash equivalents

Cash provided by (used in) discontinued
operations

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of
period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Parent Issuers Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
$(1,331) % 86 % (CYIR] 1,535 § 9 $ 252
(8 (25) (40} (22) - %3
- (93) (14) 9@ - (118)

- 15 7 3 - 25
6 - @) 1 - 4
) (105) (50) 27N - {184)

R 15 - (14) - 1
- (108) (166) (11,074) - (11,348)
- 338 (4) 10,456 - 10,790
- - - a2 - (12)
- 245 {170) (644) - (569)
2) 140 220) 671) - (753)

- 1,875 . - - 1,875
(3,564) (3%) (n - - (3,603)
46 _ - - - 46
(243) - - - - (243)
(113) - 3 3) - (i13)
613 (1,945) 434 842 56 -
{3 (35) - - - (38)
(3,264) (143) 436 839 56 (2,076)
- - - 10,979 - 10,979
- - (113) (13,197) - (13,310)
. - - {282) - (282)
- (9 (5) (1 - (15)
- )] (118} (2,501) - (2,628)
(3.264) (152) 318 (1,662) 56  (4,704)
- - - 2 N 2
4,046 - - 783 - 4,829
(603) 74 16 (13) 152 (374
638 1 13 46 (152) 546
$ 3I5% 75 % 29 % 33% -3 1
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Subsidiary Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent Issuers Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net cash provided by operating

activities § @3 8 3 250 % 1,231 § (211} $ 1,000
Investing activities
Property and equipment additions (35) 20 (56) (34) - (146)

Net assets acquired (net of cash
acquired) and acquisition-related

payments - (12) (6) (193) - 211y
Proceeds received on asset sales 22 18 1 5 - 46
Proceeds from sales of
available-for-sale securities 18 - - - - 18
Other, net 6 - - 60 - 66
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities exclusive of
vehicle programs 11 (15) (61) (162) - (227
Vehicle programs:
Decrease {increase) in program cash - (15 - - - (15)
Investment in vehicles - (62) (195} {10,957y - (11,214)
Payments received on investment in
vehicles - 442 5 8,422 - 8,869
Other, net - - - {22) - (22)
- 365 (190) (2,557) - (2,382
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities 11 350 (251) (2,719 - (2,609)
Financing activities
Principal payments on borrowings (34) - (4} - - (38)
Net short term borrowing {repayments)
under revolving credit agreement 650) - - - - (650)
Issuances of common stock 289 - - - - 289
Repurchase of common stock (1,349) - - - - (1,349
Payment of dividends (423) - - - - (423)
Net intercompany transactions 394 (322) {132y 29) 89 -
Other, net 7 - - - - 7
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities exclusive of
vehicle programs (1,766 (322) (136) 29 89  (2,164)
Vehicle programs:
Proceeds from borrowings - - 192 10,054 - 10,246
Principal payments on borrowings - 22) (48) (9,079) - (9,149
Net change in short-term borrowings - - - 81 - 81
Other, net - (13) 2 - - (13)
- 33 142 ) 1,056 - 1,163

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities (1,766) (357 6 1,027 89 (1,001)

Effect of changes in exchange rates on
cash and cash equivalents - - - - - -
Cash provided by (used in)

discontinued operations 2,636 - - 357 - 2,993
Net increase (decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents 603 1 5 (104) (122) 383
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning . .

of pertod 35 - 8 150 (30) 163
Cash and cash equivaleats, end of

period 3 638 % 1% 13 % 46 3 (152)$ 346
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25. Selected Quarterly Financial Data—(unaudited)

Provided below are selected unaudited quarterly financial data for 2007 and 2006.

The underlying diluted per share information is calculated from the weighted average common and common
stock equivalents outstanding during each quarter, which may fluctuate, based on quarterly income levels,
market prices and share repurchases. Therefore, the sum of the quarters’ per share information may not equal
the total year amounts presented on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Net revenues

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax

Net income (loss)

Per share information:
Basic
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations

Net income (loss)

Weighted average shares
Diluted
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Gain (luss) on disposal of discontinued operations

Net income (loss)

Weighted average shares

Net revenucs

Income (loss) from continuing operations

Income (loss} from discontinued operations, net of tax
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax

Net income (loss)

Per share information:
Basic
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations
Cumulative effect of accounting change

Nel income (loss)
Weighted average shares
Dituted
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations

Loss on disposal of discontinued operations
Cumulative effect of accounting change

Net income (loss)

Weighted average shares
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2007
First Second Third Fourth

1,365 $ 1,516 $ 1,719 $ 1,386
12 23 63 (1,045)

- - IE) 1

1 1 43 (12)
13 8 24 3 103§ (1,056
0.12 § 022§ 060 $  (10.05)

S - 0.02) 0.01
0.01 0.01 0.42 (0.12)
013 § 023 § 100 $  (10.16)
101.6 103.4 103.9 104.0
0.12 § 022 § 060 $ (1005

- - (0.02) 0.01

; 0.01 0.41 (0.12)
012 § 023 $ 099 $ (10.16)
103.0 104.8 105.0 104.0

2006
First Second Third Fourth

1,337 § 1454 § 1566 $ 1332
(66) (64) (325) 4
215 317 (54) _
(15) (1,307) (634) ()
(©4) - - -
70 $ (L0549 $  (1.013) $ 3
066) § (0.64) §  (3.23) § 0.04
2.14 3.17 (0.54) -
(0.15) (13.05) (6.30) (0.02)
063 - - )
070 $ (10.52) $ (1007) $ 0.02
100.6 100.1 100.6 101.1
(066) § (064 $§  (323) § 0.04
2.14 3.17 (0.54) -
(0.15) (13.05) (6.30) {0.02)
(0.63) . i }
070 § (1052) $ (1007 § 0.02
100.6 100.1 100.6 101.6




26. Subsequent Events ' : 3

On January 23, 2008, the Company announced that its Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to
$50 million of its common shares. Under the repurchase authorization, the Company may repurchase shares
from time to time in open market transactions, accelerated stock buyback programs, tender offers, privately
negotiated transactions or by other means. Repurchases may also-be made under a Rule 10b5-1 plan. The
timing and amount of repurchase transactions, if any, will be determined by the Company’s management
based on its evaluation of market conditions, share price, legal requirements and other factors.

On February 21, 2007, the Company completed a new asset-backed conduit facility of $800 million. The
facility, which issues variable funding notes by the Company’s Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP),
LLC subsidiary and provides funds for the acquisition for rental cars in the United States, has a maturity date
of February 13, 2009.
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Schedule 11 - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(in millions)

Description

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:

Year Ended December 31,
2007
2006
2005

Balance at Other -

Beginning Translation Balance at End
of Period Expensed Adjustment Deductions of Period

$ 20 7 1 9 % 19
$ 20 16 ] an % 20
b 19 17 - (16y $ 20
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Exhibit No.

2.1

22

31
3.2

33

4.1

42

43
44
4.5

4.6

10.1

10.2

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Separation and Distribution Agreement by and among Cendant Corporation*, Realogy
Corporation, Wyndham Worldwide Corporation and Travelport Inc., dated as of July 27, 2006
{(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
August 1, 2006.)

Letter Agreement dated August 23, 2006 related to the Separation and Distribution Agreement
by and among Realogy Corporation, Cendant Corporation*, Wyndham Worldwide Corporation
and Travelport Inc. dated as of July 27, 2006 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2007).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 3, 2006).

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 30, 2006).

Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Registration Slatemcnt on Form 8-A dated
September 5, 2006.)

Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2006, by and between Avis
Budget Group, Inc. and Mellon Investor Services LLC as Rights Agent, including the form of
Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock as Exhibit A thereto, the form of Rights Certificates as Exhibit B thereto, and the
Summary of Rights as Exhibit C thereto, (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A dated September 5, 2006.)

Indenture, dated as of April 19, 2006, among Avis Budget Car Rental, LL.C, Avis Budget
Finance, Inc., the guarantors from time to time parties thereto and the Bank of Nova Scotia
Trust Company of New York, as trustee, relating to $1,000 mitlion aggregate principal amount
of senior notes, consisting of $250 mitlion aggregate principal amount of Floating Rate Senior
Notes due 2014, $375 million aggregate principal amount of 7.625% Senior Notes due 2014 and
$375 million aggregate principal amount of 7,750% Senior Notes due 2016 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 21, 2006).

Form of Exchange Floating Rate Note (included in Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated April 21, 2006).

Form of Exchange 7.625% Note (included in Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated April 21, 2006).

Form of Exchange 7.75% Note (included in Exhibit 10.4 to the Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated April 21, 2006).

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 9, 2007, to the Indenture, dated as of April 19,
2006, among Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC, Avis Budget Finance, Inc., the guarantors from
time to time parties thereto and the Bank of Nova Scotia Trust Company of New York, as
trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated February 9, 2007).

Employment Agreement between Cendant Corporation® and Ronald L. Nelson (Incorperated by
reference (o Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 30, 2006).t

Employment Agreement between Cendant Corporation* and F. Robert Salerno (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 20,
2006).1
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Exhibit No.

10.3

i0.4

10.5

10.6
10.7(a)

10.7(b)

10.8(a)

10.8(b)

10.8(c)

10.9

10.10(a)

10.10(b}

10.10(c)

10.10(d)

10.11{a)

10.11¢b)

Description

Employment Agreement with David B. Wyshner (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form §-K dated November 20, 2006).1

Agreement between Avis Budget Group, Inc. and Mark Servodidio (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10 K for the year ended
December 31, 2006 dated March 1, 2007).7

Agreement between Avis Budget Group, Inc. and John T. McClain (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2006 dated March 1, 2007).7

Agreement between Avis Budget Group, Inc. and Larry De Shon.t

1987 Stock Option Plan, as amended (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the
Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended October 31, 1996 dated December 13,
1996, File No. 1-10308).1

Amendment to 1987 Stock Option Plan dated January 3, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2000 dated March 29, 2001}.1

1997 Stock Option Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended April 30, 1997 dated June 16,
1997, File No. 1-10308).1

Amendment to 1997 Stock Option Plan dated January 3, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000 dated March 29, 2001).7

Amendment to 1997 Stock Option Plan dated March 19, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11{c) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002 dated March 5, 2003).t

Avis Budget Group, Inc. 2007 Equity and Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30,
2007 dated August 8, 2007).F

1997 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Appendix E to the Joint Proxy
Statement/ Prospectus included as part of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4,
Registration No. 333-34517, dated August 28, 1997).1

Amendment to 1997 Stock Incentive Plan dated March 27, 2000 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.12(b} to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2000 dated March 29, 2001).t

Amendment to 1997 Stock Incentive Plan dated March 28, 2000 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.12(c) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2000 dated March 29, 2001).7

Amendment to 1997 Stock Incentive Plan dated January 3, 2001 (Incorperated by reference to
Exhibit 10.12(d) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2000 dated March 29, 2001).t ‘

HFS Incorporated’s Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Option Plan (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to HFS Incorporated’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration
No. 33-83956).1

First Amendment to the Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Option Plan dated May 5, 1995
{(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to HFS Incorporated’s Registration Statement on
Form S-8, Registration No. 33-094756).F
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Exhibit No.

10.11(c)

10.11(d)

10.11(e)

10.11(D

10.11(g)

10.11(h)

10.11(i)

10.12(a)

10.12(b)

10.13(a)

10.13(b)

10.14

10,15

10.16

10.17(a)

Description
Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Option Plan dated January 22,

1996 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21(b) to HFS Incorporated’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995, File No. 1-11402).1

Third Amendment to the Amended and Restated 1.993 Stock Option Plan dated January 22,
1996 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21{(c) to HFS Incorporated’s Anaual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995, File No. 1-11402).}

Fourth Amendment to the Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Option Plan dated May 20, 1996
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to HFS Incorporated’s Registration Statement on Form
S-8, Registration No. 333-06733).1

Fifth Amendment to the Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Option Plan dated July 24, 1996
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21(e) to HFS Incorporated’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995, File No. 1-11402).%

Sixth Amendment to the Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Option Plan dated September 24,
1996 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21(e) to HES Incorporated’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993, File No. 1-11402).t

Seventh Amendment to the Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Option Plan dated April 30,
1997 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17(g) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997 dated March 31, 1998, File No. 1-10308).%

Eighth Amendment to the Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Option Plan dated May 27, 1997
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17¢h) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1997 dated March 31, 1998, File No. 1-10308).%

1997 Employee Stock Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 1o the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-45183, dated January 29, 1998).%

Amendment to 1997 Employee Stock Plan dated Januvary 3, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.15(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2003 dated March 1, 2004).1

Cendant Corporation* Deferred Compensation Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 dated
March 29,1999, File No. 1-10308).7

First Amendment to Cendant Corporation* Deferred Compensation Plan {Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.13(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005 dated March 1, 2006).§ ‘

Amendment to Certain Stock Plans (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16(c) to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 dated March 3,
2003).%

1999 Broad-Based Employee Stock Option Plan, including the Third Amendment dated March
19, 2002, Second Amendment dated April 2, 2001 and First Amendment dated March 29, 1999
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2002 dated March 5, 2003).+ '

Amendment to Various Equity-Based Plans (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 dated March 1,
2006).1

Form of Award Agreement—Restricted Stock Units (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 4, 2006).1
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Exhibit No.

10.17(b)

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.20(a)

10.20(b)

10.21

10.21(a)

10.21(b)

10.22

10.22(a)

Description

Form of Award Agreement—Stock Appreciation Rights (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 4, 2006).7

Cendant® Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Directors Deferred Compensation Plan
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
April 29, 2005).7

First Amendment to Cendant Corporation* 1999 Non-Employee Directors Deferred
Compensation Plan, as Amended and Restated as of January 22, 2006 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005 dated March 1, 2006).7

Second Amended and Restated Base Indenture, dated as of June 3, 2004, among Cendant Rental
Car Funding (AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2004, dated August 2, 2004).

Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated as of December 23, 2003, among Cendant Rental Car
Funding (AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, to the Second
Amended and Restated Base Indenture, dated as of June 3, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 20, 2006).

Supplemental Indenture No. 2, dated as of May 9, 2007, among Avis Budget Rental Car
Funding (AESOP) LLC, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (as
suceessor in interest to The Bank of New York), as Trustee, to the Second Amended and
Restated Base Indenture, dated as of June 3, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6
the Company Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007).

Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2004, among AESOP
Leasing L.P., as Borrower, Quartx Fleet Management, Inc., as a Permitted Nominee, PV
Holding Corp., as a Permitted Nominee, and Cendant Rental Car Funding {AESOP) LLC***, as
Lender. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2004, dated August 2, 2004).

First Amendment, dated as of December 23, 2005, among AESOP Leasing L.P., as Borrower,
Quartx Fleet Management, Inc., as a Permitted Nominee, PV Holding Corp., as Permitted
Nominee, and Cendant Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC***, as Lender, to the Second
Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2004, (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 20, 2006).

Second Amendment, dated as of May 9, 2007, among AESOP Leasing L.P., as Borrower, PV
Holding Corp., as Permitted Nominee, Quartx Fleet Management, Inc., as Permitted Nominee,
and Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC, as Lender, to the Second Amended and
Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8
the Company Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007).

Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2004, among AESOP Leasing L.P.,
as Borrower, and Cendant Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC***_ as Lender (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.29(a) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006, dated March 1, 2007).

First Amendment, dated as of December 23, 2005, among AESOP Leasing L.P., as Borrower,
and Cendant Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC***, as Lender, to the Amended and Restated
Loan Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29(b) to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, dated March
1, 2007). :
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Exhibit No. Description

10.22(b) Second Amendment, dated as of the May 9, 2007, among AESOP Leasing L.P., as Borrower,
and Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC, as Lender, to the Amended and Restated
Loan Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 the
Company Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007, dated Angust 8, 2007)

10.23 Second Amended and Restated Master Motor Vehicle Operating Lease Agreement, dated as of
June 3, 2004, among AESOP Leasing L.P., as Lessor, and Cendant Car Rental Group, Inc.**, as
Lessee and as Administrator. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2004, dated August 2,
2004)

10.23(a) First Amendment, dated December 23, 2005, among AESOP Leasing L.P., as Lessor, and
Cendant Car Rental Group, Inc.**, as Lessee and as Administrator, to the Second Amended and
Restated Master Motor Vehicle Operating Lease Agreement, dated as of December 23, 2005.
"(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 20, 2006)

10.23(b) Third Amendment, dated as of May 9, 2007, among AESOP Leasing L.P,, as Lessor and Avis
Budget Car Rental, LLC, as Lessee and as the Administrator, to the Second Amended and
Restated Master Motor Vehicle Operating Lease Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2004,
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 the Company Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007)

10.24 Amended and Restated Master Motor Vehicle Finance Lease Agreement, dated as of June 3,
2004, among AESOP Leasing L.P., as Lessor, Cendant Car Rental Group, Inc.**, as Lessee, as
Administrator and as Finance Lease Guarantor, Avis Rent A Car System, Inc.***% a5 Lessee,
and Budget Rent A Car System, Inc., as Lessee. (Incorporated by reference te Exhibit 10.30(a)
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, dated
March 1, 2007)

10.24(a) First Amendment, dated as of December 23, 2005, among AESOP Leasing L.P., as Lessor,
Cendant Car Rental Group, Inc.**, as Lessee, as Administrator and as Finance Lease Guarantor,
Avis Rent A Car System, Inc.****_ as Lessee, and Budget Rent A Car System, Inc., as Lessee,
to the Amended and Restated Master Motor Vehicle Finance Lease Agreement, dated as of June
3, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, dated March 1, 2007)

10.24(b) Third Amendment, dated as of May 9, 2007, among AESOP Leasing L.P., as Lessor, Avis
Budget Car Rental, LI.C, as Lessee, as Administrator and as Finance Lease Guarantor, Avis
Rent A Car System, LLC, as Lessee, and Budget Rent A Car System, Inc., as Lessee, to the
Amended and Restated Master Motor Vehicle Finance Lease Agreement, dated as of June 3,
2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 the Company Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007)

10.25 Second Amended and Restated Administration Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2004, among
Cendant Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC**#*, AESOP Leasing L.P., AESOP Leasing Corp.
I, Avis Rent A Car System, Inc.**** Budget Rent A Car System, Inc., Cendant Car Rental
Group, Inc.** and The Bank of New York, as Trustee. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.34 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005,
dated March I, 2006)

10.26 Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated as of June 3, 2004, among Avis Rent A Car
System, Inc.****, Avis Group Holdings, Inc.***** and Cendant Car Rental Group, Inc.**
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2005, dated March 1, 2006)
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Exhibit No.
10.27

10.27(a)

10.27(b)

10.27(c)

10.27(d)

10.27(e)

10.27()

10.28

Description

Amended and Restated Series 2002-2 Supplement, dated as of November 22, 2002, among
AESOP Funding Il L.L.C.*** Cendant Car Rental Group, Inc.** (as assignee of Avis Rent A
Car System, Inc,****), as Administrator, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Administrative Agent,
certain CP Conduit Purchasers, certain Funding Agents, certain APA Banks, and The Bank of

‘New York, as Trustee and Series 2002-2 Agent, to the Second Amended and Restated Base
_ Indenture dated as of June 3, 2004, among Cendant Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC***, as

Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
Avis Group Holdings, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2002, dated March 6, 2003)

Fourth Amendment to the Amended and Restated Series 2002-2 Supplement, dated as of
November 30, 2005, among Cendant Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, and The
Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2002-2 Agent. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.39(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
20035, dated March 1, 2006)

Fifth Amendment to the Amended and Restated Series 2002-2 Supplement, dated as of
December 23, 2005, among Cendant Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, and The
Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2002-2 Agent. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.39(c) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2003, dated March 1, 2006)

Seventh Amendment to the Amended and Restated Series 2002-2 Supplement, dated as of
March 21, 2006, among Cendant Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, and The
Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2002-2 Agent. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 27, 2006)

Eighth Amendment to the Amended and Restated Series 2002-2 Supplement, dated as of
November 30, 2006, among Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC, as Issuer,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (formerly known as JPMorgan Chase Bank), as Administrative
Agent, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2002-2 Agent. {Incorporated by
reference 10 Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 6,
2006)

Ninth Amendment to the Amended and Restated Series 2002-2 Supplement, dated as of May 9,
2007, among Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC, as Issuer, and The Bank of New
York Trust Company, N.A, (as successor in interest to The Bank of New York), as Trustee and
as Series 2002-2 Agent. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 the Company Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007)

Tenth Amendment to the Amended and Restated Series 2002-2 Supplement, dated as of October
29, 2007, among Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC, as Issuer, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. (formerly known as JPMorgan Chase Bank), as Administrative Agent, and The
Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (as successor in interest to The Bank of New York),

as Trustee and as Series 2002-2 Agent. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 2, 2007)

Series 2003-2 Supplement, dated as of March 6, 2003, among AESOP Funding Il L.L.C***, as
Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2003-2 Agent, to the Second
Amended and Restated Base Indenture, dated as of June 3, 2004, among Cendant Rental Car
Funding (AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee. {Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10,11 to Avis Group Holdings, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, dated May 14, 2003)
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Exhibit No,

10.28(a)

10.28(b)

10.29

10.29(a)

10.29(b)

10.30

10.30(a)

10.30(b)

10.31

Description

Second Amendment, dated as of December 23, 2003, among Cendant Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2003-2 Agent,
to the Series 2003-2 Supplement, dated as of March 6, 2003. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.41(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2005, dated March 1, 2006) : .

Third Amendment, dated as of May 9, 2007, among Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP)
LLC, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (as successor in interest to°
The Bank of New York), as Trustee and as Sertes 2003-2 Agent, to the Series 2003-2
Supplement, dated as of March 6, 2003. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 the
Company Form 10-Q for the quarterly’ period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007)

Series 2003-3 Supplement, dated as of May 6, 2003, among AESOP Funding II L.L.C.¥%*, as
Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2003-3 Agent, to the Second
Amended and Restated Base Indenture dated as of June 3, 2004, among Cendant Rental Car
Funding (AESOP) LLC*** as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Avis Group Holdings, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2003, dated March 23, 2004)

Second Amendment, dated as of December 23, 2003, among Cendant Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC*#*, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2003-3 Agent,
to the Series 2003-3 Supplement, dated as of May 6, 2003. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.42(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2003, dated March 1, 2006)

Third Amendment, dated as of May 9, 2007, among Avis Budget Renial Car Funding (AESOP)
LLC, as Issuer and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. {(as successor in interest to
The Bank of New York), as Trustee and as Series 2003-3 Agent, to the Series 2003-3
Supplement, dated as of May 6, 2003. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 the Company
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007)

Series 2003-4 Supplement, dated as of June 19, 2003, among AESOP Funding II L.L.C.***, as
Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2003-4 Agent, to the Second
Amended and Restated Base Indenture dated as of June 3, 2004, among Cendant Rental Car
Funding (AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Avis Group Holdings, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 2003, dated August 13, 2003)

Second Amendment, dated as of December 23, 2005, among Cendant Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC***_ as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2003-4 Agent,
to the Series 2003-4 Supplement dated as of June 19, 2003. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.43(b) to the Company’s Annuval Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005, dated March 1, 2006)

Third Amendment, dated as of May 9, 2007, among Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP)
LLC, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (as successor in interest to
The Bank of New York), as Trustee and as Series 2003-4 Agent, to the Series 2003-4
Supplement, dated as of June 19, 2003, (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 the
Company Form 10-Q for the quarterly pen'od ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007)

Series 2003-5 Supplement, dated as of October 9, 2003, among AESOP Funding Il L.L.C. ***
as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2003-5 Agent, to the Second
Amended and Restated Base Indenture dated as of June 3, 2004, among Cendant Rental Car
Funding (AESOP) LLC***  as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee. (Incorporated by

.reference to Exhibit 10.41 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2003, dated March 1, 2004}
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Exhibit No.

10.31(a)

10.31(b)

10.32

10.32(a)

10.33

10.33(a)

10.35(b)

10.34

Description

Second Amendment, dated as of December 23, 2005, among Cendant Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC***_ as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2003-5 Agent,
to the Series 2003-5 Supplement dated as of October 9, 2003. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.44(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2005, dated March 1, 2006)

Third Amendment, dated as of May 9, 2007, among Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP)
LLC, as Issuer and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (as successor in interest to
The Bank of New York), as Trustee and as Series 2003-5 Agent, to the Series 2003-5
Supplement, dated as of October 9, 2003. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 the
Company Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 200

Second Amended and Restated Series 2004-1 Supplement, dated as of June 27, 2006, among
Cendant Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC, as
Administrator, Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd., as Administrative Agent, certain financial
institutions, as Purchasers, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2004-1 Agent, to
the Second Amended and Restated Base Indenture, dated as of June 3, 2004, among Cendant
Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustec.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
June 30, 2006)

First Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Series 2004-1 Supplement, dated as of
May 9, 2007, among Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC, as Issuer, and The Bank
of New York Trust Company, N.A. (as successor in interest to The Bink of New York), as
Trustee and as Series 2004-1 Agent. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 the Company
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007)

Series 2004-2 Supplement, dated as of February 18, 2004, among AESOP Funding 11
L.L.C.**%_ag Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2004-2 Agent, to the
Second Amended and Restated Base Indenture dated as of June 3, 2004, among Cendani Rental
Car Funding (AESOP) LLC***  as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2004, dated May 3, 2004)

Second Amendment, dated as of December 23, 2005, among Cendant Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2004-2 Agent,
to the Series 2004-2 Supplement, dated as of February 18, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.45(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005, dated March 1, 2006)

Third Amendment, dated as of May 9, 2007, among Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP)
LLC, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (as successor in interest to
The Bank of New York), as Trustee and as Series 2004-2 Agent, to the Series 2004-2
Supplement, dated as of February 18, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 the
Company Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007)

Series 2005-1 Supplement, dated as of February 25, 2005, among Cendant Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2005-1 Agent,
to the Second Amernded and Restated Base Indenture, dated as of June 3, 2004, among Cendant
Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LL.C***, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 2, 2005)

H-8




Exhibit No.

10.34(a)

10.34(b)

10.35

10.35(a)

10.35¢b)

10.36

10.36(a)

10.36(b)

10.37

Description

First Amendment, dated as of December 23, 2005, among Cendant Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2005-1 Agent,
to the Series 2005-1 Supplement dated as of February 25, 2005. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.29(b} to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2003, dated March 1, 2006)

Second Amendment, dated as of May 9, 2007, among Avis Budget Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (as successor in
interest to The Bank of New York), as Trustee and as Series 2005-1 Agent, to the Series 2005-1
Supplement, dated as of February 25, 2003, (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 the
Company Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007)

Series 2005-2 Supplement, dated as of March 22, 2005, among Cendant Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC***_ as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and as Series 2005-2
Agent, to the Second Amended and Restated Base Indenture dated as of June 3, 2004, among
Cendant Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC*** and The Bank of New York, as Trustee.
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25(a) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2006, dated March 1, 2007)

First Amendment, dated as of December 23, 2005, among Cendant Rental Car Funding
{AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2005-2 Agent,
to the Series 2005-2 Supplement, dated as of March 22, 2005. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.25(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2006, dated March 1, 2007)

Second Amendment, dated as of May 9, 2007, among Avis Budget Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (as successor in
interest to The Bank of New York), as Trustee and as Series 2005-2 Agent, to the Series 2005-2
Supplement, dated as of March 22, 2005, (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 the
Company Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007)

Series 2005-4 Supplement, dated as of June 1, 2005, among Cendant Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC*** 35 Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and as Series 2005-4
Agent, to the Second Amended and Restated Base Indenture, dated as of June 3, 2004, among
Cendant Rental Car Funding {AESOP} LLC*** and The Bank of New York, as Trustee.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 10 the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
June 7, 2005)

First Amendment, dated as of December 23, 2005, among Cendant Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC***, a5 Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and Series 2003-4 Agent,
to the Series 2005-4 Supplement dated as of June 1, 2005. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.30(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2005, dated March 1, 2006)

Second Amendment, dated as of May 9, 2007, among Avis Budget Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (as successor in
interest to The Bank of New York), as Trustee and as Series 2005-4 Agent, to the Series 2005-4
Supplement, dated as of June 1, 2005. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,25 the Company
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007)

Series 2006-1 Supplement, dated as of January 19, 2006, among Cendant Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC***  as Issuer, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee and as Series 2006-1
Agent, to the Second Amended and Restated Base Indenture, dated as of June 3, 2004, among
Cendant Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC***_ as Issuer and The Bank of New York, as
Trustee. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated January 20, 2006)
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.37(a)

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.40(a)

10.41

10.41(a)

10.41(b)

10.42

First Amendment, dated as of May 9, 2007, among Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP}
LLLC, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (as successor in interest to The
Bank of New York), as Trustee and as Series 2006-1 Agent, to the Series 2006-1 Supplement,
dated as of January 11, 2006. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 the Company Form 10-
Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007)

Series 2007-2 Supplement, dated as of June 6, 2007, among Avis Budget Rental Car Funding
(AESOP) LLC, as Issuer and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee and Series
2007-2 Agent, to the Second Amended and Restated Base Indenture, dated as of June 3, 2004,
among Cendant Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC***, as Issuer and The Bank of New York, as
Trustee, as amended (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated June 8, 2007)

Administration Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2006, among Budget Truck Funding, LLC,
Budget Truck Rental, LLC, as Administrator, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A.,
as Trustee. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2006 dated, August 9, 2006)

Master Motor Vehicle Operating Lease Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2006, among Budgei
Truck Funding, LLC¥¥, as Lessor, Budget Truck Rental, LLC, as Administrator and as Lessee,
and Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC, as Guarantor. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 1o
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2006,
dated August 9, 2006)

Amendment No. 1 to the Master Motor Vehicle Operating Lease Agreement, dated as of

February 15, 2008, among Centre Point Funding, LLC (formerly known as Budget Truck Funding,
LLC), as Lessor, Budget Truck Rental, LLC, as Administrator and as Lessee, and Avis Budget Car
Rentat, LLC, as Guarantor. ’

Base Indenture, dated as of May 11, 2006, among Budget Truck Funding, LLC1*, as [ssuer, and
The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.13 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30,
2006, dated August 9, 2006)

Amendment No. 1 to the Base Indenture, dated as of May 16, 2007, among Budget Truck
Funding, LLC1, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A_, as Trustee.
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8, 2007)

Amendment No. 2 to the Base Indenture, dated as of February 15, 2008, among Centre Point
Funding, LLC (formerly known as Budget Truck Funding, LLC), as Issuer, and The Bank of New
York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee.

Series 2006-1 Supplement, dated as of May 11, 2006, among Budget Truck Funding, LLC, as
Issuer, Budget Truck Rental, LLCt1, as Administrator, Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc., as
Administrative Agent, certain commercial paper conduit purchasers, certain funding agents,
certain APA banks and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A_, as Trustee, Series 2006-1
Agent and Securities Intermediary, to the Base Indenture, dated as of May 11, 2006, among
Budget Truck Funding, LLCtT, as Issuer, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as
Trustee. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2006, dated August 9, 2006)
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Exhibit No.

10.42(a)

10.42(b)

10.42(c)

10.43

10.43(a)

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

Description

Amendment No. 1 to the Series 2006-1 Supplement, dated as of May 16, 2007, among Budget
Truck Funding, LL.C¥%, as Issuer, Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc., as Administrative Agent,
certain CP Conduit Purchasers, certain Funding Agents, certain APA Banks and The Bank of
New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Quarterty Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2007, dated August 8,
2007)

Extension Letter (related to the Series 2006-1 Supplement, dated as of May 11, 2006), dated as
of May 10, 2007, from Budget Truck Funding, LLC31, as Issuer. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30,
2007, dated August 8, 2007)

Amendment No. 2 to the Series 2006-1 Supplement, dated as of February 15, 2008, among
Centre Point Funding, LLC (formerly known as Budget Truck Funding, LLC), as Issuer,
Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc., as Administrative Agent, certain CP Conduit Purchasers, certain
Funding Agents, certain APA Banks and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as
Trustee.

Asset and Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Budget Group, Inc. and certain of its
Subsidiaries, Cendant Corporation* and Cherokee Acquisition Corporation dated as of August
22, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.71 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2001 dated November 4, 2002).

First Amendment to Asset and Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Budget Group, Inc.
and certain of its Subsidiaries, Cendant Corporation* and Cherokee Acquisition Corporation
dated as of September 10, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.72 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2001 dated November 4,
2002). ‘

Separation Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2005, by and between Cendant Corporation* and
PHH Corporation {(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 10 the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated February 4, 2005).

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2003, by and among Cendant Corporation*,
PHH Corporation and certain affiliates of PHH Corporation named therein (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 4,
2005).111

Cendant Corporation* Qfficer Personal Financial Services Policy (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 26, 2005).

Form of TRAC Participation Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 0.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 26, 2005).

Form of TRAC Lease (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated May 26, 2005).

Form of TRAC Guaranty (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated May 26, 2005).

WTH Funding Limited Partnership Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Partnership
Agreement among Aviscar Inc., Budgetcar Inc., STARS Trust and Bay Street Funding Trust
dated Aprii 20, 2005 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2005 dated August 2, 2005).
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Exhibit No.

10.50(a)

10.50(b)

10.50(c)

10.50(d)

10.50(e)

10.51

10.52

10.53

10.54

10.55

Description

Amending Agreement No. 1 to the Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Partnership
Agreement among Aviscar, Inc. and Budgetcar, Inc., as general partners and BNY Trust
Company of Canada, in its capacity as trustee of STARS Trust and Montreal Trust Company of
Canada, in its capacity as trustee of Bay Street Funding Trust, as limited partners (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 20,
2006).

Amending Agreement No. 2 to the Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Partnership
Agreement among Aviscar, Inc. and Budgetcar, Inc., as general partners and BNY Trust
Company of Canada, in its capacity as trustee of STARS Trust and Montreal Trust Company of
Canada, in its capacity as trustee of Bay Street Funding Trust, as limited partners (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 20,
2006).

Amending Agreement No. 3 to the Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Partnership
Agreement among Aviscar, Inc. and Budgetcar, Inc., as general partners and BNY Trust
Company of Canada, in its capacity as trustee of STARS Trust and Montreal Trust Company of
Canada, in its capacity as trustee of Bay Street Funding Trust, as limited partners (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 20,
2006).

Amending Agreement No. 4 to the Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Partnership
Agreement among Aviscar, Inc. and Budgetcar, Inc., as general partners and BNY Trust
Company of Canada, in its capacity as trustee of STARS Trust and Montreal Trust Company of
Canada, in its capacity as trustee of Bay Street Funding Trust, as limited partners.

Amending Agreement No. 5 to the Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Partnership
Agreement among Aviscar, Inc. and Budgetcar, Inc., as general partners and BNY Trust
Company of Canada, in its capacity as trustee of STARS Trust and Montreal Trust Company of
Canada, in its capacity as trustee of Bay Street Funding Trust, as limited partners.

Parent Guaranty of Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC to BNY Trust Company of Canada, in its
capacity as trustee of STARS Trust and Montreal Trust Company of Canada, in its capacity as
trustee of Bay Street Funding Trust, as limited partners (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 20, 2006).

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 19, 2006, among Avis Budget Holdings, LLC and Avis
Budget Car Rental, LLC, as Borrower, the lenders referred to therein, JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as Administrative Agent, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., as Syndication Agent, Bank of
America, N.A., Calyon New York Branch and Citicorp USA, Inc., as Documentation Agents,
and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Co-Documentation Agent (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Aprit 21, 2006).

Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, dated as of April 19, 2006, made by Avis Budget
Holdings, LLC, Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC and certain of its Subsidiaries in favor of
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 21, 2006).

Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2006, by and among the Company, Travelport Inc.
and TDS Investor LLC (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated June 30, 2006}).

Transition Services Agreement among Cendant Corporation*, Realogy Corporation, Wyndham
Worldwide Corporation and Travelport Inc., dated as of July 27, 2006 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 1, 2006).
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Exhibit No. Description

10.56 Tax Sharing Agreement among Cendant Corporation*, Realogy Corporation, Wyndham
Worldwide Corporation and Travelport inc., dated as of July 28, 2006 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.] to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 1, 2006).

10.57 Agreement dated October 15, 2007 between Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC and General
Motorsitt (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated October 19, 2007).

10.58 Purchase Agreement by and among Cendant Corporation*, Affinity Acquisition, Inc. and
Affinity Acquisition Holdings, Inc. dated as of July 26, 2005 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 2005 dated November 2, 2005).

10.58(a) Amendment No. 1 dated as of October 17, 2005 to the Purchase Agreement dated as of July 26,
2005 by and among Cendant Corporation*, Affinity Acquisition, Inc. (now known as Affinion
Group, Inc. ) and Affinity Acquisition Holdings, Inc. (now known as Affinion Group Holdings,
Inc.} (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2005 dated November 2, 2005).

10.59 Amended and Restated Equalization Benefit Plan.

10.60 Trademark License Agreement between Wizard Co. Inc. and Avis Europe plc.

10.61 System License Agreement between Avis Rent A Car System, Inc. and Avis Europe plc.
10.62 Purchaser Group Supplement, dated as of February 21, 2008, among Atlantic Asset

Securitization LL.C, as commercial paper conduit purchaser, Calyon New York Branch, as APA
bank and funding agent, Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and Avis Budget Car Rental LLC, as administrator
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
February 22, 2008).

10.62(a) Purchaser Group Supplement, dated as of February 21, 2008, among Atlantic Asset
Securitization LLC, as commercial paper conduit purchaser, Calyon New York Branch, as APA
bank and funding agent, Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and Avis Budget Car Rental LLC, as administrator
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
February 22, 2008).

12 Statement Re: Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant.

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.,

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13(a)-14(a) and 15(d)-14(a)
Promulgated Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13(a)-14(a) and 15(d)-14{a)
Promulgated Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

32 Certifications Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Cendant Corporation is now known as Avis Budget Group, Inc.

**  Cendant Car Rental Group, LLC (formerly known as Cendant Car Rental Group, Inc.) is now known as Avis Budget
Car Rental, LLC.

***  Cendant Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC, formerly known as AESOP Funding IT L.L.C, is now known as Avis
Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC.

**kk Avis Rent A Car System, Inc. is now known as Avis Rent A Car System, LL.C.

*¥*%4+Avis Group Holdings, Inc. is now known as Avis Group Holdings, LLC.

T Denotes management contract or compensatory plan.

tt  Budget Truck Funding, LLC is now known as Centre Point Funding, LLC.

ttt Confidential treatment has been requested for certain portions of this Exhibit pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which portions have been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

1, Ronald L. Nelson, certify that:

L

2.

5.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Avis Budget Group, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all matenal respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e}) and internal contro!
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢}  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over {inancial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability o
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 28, 2008

s/ Ronald L., Nelson
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

I, David B. Wyshner, certify that:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Avis Budget Group, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsibie for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal contro} over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 28, 2008

/s/ David B. Wyshner

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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